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lean Balance Sheet
Our focus on keeping a clean
balance sheet and being a healthy
bank has led to a successful
reduction of probiem claims. The
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Diversified Revenues
Ehncelgoguired conprolling 0 ————1335— 60 We continue to be creative in
preresic in APLUIS and Show 0 offering value-added solutions

to our institutional and retail

customers. Through our efforts,

of total revenue
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consoligated rinancial nighlighis

Consolidated Financial Highlights

Shinsei Bank, Limited and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004

Millions of
Billions of yen U.S. daliars
2005 2004 2005
For the year:
Net interest income ¥ 66.8 ¥ 571 $ 623.0
Net fees and commissions 42.3 18.9 394.7
Net trading income 23.9 2.7 223.4
Net other business income 44.5 44.6 414.8
Total revenue 177.8 123.5 1,655.8
Net income 67.4 66.4 627.9
Cash basis net income 74.7 66.4 695.8
Balances at year-end:
Loans and bills discounted ¥3,430.4 ¥3,047.0 $31,943.5
Total assets 8,576.3 6,343.7 79,861.5
Deposits, including negotiable certificates of deposit 3,452.8 2,734.4 32,152.1
Debentures 1,242.6 1,358.0 11,571.2
Total liabilities 7,735.7 5,612.7 72,034.4
Total shareholders’ equity 786.6 730.0 7,235.3
Per share data (in yen and U.S. dollars):
Common shareholders’ equity ¥ 329.65 ¥ 287.94 $ 3,069.7
Fully diluted shareholders’ equity 390.06 378.70 3,632.2
Basic net income 46.78 46.03 0.44
Diluted net income 34.98 32.75 0.33
Dividends paid per common share 2.58 2.22 0.02
Cash basis per share data (in yen and U.S. dollars):
Basic net income ¥ 52.15 ¥ 46.03 $ 0.49
Diluted net income 38.76 32.75 0.36
Ratios:
Return on assets 0.9% 1.0%
Return on equity (fulty diluted) 8.9 9.4
Tier | capital ratio 7.0 16.2
Total capital adequacy ratio 11.8 21.1
z\llo)tessi'ncizi aC:l yen figures have been truncated rather than rounded, the totals do not necessarily agree with the sum of the individuai amounts. Ratios have been
rounaed.

(2) Unless otherwise specified, doHar figures in this annual report refer to U.S. currency and are presented solely for the readers’ convenience. U.S. dollar
amounts are translated at ¥107.39=U.5.$1.00, the rate of exchange prevailing on the Tokyo Foreign Exchange Market on March 31, 2005,

(3) Cash basis net income is calculated by excluding amortization of acquired goodwill and intangible assets (referred to as consolidation goodwill and other
intangibles in our financial statements), net of tax benefit, from net income under Japanese GAAP.

(4) Fully diluted sharehaolders’ equity per share is calculated by dividing shareholders' equity at the end of the periods presented by the number of common
shares that would have been outstanding had all securities convertible into or exercisable for common shares been converted or exercised with an applicable
conversion or exercise price within the predetermined range at the end of the period.

(5) Return on assets is calculated by dividing net income by the average of total assets at the beginning and end of the period presented.

(6) Return on equity (fully diluted) is calculated by dividing net income by the average of fully diluted shareholders’ equity at the beginning and end of the
period presented.




Summary of Events

March
June

May

June

January
February
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November

December

February
April

September

November

December

January

February

March

April

May

New bank launched

Changed name from The Long-Term Credit Bank
of Japan, Limited (LTCB), to Shinsei Bank,
Limited

Introduced a management information system
(MIS)

Operations of Shinsei Securities Co., Ltd.,
commenced

l.aunched new retail banking services

Launched PowerFlex comprehensive account,
internet banking and 24/7 ATM service

Established Institutional Banking Group

Began offering PowerSmart housing loan

Launched annuities for individuals

Operations of Shinsei Business Finance Co., Ltd.,
commenced

Arranged first non-performing foan {NPL)
securitization transaction by a Japanese bank

Launched new real estate non-recourse loan
finance program, enabling small-scale deals

Arranged multi-asset housing loan securitization

Operations of Shinsei Investment Management
(SIM) Co., Ltd., commenced

Established Hibiya Kids Park, an on-site children’s
day care center—the first among Japanese
banks—for Head Office staff

Received The Banker’'s 2003 Bank of the Year
for Japan award

Selected as sponsor of corporate revitalization
process for Matsuyadenki Co., Ltd.

Received /FR’s 2003 awards for best securitization
deal and team

Launched Housing Loan Centers in Tokyo,
Yokohama and Osaka

Received Nikkei Bonds & Financial Weekly's
2003 Best Securitized Product award

Listed the Bank's common shares on First
Section of Tokyo Stock Exchange

Acquired consumer installment credit business
of Teijin Finance Limited

Entered into an advisory services agreement
with Taiwan’s Chiao Tung Bank (CTB) Co., Ltd.

Converted the Bank's long-term credit bank
charter to an ordinary bank charter

Opened Shinsei Financial Center-Ginza

June

July

August

September

October

December

January
March

April

May

June

Summary of Events il

Retail accounts reached one million

Opened Platinum Centers in Ginza and Umeda

Converted to a Company with Committees board
model!

Received THOMSON DealWatch's IPO of the
Year 2003 award for the stock listing and
Asset-Backed Securities Deal of the Year
2003 award for multi-asset housing loan
securitization

Received EUROMONEY’s Best Bank in Japan
2004 award

Securitized Mizuho Bank Ltd.’s head office and

Otemachi Financial Center

Acquired a controlling interest in APLUS Co., Ltd.

Issued the first collateratized debt obligation
(CDO) repackage securitization of commercial
mortgage-backed securities (CMBS)

Installed automatic teller machines (ATMs)
that accept foreign bank cards and credit cards

Launched a securitization program for medical
receivables

Launched Shinsei BankSpot, a new, small

banking center, in Ginza

Received the following awards for Synergy

Funding:

*/FR’s Japanese Securitization of the Year

s Asiamoney's Securitization Deal of the Year
*/SR’s Deal of the Year in Japan

* FinanceAsia‘s Most Innovative Deal in Japan

Announced sales of the Bank’s common shares

Acquired a controlling interest in Showa Leasing
Co., Ltd.

Installed ATMs at Tokyo Metro Co., Ltd., subway
stations

Opened Kyobashi BankSpotin Tokyo

Received THOMSON Dealwatch’'s Commercial
Mortgage-Backed Securities of the Year
2004 award for Cosmic Funding

Operations of Shinsei International Limited
commenced

Opened Chikusa BankSpot in Nagoya

Expanded ATM services to include customers
that are members of the PLUS and Cirrus
networks

Launched online securities brokerage agent
services with Rakuten Securities



To Our Shareholders, Customers and Employees

Masamoto Yashiro Thierry Porté
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To Our Shareholders, Customers and Employees I

To Our Shareholders, Customers and Employees

We are pleased to report that Masamoto Yashiro was appointed as the Chairman of the Board and

Thierry Porté as the President and CEQ at the Board of Directors meeting following the annual

general meeting of shareholders on June 24, 2005.

in February 2004, Shinsei Bank listed its common shares on the First Section of the Tokyo Stock

Exchange. We also changed the Bank’s charter from being a long-term credit bank to that of an

ordinary bank in April 2004. Furthermore, in June 2004, we adopted a Company with Committees

(iinkai-tou setchi-gaisha) board model.

Having strengthened Shinsei's market capabilities and financial condition, we are now positioning

the Bank for stable, long-term profit growth. Built on the foundation of transparent and sound

management, Shinsei is focused on delivering a growing array of market-leading financial products

and services that satisfy the needs of our institutional and retail customers.

A Record Fiscal 2004

For fiscal 2004, ended March 31, 2005, our
consolidated net income was ¥67.4 billion, a ¥1.0
billion increase from fiscal 2003. We achieved this
result with steady growth in non-interest income,
which increased to more than 60% of total
revenue, coming mainly from our investment
banking business.

On a non-consolidated basis, net income was
¥68.0 billion.

As a result of continued efforts to improve asset
quality, at March 31, 2005, non-performing claims
were ¥51.7 billion on a non-consolidated basis, a
¥A5 6 billion decline from March 31, 2004, and
amounted to 1.4% of total claims.

As of March 31, 2005, the consolidated capital
adeqguacy ratio stood &t 11.8% and the Tier |
capital ratio was 7.0%. The lower levels from a
year ago were due mainly to the acquisitions of
APLUS and Showa Leasing. These acquisitions
strengthened Shinsei Group’s consumer and
commercial finance capabilities and improved

capital efficiency.

Establishment of the New Business Model
From the beginning, Shinsei has brought together
advanced know-how from all over the world to
create a banking business model focused on
expanding and strengthening two strategically
important areas: institutional banking and retail
banking. Our approach goes well beyond the
offerings of traditional Japanese banks and is
focused on providing more customized solutions
and services that meet the particular needs of our
institutional and retail customers.

This business model has clearly resonated with
both existing and prospective customers and led
1o the steady growth of both our institutional and
retail banking businesses. As a result, the Bank's
non-interest income, including fees and commissions,
rather than interest income derived from traditional
deposit and lending operations, accounted for
mare than 60% of our consolidated total revenue
in fiscal 2004. This transformation continues, and
our focus on this area gives us a greatly enhanced

platform to generate sustainable profits.




" To Our Shareholders, Customers and Employees

Strengthening Our Consumer and Commercial
Finance Business: APLUS and Showa Leasing
Acquisitions

Shinsei Bank has been strengthening its consumer
and commercial finance activities into a third pillar
of the Group, complementing the institutional and
retail banking businesses. Fiscal 2004 witnessed
significant progress in this important business
area. We acguired a controlling interest in APLUS
in September 2004 and Showa Leasing in March
2005, and made SHINKI Co., Ltd., an equity-method
affiliate in October 2004. With these actions, we
now have a full range of products and services that
meet the needs of small and medium-sized
enterprises (SMEs) and individual customers.
These include installment credit, credit cards,

consumer loans and leasing services.

Institutional Banking Business: Innovation and
Solutions

We continue to realize the benefits of merging the

relationship management teams with the product

development and service teams to deliver value-
added solutions to our customers. In our
securitization business, we are achieving
significant results as a top player in the market
with a developed system that can handle a wide
range of assets, including loans to companies,
lease receivables, credit card receivables,
installment receivables, consumer loans, housing
loans, apartment loans, commercial real estate and
non-performing loans.

In our corporate revitalization business, we
provide various solutions to customers to improve
their profitability and competitiveness by utilizing
our know-how accumulated through Shinsei
Bank's own improvements in financial soundness
and profitability.

Leveraging our success-driven staff, strong
balance sheet, profound market knowledge and
years of experience, we continue tc provide high-
value-added solutions that meet the various needs

of our customers.

Retail Banking Business: “Color your life”
Launched in June 2001, our retail banking
business has achieved considerable success on
the back of the comprehensive PowerFlex
account. We have since worked hard to expand
and improve retail transaction channels, offering
such services as internet banking, call centers and
ATMs that are available free of charge, 24 hours a
day, seven days a week.

Customer response to these initiatives has been
strong, and the total number of retaif accounts,
including PowerFlex and traditional accounts,
reached 1.3 million at the end of March 2005.

Qur assets under management from retail

customers have surpassed ¥3 trillion, supported




by steady sales of a new time deposit offering,
Powered One, launched in April 2004, and growth
in foreign currency deposits and investment trusts.
As a result, the retail banking business became
profitable in fiscal 2004.

To further improve customer convenience, we
are continuing our efforts to increase service
channels. We opened Platinum Centers in Ginza,
Tokyo and Umeda, Osaka, and are launching
Shinsei BankSpot—a new type of mini-branch—
starting with the first BankSpot in Ginza. We have
also enhanced our retail network by installing
ATMs in Kintetsu Corporation railway stations and
Tokyo Metro subway stations.

This year, we launched a new branding concept,
“Color your life,” aiming to bring the reality of a
lifestyle abundant with color to our customers. We
continue to strive to develop products and services

that deliver value and convenience to our customers.

Better Banking—Better Value

We are focused on being a bank that is always in
a leadership position by devoting management
resources to strategically important areas and
offering value-added products and services that
answer the particular needs of our customers. To
achieve this leadership position, we believe Better
Banking is the key.

In providing Better Banking, we become an
important and trusted partner for our customers,
and we contribute to their success by fulfilling
their needs for innovative, customer-centric
banking solutions. For our shareholders, we are
unwavering in our commitment to increase
Shinsei’s value and deliver stable, long-term profit
growth through active management and the

application of clear business strategies.

To Qur Shareholders, Customers and Employees R

We greatly appreciate your support and

guidance as we continue our efforts to achieve

success in the future.

July 2005

/«G%VLL_

Masamote Yashiro

Chairman

ST D ’
Thierry Porté
President and CEO




" Message from Thierry Porté

Message from Thierry Porté

In June 2005, | was honored to assume the
leadership of Shinsei Bank from Masamoto
Yashiro, former President and CEO. | would like
to take this opportunity to express my thanks
and admiration to Mr. Yashiro for his
outstanding vision and leadership of Shinsei
Bank.

Continuity and Growth

Over the past five years, Shinsei Bank has
established a new and profitable business model
in Japan focused on institutionat and retail banking
activities. We have developed a strong financial
base and we are building an attractive and admired
brand.

As we go forward, we will continue to grow our
existing businesses and we will expand into areas
of consumer and commercial finance. The
acquisitions of APLUS and Showa Leasing are
major steps in creating a “third pillar” in our

financial services strategy.

Customer Driven and Leading Change
We seek to be a bank for customers, placing
their needs at the center of our actions and our
strategy. We will strive to communicate clearly
and effectively with our customers. We will listen
carefully and respond quickly, making the best use
of our skills, experiences and resources to develop
innovative solutions and to deliver the best services
and products to our customers.

We also seek to be a bank that leads change.
The needs of customers and the market
environment are always changing. Indeed, the

Japanese market for financial services is in the

midst of a great process of change. We are open
to new ideas and approaches so that we can
quickly and effectively respand to the changing
needs of our customers, providing them with

superior solutions.

Contribution to the Community

We are responsible for the progress and prosperity
of our society and it is our duty to contribute to the
communities we serve. While achieving profitable
growth in a context of transparent and responsible
management is our primary goal, we must also
give back to society by actively supporting and
participating in social and cultural activities,
particularly with the efforts of our own time and

resources.

We are committed to achieving stable, profitable
growth. We will achieve this by delivering
innovative solutions and a consistently high level of
performance to our customers, our shareholders
and our employees. Inspired by the leadership
of Masamoto Yashiro, we go forward with
confidence and optimism. We are grateful for
your continuing support and we look forward to

hearing from you on what we can do still better.

July 2005
[ Wewy 17’

Thierry Porté
President and CEO




The Shinsei Bank Management Team 1l

The Shinsei Bank Management Team

H Representative Statutory Executive Officer, President Thierry Porté

B Representative Statutory Executive Officer, Vice Chairman Junji Sugiyama

B Senior Managing Executive Officer, Banking Infrastructure Group Dhananjaya Dvivedi
B Senior Managing Executive Officer, Institutional Banking Group Clark Graninger

B Senior Managing Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer John E. Mack

B Senior Managing Executive Officer, Risk Management Group Janak Raj

Senior Managing Executive Officer, Retail Banking Group K. Sajeeve Thomas
H Managing Executive Officer, Deputy Head, Retail Banking Group Satoru Katayama
B Managing Executive Officer, Financial Institutions and Capital Markets Sub-Group  Masazumi Kato

M Managing Executive Officer, Corporate Banking Business Sub-Group Junzo Tomii

M Statutory Executive Officer, Corporate Affairs Group Kazumi Kojima




Institutional Banking Group:

Delivering Value-Added Solutions to Our Customers

The Institutional Banking Group has leveraged Shinsei Bank’s strongest assets—our people,

expertise and customer relationships—to create value-added solutions that answer the challenges

of our customers.

Institutional Banking Group

Over the past year, we have taken steps to
streamline the delivery of key service areas. Cur
efforts have resulted in a much more focused
business structure that is better able to bring
product expertise together with deep customer
knowledge, allowing us to deliver prompt and
optimal offerings to our customers.

We continue to realize the benefits of merging
our Group's relationship management teams with
the product development and service teams. This
structure has proven its utility over the past two
years and helped us more effectively deliver our
expertise in securitization, credit trading, private
equity, leveraged finance, non-recourse lending
and M&A.

In May 2005, we established the Real Estate
Finance Sub-Group, which is focused on growing
real estate finance business areas, such as non-
recourse lending, and the Public Sector Finance
Sub-Group, which utilizes Shinsei Bank's long-
standing business relationships to address the
needs of public sector finance customers. These

In the fiscal year ended March 2005, non-interest income, earned
mainly from the investment banking business, accounted for over
60% of Shinsei’'s consolidated total revenue. This is clear evidence
of our ability to go beyond the traditional corporate banking
business model that relies on interest margins from commercial
lending to an approach with enhanced profit-generating capabilities.
Our success has been due to our ability to deliver high-value-added
solutions that match changing customers’ needs, and to rapid
decision making and high operational afficiency. While non-interest
income grew significantly in fiscal 2004, our interest income

increased for the first time since fiscal 2001.

changes have strengthened our organization

and improved our business promotion system,
enabling us to respond more promptly to a wider
range of customer needs.

Loan Qrigination

To ensure profitability and asset guality, Shinsei
continues to price loans based on strict adherence
to the credit standing of customers. In particular,
by fully utilizing our advanced financial technclogies
and knowledge, we have expanded our financing
methods to include non-recourse lending, project
finance and leveraged lending.

Owing to the costs of such loans, it had been
particularly difficult for small and medium-sized
real estate properties to take advantage of
non-recourse lending. Our Multi-Asset Program
(MAP), however, provides non-recourse loans
through a single special purpose company (SPC),
thereby significantly reducing the comparative
costs of establishing and maintaining SPCs and
making this powerful financing tool affordable to a
wider range of customers.

Consolidated Total Revenue and
Non-Interest Income

{Billions of yen} {%)
e

200 e

0 _— R i R i ‘v"_ 0
3/2003 3/2004 3/2005

B Total revenue

] Non-interest income

< Non-interest income as a percentage
of total revenue




Securitization and Credit Trading

Shinsel’s securitization and credit trading
operations are widely acclaimed for their quality
and innovation. We have put significant effort into
these areas and introduced several approaches
that are unique to the Japanese banking sector. As
a result, our performance in these areas continues
to improve.

A notable example of our innovations is muiti-
asset residential mortgage-backed securities,
which apply housing loans obtained from multiple
originators, including regional financial institutions.
This approach allows us to package assets that are
more diverse in terms of geography and credit profiles
and therefore expected to generate more stable
cash flows. In addition, this method makes it
possible for us 1o securitize assets that were
difficult to securitize on their own in the past.
Capitalizing on the strength of our balance sheet,
we have so far launched five innovative securitization
preducts with a total issuance of ¥485 billion.

In September 2004, we issued a CDO with
commercial mortgage-backed securities issued in
Japan and commercial property mezzanine loans
as the underlying assets. This is the first CDO
repackage securitization of Japanese assets
arranged by a Japanese bank, providing a new tool
to institutional investors.

We also securitized the non-recourse loan
extended to Mizuho Bank’s head office and
Otermachi Financial Center. With a total issuance
of ¥87 billion, this was the largest commercial real
estate securitization deal for Shinsei Bank to date.

Shinsei Bank has become a leader in the
Japanese securitization business. Qur subsidiaries,
including Shinsei Securities, Shinsej Trust &
Banking Co., Ltd., and Shinsei Servicing Company
(Shinsei Servicer), play crucial rales in this
important business area.

Shinsei Securities was ranked in the top three in
Bloomberg L.P.’s all-asset-backed bonds league
table in 2004. Furthermore, we have arranged a
variety of securitization projects, including the
securitization of shopping credit receivables
owned by Shinsei Sales Finance Co., Ltd., and

Institutional Banking Group: Delivering Value-Added Solutions to Our Customers

the securitization of consumer loans.

Fitch Ratings Ltd. assigned an "Acceptable”
trustee status to Shinsei Trust for its operations
and services in securitization transactions in the
areas of residential mortgage-backed securities
(RMBS), commercial mortgage-backed securities
{CMBS) and asset-backed securities (ABS). The
company has nearly doubled the volume of its
frustee operations in securitization transactions
and is striving to further expand its business
offerings.

Standard & Poor's rated Shinsei Servicer as
"Above Average"” with a "Stable” outlook as a
residential loan primary servicer, which is the
second best ranking among the five categories.
In 2005, Standard & Poor's upgraded Shinsei
Servicer's "Management and Organization” rating,
one of the major criteria for residential loan primary
servicers, from “Above Average” to the highest
rank of “Strong.” This reflects Shinsei Servicer’s
solid information security, internal control, and
operational and reporting capabilities, which have
consoclidated the company's position as an industry
leader in Japan. in May 2005, Fitch Ratings
upgraded the company's commercial mortgage
special servicer rating to CSS2+(JPN) and its
residential primary servicer rating to RPS2+(JPN).
Shinsei Bank will continue to leverage the strong
servicing abilities of this subsidiary to generate
new assignments not only for its own credit
trading and securitization projects but also for
securitization projects originating outside the
Group. We will thereby expand our business

Synergy Funding: Multiple Award-Winning
Securitization Deal

Shinsei’s securitization business continues to
garner high industry rankings. In December
2004, IFR, an international finance magazine,
selected Synergy Funding, a securitization deal
structured by the Bank, as its deal of the year.
The same deal also received the most innovative
deal award from Asiamoney and deal of the year
awards from FinanceAsia and ISR.

11
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opportunities and offer a wider range of value-
added products and services.

Asset Management Service

Shinsei's asset management business focuses on
leveraging our global relationships with leading
European and U.S. asset management companies,
such as Ramius Capital Group, LLC, BlueBay
Asset Management, Ltd., and Smith Breeden
Associates, Inc., to deliver advanced, unique
investment products to our customers.

Shinsei Investment Management (SIM), our
wholly owned investment trust and investment
advisory subsidiary, has adopted a new business
model as a “"Managers’ Manager."” It carefully and
impartially selects investment products from a
range of options offered both within and outside of
Japan. SIM not only develops and offers investment
trust products under Shinsei's own brand but also
delivers such products as pension funds.

Shinsei has developed a platform from which it is
capable of delivering advanced asset management
services, including the above investment products
and deposits utilizing derivatives to match the
particular needs of its corporate, financial
institution and individual customers.

Corporate Revitalization Business

Shinsei uses hands-on experience and know-how
to provide solutions that help customers strength-
en their financial fundamentals and improve asset
efficiency by restructuring their businesses
through such measures as divestitures and
acquisitions.

In November 2003, Shinsei Bank became a
sponsor to Matsuyadenki, which filed for
assistance under Japan's Civil Rehabilitation Law.
In November 2004, Shinsei, Aozora Bank, Ltd., and
the Development Bank of Japan originated a
syndication loan in connection with the business
rehabilitation of Matsuyadenki. With this loan,
Matsuyadenki set the stage for support from the
Industrial Revitalization Corporation of Japan and
will continue to improve and move forward with
the development of its business operation base.

Kimuraya Co., Ltd., a retail discount store, filed for
pankruptcy under the Corporate Rehabilitation Law
in September 2004 and Shinsei was appointed as
a financial advisor. We supported the funding of
Kimuraya's revitalization efforts by providing
debtor-in-possession (DIP) financing for the
year-end and holiday shopping season.

Working with Others to Find Solutions
Shinsei has formed alliances with a number of
regional financial institutions to help strengthen
relationship banking functions. As part of these
efforts, we actively assist in the business
rehabilitation and start-up efforts of borrowers.
In July 2004, we established the Pre-IPO
Investment Program to make equity investments
in companies that are planning an initial public
offering (IPO) within two to three years.
Leveraging our advanced credit expertise, wide
network of relationships and deep industry
knowledge, Shinsei assists these companies
in their further growth and development.
Furthermore, in May 2004, in collaboration
with China International Trust and Investment
Corporation (CITIC), Marubeni Corporation and
the Sumitomo Trust & Banking Co., Ltd., Shinsei
established an investment fund focused on helping
Japanese companies accelerate their growth
strategies in China. The fund invests in and
provides funding to Japanese companies looking
to grow in China, particularly in such high-growth
sectors as auto parts and electronics.

Creating Value: The Key to Better Banking

The Institutional Banking Group continuously
strives to understand our customers’ financing
needs and find new and innovative ways to add
value. Leveraging our know-how, strong balance
sheet, deep market knowledge and years of
experience, we stay on top of market changes and
aim to set the trends, rather than follow them. We
believe this is the key to Better Banking.

13




Institutional Banking Group: Delivering Value-Added Solutions to Our Customers

Consumer and Commercial Finance Business
Shinsei has positicned consumer and commercial
finance as a core business, alongside institutional
and retail banking. In fiscal 2004, Shinsei greatly
increased its presence in this market, and we are
now well positioned to drive further growth and
expansion. Consumer and commercial finance is a
natural extension of Shinsei's businesses. Our
growth strategy is founded on the belief that this
market presents many financial, operational and
growth synergies with our core banking businesses,
and that many market participants can benefit
from the same core competencies already proven
so effective in our institutional and retail banking
businesses.

The consumer and commercial finance business
is focused on serving three markets: consumer
finance, commercial finance and specialty property
finance for both consumers and small businesses.
To each of these markets, we bring financial
stability, state-of-the-art technology and operations
processing, risk management discipline, and a
strong heritage of innovation and execution.

14
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Consumer Finance

Shinsei’s consumer financial solutions greatly
expanded with the acquisition of a controlling
interest in APLUS in September 2004. APLUS
provides installment credit, credit cards, consumer
loans and guarantee/collection services to over six

million customers, including four million credit card
holders through over 700 active co-branded card
partnerships. APLUS merchant partners range
from small to large independent retailers, such as
Culture Convenience Club Co., Ltd.—which runs
the TSUTAYA entertainment rental franchise store
chain—and BMW Japan Corp. Once it joined the
Shinsei Group, APLUS was able to secure a long-
term credit rating upgrade from Rating and
Investment Information, Inc. (R&l) to BBB+ and
restart its issuance of short-term commercial
paper. As a result, APLUS has been able to secure
short- and long-term funding at levels 1.1% lower
than the fiscal 2004 level, with room for further
improvement over time. Credit costs have also
greatly improved year over year after the disposal
of weak-performing and non-core assets,
facilitated by a ¥241 billion capital infusion by
Shinsei and select strategic investors. The long-
term outlook for APLUS is te improve efficiency
from more cost-effective sources of funding,
migrate to state-of-the-art business systems and
employ rigorous credit discipline consistent with
that of Shinsei Bank.

in addition to APLUS, Shinsei owns and
operates Shinsei Sales Finance, which provides
consumer installment credit to 140,000 consumers
via approximately 200 merchants. During fiscal
2004, Shinsei became the second largest
shareholder in SHINKI, after the conversion of a
bond into a 39% common equity stake. SHINKI, a
company best known for its successful “No Loan”
consumer finance product with one week of free
interest on all unsecured loans, serves over 375,000
consumers. The “No Loan” offering is unique in
Japan in that customers may repay funds drawn
within seven days and pay no interest or fees. This
is Not a one-time introduction teaser but conveniently
repeatable over time. Furthermore, “No Loan”
may be repaid at any of the over 10,000 7-Eleven
convenience stores throughout Japan.

Commercial Finance
Shinsei Business Finance, our 75%-owned joint
venture with Nissin Co., Ltd., exclusively serves




SMEs with unsecured lending. Launched only two
years ago, the company has already achieved
profitability ahead of schedule, is continuing to
expand its customer base and is enjoying very
robust growth through the second stage of its
development.

At the end of fiscal 2004, Shinsei greatly
expanded its investment to the commercial
finance market with the acquisition of Showa
Leasing. Showa Leasing is a leading general and
automobile leasing company with a strong heritage
and significant customer base across Japan. Over
350 sales representatives provide leasing and
installment sales to 38,000 business customers
and over 275 dealer partners. Showa Leasing also
enjoyed immediate benefits upon joining the
Shinsei Group. Its balance sheet was cleared of
non-core or underperforming assets, which led to
a long-term rating of A- and a commercial paper
credit upgrade to J-1 from Japan Credit Rating
Agency, Ltd. (JCR). This in turn resulted in cost-
efficient short- and long-term debt refinancing.
Showa Leasing is focused on expanding its position
in the domestic leasing market through its strong
relationship with Resona Group as well as
expanding its relationships with other business

origination partners.

Specialty Property Finance
A niche segment within our consumer and
commercial finance business is specialty property
finance. As this market has been mismanaged by
many finance companies in the past, we approach
it very carefully through our two group companies,
Shinsei Property Finance Co., Ltd., and Life
Housing Loan Co., Ltd. Our focus is on profitable,
defendable business niches where we can apply
our technology and customer service expertise.
Shinsei Property Finance provides second
mortgages to customers through major housing
developers as well as real estate-secured loans to
a select group of consumers and small businesses.
Life Housing Loan focuses exclusively on providing
primary mortgages tc sub-prime or non-conforming

customers through a time-tested network of over

Insttuttonal Banking Group: Delivering Value-Addead solutions to Dur Lustomers 1‘ o

700 real estate brokers. Life Housing Loan applies
a rigorous credit discipline and underwriting
process that generates consistently high returns.

How Shinsei’s Experience Benefits Consumer and
Commercial Finance

Shinsei's own rebirth over the past five years has
received considerable attention both in the media
and in business circles. We have received consistent
praise for challenging conventional thinking and
continually seeking better ways to conduct
business and serve our customers and partners.

Japan's financial industry is expected to
continue to evolve rapidly in the future. Shinsei has
demonstrated its willingness to actively participate
in this process. In June 2005, in a personnel
change once considered unthinkable in Japan,
Teruaki Yamamoto, formerly Shinsei’s statutory
executive officer, became the new president of
APLUS, and Junji Sugiyama, former president of
APLUS, became vice chairman of Shinsei Bank.
This move will strengthen both organizations,
giving APLUS an experienced leader in Shinsei’s
Better Banking model and bringing to Shinsei deep
experience in a core business discipline.

At the end of June 2005, Hitoshi Tsunemine,
former director, chairman and executive of SHINK]
and former general manager of Shinsei Bank's
Osaka Branch, became president of SHINKL.
Tradition mandates that SHINKI's CEQ be selected
from within the founding family. However, the
former president of SHINKI, the son of the
company’s founder, requested that the position be
ceded to Shinsei, demonstrating his confidence
and trust in our reputation for high-quality
management and consistent execution.

A key tenet of Better Banking is to break the
bonds of conformity when there is a better way.
The consumer and commercial finance business
will continually strive to remain customer-focused,
responsible to our shareholders and employees,
and committed to finding the best path forward.
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Retail Banking Group:
Life in Full Color!

In June 2005, Shinsei’s Retail Banking Group launched a branding concept calted “Color your life.”
This program has been well received within cur customer base and reaffirms our desire to help our
customers enrich their lives by providing them with products and services that deliver real value. To
achieve this goal, we continue to work toward a better understanding of our customers’ needs. By
using better customer profiling and segmentation technigues, developing and launching new,
customer-acclaimed products and expanding our distribution channels, we have been able to

further improve both customer convenience and delivery efficiency.

Understanding the Customer: achieve this, we have always recognized the

The Key to a Successful Retail Business necessity to listen to what our customers want in
Ever since its launch in June 2001, our retail a market where they have traditionally been
banking business has focused on building a broad, underserved. in 2004, Shinsei was officially

loyal customer base that will create long-term, recognized by the Nihon Keizai Shimbun's

stable, profitable growth for our business. To customer satisfaction survey as Japan's leading

Comprehensive PowerFlex Account

The biggest advantages of having a PowerFlex account are that customers can manage a range of
products and services from a single, easily accessible source and conduct transactions at any time via
ATMs, Shinsei PowerCall (telephone banking) and Shinsei PowerDirect (online banking) 24 hours a
day, seven days a week. Customers opening an account at a Shinsei Financial Center (SFC) can
receive an operational account and cash card instantly. Other services exclusively offered by Shinsei
include free ATM transactions, including a full refund on fees charged when accessing Shinsei
accounts from another bank's ATM,

Customers can perform foreign currency transactions using almost real-time exchange rates in six
major currencies. We also offer a range of card-related functions, such as J-Debit and international
cash services, allowing customers to withdraw funds in the local currency while overseas. As of
March 31, 2005, the number of accounts exceeded 1.3 million.

PovverSmart Housing Loan

Shinsei launched PowerSmart housing loan in February 2002 in Balance of PowerSmart Housing Loans and

Number of Customers
response to customers’ demands for a flexible repayment period and  ®ilions of yen! {Thousands of customers|

lower interest. This is an entirely new type of housing loan, offering
the borrower the option to make prepayments without incurring
penalties. Customers can also request SmartPayments, a
prepayment feature that automatically sweeps excess savings
account balances to prepay the mortgage. Customers can still
re-draw on prepaid funds through ATMs using the PowerPocket

3/2005

service. This unique product has been highly popular, generating a & Balance of PowerSmart housing loans

balance of ¥260 billion in the three years since its faunch, == Number of customers
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Press conference to launch a new
service with Rakuten Securities

Shinsei Bank opened its first
BankSpot in Ginza in December 2004.
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bank in terms of customer satisfaction. Later in the
year, we were recognized separately by Retaill
Banker International and The Asian Banker as
Japan's best retail bank in 2004,

As our base expanded to over 1.3 million
accounts as of the end of March 2005, we further

segmented our customers into groups that share

.similar needs and preferences. Three broad

account balance-based segments—High Net
Worth, Mass Affluent (Platinum) and Mass
Retail—have been broken down further to reflect
varying needs with respect to products and
services required and preferred channels used.
Our goal is to provide the most suitable products
and services to the right customers through

the most convenient channels at the most

appropriate time.

Customer Satisfaction through Products
and Services that Deliver Value
Our product development expertise and technological
capability have enabled us to respond rapidly to
specific customer needs. Consequently, we
launched several innovative, attractive products
and services during the year, including our
Powered One structured deposit, PowerYokin
special savings account, online securities trading
service and Shinsei Power School advisory service.
Our close relationship with our customers was
demonstrated by the launch, in April 2004, of the
highly successful Powered One deposit, which
addressed two major needs of Japanese consumers:
capital preservation and yield enhancement. The
product, a yen-denominated five-year deposit (with
a three-year extension at the Bank's option),
offered a highly competitive rate of 1% per annum.
In developing this product, we leveraged the
flexibility of our infrastructure to aggregate risk on
a real-time basis. Within one year of launching the
product, more than 100,000 customers had

deposited over ¥500 billion.

In March 2005, consumer concerns in Japan
about security prompted the Bank to introduce
PowerYokin—a new type of yen deposit that
allows customers the flexibility to make withdrawals
in the same manner as savings deposits, but with
greater security from fraudulent ATM cash
withdrawals, all while earning a superior interest rate.

We also reached an agreement with Rakuten
Securities to offer online securities brokerage
agent services through Shinsei PowerDirect. The
service, launched in June 2005, offers such unique
features as the ability to seamlessly trade stocks
from PowerDirect and transfer money to a
brokerage account online.

Along with expanding our product line, we have
also emphasized the need to provide our
customers with greater advice on what products
may best meet their needs. We established Shinsei
Power School as a venue for our customers to
increase their understanding of various types of
products, such as foreign currencies, investment
trusts and variable annuities, as well as how to
more efficiently manage their savings and
investments. This initiative has been very well

received by our customers.

Expansion of Distribution Channels and
Infrastructure: Enhancing Convenience and
Efficiency

Our belief in providing our customers with the
ability to choose where, when and how they want
to bank with us has driven the development of a
highly efficient multi-channel system, including a
sector-leading web site and the introduction during
the year of the mobile, flexitle, cost efficient

BankSpot mini-branch.

Branch Network: Providing a Professional,
Personalized Consulting Service
Customers requiring financial consultation and

advice look for a reliable, prefessional and




personalized service that they can trust. To provide
the kind of service expected by our customers,
Shinsei has continued to focus on very selective
recruitment and intensive training for all our sales
staff. Because people make the difference,
Shinsei’s Career Excitement Center tests all
applicants, selecting only the top candidates to
maintain the highest quality staff. Established in
April 2004, the Shinsei Business School now has
100 licensed internal trainers providing training in
all branches.

Our 30 SFCs, which are located in Japan’'s main
cities, particularly in and around Tokyo and Osaka,
provide a full range of financial services until
7:00 p.m. every weekday. Earlier this year, to offer
asset management consultation sessions to
customers who are unable to visit our branches
during weekdays, 15 SFCs started offering this
service on Saturdays. Similarly, to better serve our
housing loan customers, we established Shinsei
Housing Loan Centers in Marunouchi, Tokyo, and
at the Shinjukuy, Yokchama and Umeda SFCs.
Platinum Centers in Ginza, Tokyo and Umeda,
Osaka are also available for our Platinum and High
Net Worth customers who wish to obtain
specialized advisory and consulting services in a
conveniently located and relaxed environment.

The introduction of Shinsei BankSpot mini-

branches in 2004 allowed the Bank to extend its

Ranked No. 1 in the Nihon Keizai Shimbun’'s Customer Satisfaction Survey of Financial Institutions

reldll bdnyking aroup: Life i ruie Loiar:

physical presence in a highly cost-effective
manner. BankSpot is an entirely new low-cost,
efficient style of branch designed to enable
transactions to be made quickly and conveniently,
accommodating the busy lifestyles of our
customers. The Bank has opened BankSpots in
Ginza and Kyobashi, Tokyo, and in the cities of
Ashiya and Nagoya, and plans to open more in the
Tokyo metropolitan area, Kansai area and other
major cities, where our customers can open
accounts quickly, access ATMs, Shinsei
PowerDirect and Shinsei PowerCall, and conduct
remote consultations for housing loans via video

conference.

Remote Channels: Greater Convenience and
Empowerment for the Customer

We continue to develop and improve our remote
channels to provide the convenience, speed, ease
of use and availability that remain high priorities for
our customers.

In addition to our own ATMs throughout Japan,
we have actively pursued tie-ups with those of
other financial institutions. Through these networks,
our customers can withdraw cash free of charge
from as many as 60,000 ATMs, including those of
IY Bank Co., Ltd., Japan Post and other partner
financial institutions. Qutside Japan, our

customers have access to over 950,000 ATMs

Shinsei opened ATMs in Ningyocho,
Ogikubo, Nogizaka and Kiba Tokyo
Metro stations, and plans to open
more in Otemachi, Shinjuku-
Sanchome, Akasaka-Mitsuke and
Kokkai-Gijidomae stations.

Access to Shinsei’s
Retail Banking Services

(Milfions)

3 —

o on 0

3/2003 3/2004 3/2005

Via web site
& Via Shinsei PowerCall
[ via SFCs and ATMs

Shinsei Bank was ranked No. 1 across all age groups in the Nihon Kejzai Shimbun's customer satisfaction survey of Japanese financial

institutions, published on October 5, 2004. The survey was conducted in Tokyo, Osaka and Nagoya. Shinsei's ratings were particularly

high for customer convenience and free ATM transactions.

Shinsei’s Brand Power Ranked No. 2 by Nikkei Research

Out of 500 companies in 47 retail and service industries nationwide, in 2004 Shinsei Bank’'s brand power was ranked No. 2 by users as
part of the Store & Service Brands 500 survey of Nikkei Research Inc., a research company affiliated with Nihon Keizai Shimbun, Inc. The
results, announced in October 2004, were based on customers’ responses to such statements as ”| want to continue to use this service

w,ou

in the future”; 1 have recommended or would like to recommend this service to others”; and "1 want to have a long-term relationship

with this company.”
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worldwide that accept Shinsei cards.

In March 2005, we began to establish ATM
corners in Tokyo Metro subway stations, and we
plan to open ATM corners at more high-traffic
Tokyo Metro stations. In addition, we have
installed ATMSs in such heavily used train stations
as Keihin Kyuko, Kintetsu and Sagami Railway
stations. At the same time, we are further
expanding our own ATM network in various
locations, such as commercial complexes that are
frequented by our customers.

We have also made banking more convenient
for overseas travelers and foreign residents in
Japan with the introduction in September 2004 of
ATMs that accept foreign-issued bank cards and
credit cards thet are part of the PLUS and Cirrus
networks.

Customer use of the internet has increased very
rapidly. We have expanded the range of deposit
products and mutual funds available online via
PowerDirect. We provide market information on
foreign currencies and mutual funds and send
timely information to customers to help them
make decisions regarding their savings and
investments. By maximizing the use of this
convenient, low-cost channel, we are able to hold
regular promotional campaigns offering attractive
interest rates and lower fees. This has not only
helped Shinsei become one of the leading
providers of mutual funds on the internet, but has
also established the Bank’s web site as the
premier destination in the Japanese financial
sector.

The Bank also provides a full range of services
on the telephone 24 hours a day, seven days a

week, via PowerCall.

Becoming Customers’ Bank of Choice

Shinsei has worked hard to become our customers’
bank of choice by listening to them, understanding
their needs, and delivering value and convenience
to meet these needs. As a result, the Shinsei
brand has become synonymous with excellence in
service and customer satisfaction. We value our
customers’ opinions the most, and several surveys
published during the period clearly indicate that
they are recognizing our efforts.

Shinsei Bank remains committed to Better
Banking. Our goal is to become the model for
retail banking in Japan and differentiate our
services so we maintain our clear leadership in

innovation, customer satisfaction and value.




Banking Infrastructure Group

Shinsei Bank’s goal is to maintain best-in-class technology infrastructure to drive growth, provide
optimal solutions for our customers and maintain cost leadership. In each of our business units,
technology provides Shinsei a distinct competitive advantage and improves the service and value
we offer our customers. Our automated, paperless system supports our institutional banking
business by providing credit analysis quickly and efficiently, enabling the business to take on more
customers. The flexibility and convenience of our information technology (IT) platform powers the
rapid growth of our retail banking business.

Shinsei Bank has become the industry leader in customer satisfaction, launching new products
and services that our customers want. The focus on excellence never ends. We continually review

our operations and increase the use of automated processes to ensure we have the resources to

support our growth. In fiscal 2004, we expanded the coverage of ISMS and BS7799 information

security management certifications to cover both our technology and operations.

Shinsei’s IT Platform: Flexible, Scalable

and Secure

Shinsei Bank's investment in |T over the past four
years has created a banking platform that is unique
in Japan. It was created to be flexible, enabling the
Bank to move quickly to seize opportunities and
offer new products and services to our customers.
Itis scalable, allowing the Bank to grow rapidly
without straining personnel and resources. Most
importantly, it is secure. Our customers’ personal
data is of paramount importance and they can be
assured their information is safe. The redundancy
we have built into the system ensures our
customers’ experience, whether online or at a
branch, is the best in the industry.

Our IT systems and operations are built to be
flexible and interchangeable, leveraging the
strength of existing systems and continuously
incorporating new developments and innovations.
The modular platform is designed to be continually
updated and improved. As a result, building blocks
can be added seamlessly to enable the Bank to
handle complex transactions effortlessly. The
design allows Shinsei to quickly and cheaply

update new technology or software needed to

support a new product offering. Our systems are
designed for self-service, allowing customers to
initiate and complete their transactions quickly.

As the Bank grows, our document handling
system increases efficiency and quality of service.
In 2002, Shinsei launched a digital document
capability throughout the Bank. As documents can
be viewed from any location and processed by
multiple parties simultaneously, rather than
sequentially, the process improved efficiency and
enables Shinsei to offer better service to our
customers.

We focus on safety and security and managing
all business risk. Our teams continually review our
systems for potential threats, building counter-
measures for each to ensure safety. In addition,
the Bank's technology platform has multiple levels
of redundancy, with back-up systems located in a
number of facilities. If any of our sites go down,
there are several other sites positioned to take
over to ensure the customer experience is not

interrupted.




Our endeavor is to build
technology capability that
drives business growth,
providing the best solutions
that business needs at the
lowest possible cost. A continued
focus on streamlining our
operations and increasing the
use of automated processes has
given us the capacity to service
our growth. This is our Bank's
unique ability and it will
continuously give us a
competitive edge.

Dhananjaya Dvivedi
Banking Infrastructure Group




Technology Leadership Drives Business
Growth

Shinsei Bank’s technology leadership provides
unsurpassed convenience and value for our
customers, and the Bank continually seeks new
applications of technology to offer new products
and better solutions to accelerate growth.

From its roots in the old LTCB, the institutional
banking business has been the foundation of
Shinsei Bank. Technology has supported the
business’s traditional areas and enabled new
opportunities for growth. Shinsei's paperless
environment automates credit analysis and
approval processes, making it more efficient and
cost-effective for the Bank to serve new and
existing customers. By increasing the capability to
handle securities transactions, technology played a
key role in the success of several award-winning
securitization transactions.

Our retail banking business has grown rapidly
over the past four years. This growth would not
have been possible without Shinsei's flexible and
scalable IT platform. The Bank launched a series of
innovative products and services, and the scalability
of the system provided the capacity to handle
ever-increasing customer transactions. We
continue to improve the customer experience.
Recently, we expanded our ATM services to
include customers that are members of the PLUS
and Cirrus networks. As each network has millions
of customers, we are prepared for a significant
increase in transaction volume and confident that

our IT platform can manage the growth.

Banking Intrastructure Group

Shinsei Technology Opens Up New
Opportunities

In fiscal 2004, the Bank acquired controlling
interests in APLUS and Showa Leasing,
significantly increasing its presence in the
consumer and commercial finance business. We
will use Shinsei's methods, technologies and
knowledge to transform IT operations of acquired
subsidiaries and offer improved products and
services to their customers.

We are also looking outside the Bank for
opportunities to create value from our technology,
working with institutions in Japan and overseas to
reform their IT systems and operations. In Japan,
Shinseli’s IT knowledge played a crucial role in the
restructuring of Matsuyadenki. Since 2004, we
have been advising Taiwan’s Chiao Tung Bank
(CTB) on how to transform its IT systems and
operations. Recently, CTB opened a new mode!
branch supported by Shinsei Bank's IT knowledge
and retail banking skills,

We will continue to improve our technology

infrastructure to drive Shinsei's further growth.
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Fulfilling Our Social Responsibility

Shinsei Bank’s activities take place within the society and communities where it operates, and the
Bank has a corporate social responsibility to contribute to social and financial progress. Shinsei
Bank fulfills its obligations in this area by increasing corporate value through transparent and sound

management, and by actively contributing to community and cultural initiatives.
The Bank has put in place a highly transparent management organization, rigorous internal audit

systems, and enhanced compliance and risk management procedures, all of which will help enable
Shinsei to deliver sound, sustainable performance. The Bank is also committed to working closely
with its stakeholders, including shareholders, customers, creditors, employees and local commu-
nities, in fulfilling its social responsibilities in the areas of the economy, society and the environment.
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Corporate Governance (3) implementing a rigorous compliance system,
To ensure the highest levels of transparency and

adhere to sound management principles, Shinsei
continues to strengthen its corporate governance.,
In the period under review, we took further steps

to establish our leadership in this area, including:

and
(4) increasing the disclosure of corporate

information.

Adoption of Company with Committees

(1) enhancing the decision-making and review Board Model
functions of the Board of Directors, As evidence of the Bank's commitment to
corperate governance, Shinsei adopted a Company

(2) adopting transparent management decision-
with Committees (iinkai-tou setchi-gaisha) board

making policies,




model in June 2004. This model clearly separates
the Bank’s business execution functions from its
strategy development and monitoring functions.
Within the Company with Committees structure,
Shinsei has established Nomination, Compen-
sation and Audit committees, all of which comprise
a majority of outside directors. Responsibility for
operational execution and management decisions
rests with newly appointed statutory executive
officers (shikkou-yaku). We believe that this board
model will further strengthen the audit function,
increase the speed of decision making, improve
management transparency and create long-term

value.

Strategy Development and Monitoring by

the Board

The responsibilities of the Board of Directors are to
determine long-term management strategy,
ensure that management is working to maximize
shareholder returns, and evaluate and supervise
management’s business execution. As of July 1,
2005, the Board of Directors comprised 13
independent, or outside, members with extensive
experience in business, financial and legal fields,
two Shinsei Bank executives and two former
Shinsei statutory executive officers.

The Nomination Committee selects new
candidates for directors, and the Compensation
Committee determines compensation for directors
and statutory executive officers. The Audit
Committee monitors management’s business
execution. These three committees work to
continuously improve management as well as

fiscal transparency and soundness.

Business Decisions Made by Banking
Professionals

The statutory executive officers, appointed and
monitored by the Board of Directors, are respon-
sible for running the Bank and implementing its
business strategy based on the policies set
forth by the Board of Directors. They include

ruifilling Qur Social Responsibility

experienced finance and management specialists
drawn from leading global financial services
companies. They review and discuss key issues at
the Management Committee, which serves as the
executive arm of the CEQ. Shinsei is committed to
attracting and retaining top banking professionals
regardless of nationality. As a result, as of July 1,
2005, six of the 11 statutory executive officers are
expatriates.

With the Bank specializing and expanding its
offerings, it has established cross-departmental
committees to assist senior management. Our
primary committees include ALM, Risk/invest-
ment, Credit, Compliance, New Business/Product,
SME Loan and IT committees.

Senior Advisory Roles

Since its formation in March 2000, Shinsei has
implemented a senior advisor system to provide a
channel from which to receive valuable advice on
the strategy and direction of the Bank. As of July 1,
2005, Paul A. Volcker, former chairman of the
Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System, and John S. Reed, former chairman of
Citigroup Inc., serve in this capacity. Shinsei values
their counsel, which has contributed greatly to our

Success.

Internal Audit Structure

Our Internal Audit Division was established to
perform audits of business practices. It reports
directly to the CEO, is mandated to report to the
Audit Committee and is independent of the
audited business units. The division covers all of
Shinsei's organizations and business lines, as well
as its affiliates and outsourced businesses—
except where prevented by law or banking

regulation.

Rigorous Compliance Systems Evolve to Support
Future Growth
Working within a regulated business sector that

has a high public profile, financial institutions must
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Fulfilling Our Social Responsibility

|
|

be held to the highest standards of financial and
regulatory compliance. At Shinsei, we believe a
rigorous compliance system is necessary to
manage effectively and create value. We have
instituted annual updates to our compliance
program so that it evolves and remains relevant

and effective as the Bank grows.

In fiscal 2004, in light of the introduction of new

regulations to protect personal information, Shinsei

Bank took comprehensive steps, including

Basic Policy Concerning Protection of Personal Information (Abstract)

W Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Bank shall comply with the obligations set forth in the Personal Information Protection Act and
the other laws and regulations concerning the protection of personal information and guidelines of
the competent minister and banking associations.

B Collection and Use of Personal Information

information collected shall be used appropriately within the purpose stated in “Purpose of Use of
Personal Information” and shall not be used for any other purpose.

B Purpose of Use of Personal Information

The Bank shall, under the Persenal information Protection Act, use the collected information in
connection with the businesses stated by the Bank to the extent required for the fulfillment of the
purpose of use stated by the Bank.

M Provision of Personal Information to Third Parties

The Bank shall not provide or disclose the collected personal information to any third party, except in
the following cases:

* where the consent of the customer himself/herself is obtained;

* if required under laws and ordinances;

« where handling of personal information is entrusted to an outsource upon execution of a service
agreement to the extent required for the fulfillment of the purpose of use set forth in "Purpose
of Use of Personal Information,” in such cases, the Bank shall establish appropriate criteria and
select the outsourcee pursuant to such criteria as well as conduct adeguate surveillance to
prevent any use of the personal information for purposes other than those stated, or any
divulgence, loss or damage thereof;

* where the personal information is used jointly with a specific third party as set forth in “Joint Use
of Personal Information™; or

» where provision of personal infermation is permitted under the Personal Information Protection
Act.

M Safety Management of Personal Information

The Bank shall endeavor to maintain the accuracy of personal information and to keep it updated. In

addition, the Bank shall take the appropriate safety management measures, without limitation, for

the prevention of loss, divulgence cr damage of personal information, which shall be reviewed from

time to time as may be necessary.

W Measures against Complaints Concerning Handling of Personal Information

In the case where any complaint is made to the Bank in relation to the handling of personal

information, the Bank shall examine the details and endeavor to handle the complaint appropriately

and promptly within a reasonable length of time.

W Request for Disclosure and Amendment of Personal information

Customers may request disclosure or amendments of their own personal information at all times

through the prescribed procedures of the Bank.

M Practicing Continuous Improvement of “Basic Policy Concerning Protection of Personal
Information”

The Bank shall continuously review the “Basic Policy Concerning Protection of Personal Information”

and any related internal rules and endeavor to improve the handling of customers’ personal

information.
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e-learning seminars, to fully familiarize employees
with the outline and details of these important
rules. Shinsei considers training programs as
essential to ensure strict compliance and broad
awareness among its employees. The Bank
provides continuous, specific training on such
important topics as money laundering and insider
trading prevention, as well as compliance issues
relating to corporate, financial institutions and retail

customers.

Integrated Risk Management

Risks assumed by financial institutions include
credit risk, market risk and operational risk,
inciuding operations risk, systems risk and legal
and compliance risks.,

At Shinsei, risk management is pivotal to the
provision of sound and profitable financial services.
We have implemented a Risk Management Policy
covering our entire operations. Risk is assessed at
“the source of business,” and risk levels are
determined using both a macro approach (for
capital and resource allocation and review) and a
disciplined operating management framewaork (a
progressively decentralized approval process).
With the Risk Management Policy now in place,
the restructuring of the various individual risk
control policies and procedures is complete.

To comprehensively manage risk, it is essential
to understand how risk affects the Bank as a
whole and to quantify it as much as possible. The
Risk Capital System is implemented to maintain
the optimal balance between the Bank’s financial
strength and its ability to assume risk. This was
achieved by monitoring the total volume of risk
and the amount of capital ellocated 10 each
business.

At Shinsei, each business division executes
risk controls in accordance with the policies
established by the various risk control committees
commissioned by management. The committees
then report to the head of the Risk Management
Group.




Shinsei Gives Back: Contributing to Social and

Cultural Programs

Shinsei Bank is committed to supporting
organizations and activities that promote social

and cultural progress.

Social and Cultural Contributions

To structure social and cultural contributions by
Shinsei Bank, its officers and employees, Shinsei
Bank has established specific internals guidelines
and policies.

To impl'ement these guidelines, the Social and
Cultural Contribution Promotion Committee,
chaired by the president, works closely with the
management and other related divisions, including

the Human Resources Division.

Major Activities in Fiscal 2004
B Special Olympics
Shinsei Bank supports the Special Olympics, an
international sports organization providing year-
round sports training and athletic competition.

At the 2005 Special Olympics World Winter
Games held in Nagano from February 26 to March

Social and Cultural Contribution Guidelines

Fulfilling Our Social Responsibility

5, 2005, 81 Shinsei officers and employees and
their families volunteered at M-Wave, the Nagano
Olyrmpic Memorial Arena, where the opening and
closing ceremonies and speed skating were held.

About 2,500 athletes representing over 80
countries and regions of the world competed in
seven events: alpine skiing, cross-country skiing,
snowboarding, snowshoeing, speed skating, figure
skating and floor hockey.

In December 2004, Shinsei Bank hosted a

Shinsei employees serving meals to
athletes at the 2005 Special Olympics
World Winter Games

Christmas party at our Head Oifice to cheer on
Special Olympics athletes. The athletes who
attended included members of the Japanese
delegation of the 2005 Special Olympics World
Winter Games.

W 2004 New York Philharmonic Tour of Japan
In 2004, Shinsei Bank supported the Japan tour of
the New York Philharmonic, the oldest symphony
orchestra in the United States and one of the

oldest and most distinguished orchestras in-the

world, :
Music Director Lorin Maaze! conducting

the New York Philharmonic in Japan
(Photo: New York Phitharmonic)

The tour was a memorable event for the New
York Philharmonic as its new Music Director, Mr.

Lorin Maazel, led the orchestra in Japan for the

1. Shinsei Bank has a corporate social responsibility as a member of society to contribute to progress

toward a further affluent society.

2. Shinsei Bank fulfills its corporate social responsibility by (1) contributing to social progress by
increasing corporate value through highly transparent and sound management as well as stable
and long-term profit growth, and (2) implementing social and cultural contributions as a member of

society.

3. Shinsei Bank actively and continuously performs social and cultural contribution activities in areas

where its resources can be effectively utilized.

4. Shinsei Bank actively supports the participation of its officers and employees in social and cultural

contribution activities.

To encourage its officers and employees to participate in social and cultural contribution activities,
Shinsei Bank has established the following programs:

o Volunteer holidays

When officers and employees volunteer to participate in social and cultural contribution activities,

they can take volunteer holidays.
o Matching gift program

When officers and employees make individual contributions to social and cultural contribution
activities, Shinsei Bank matches such contributions.
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Hibiya Kids Park day care facility
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Fulfilling Qur Social Responsibility

first time. Seven concerts were held in Tokyo,
Nagoya and Fukui in October 2004, entertaining

audiences throughout Japan.

W Contributions to Victims of the Niigata Chuetsu
Earthquake and the Asian Tsunami Disaster
In November 2004, Shinsei Bank donated
¥8,204,000 to Niigata Community Chest, a
charitable organization set up to support rescue
and recovery efforts of victims of earthquakes in
Niigata Prefecture. Shinsel officers and employees
donated ¥4,102,000, and the Bank made a 100%
matching donation to the same organization.
Furthermore, in December 2004, Shinsei Bank
provided ¥7,200,000, including monetary
contributions from our officers and employees, to
the Japanese Red Cross Society to support the

victims of the Asian tsunami disaster.

W The US-Japan Bridging Foundation

Shinsei Bank supports the fostering of under-
standing and appreciation between other countries
and Japan. One organization at the forefront of
promoting closer ties is the US-Japan Bridging
Foundation. Launched in 1998 by the
Japan-United States Friendship Commission, the
foundation is a public-private partnership that
provides scholarships to American undergrad-
uates. lts goal is to increase the number of
American undergraduates studying and matric-
ulating in Japanese universities. Shinsei is proud to
offer its support to this organization and play a role
in increasing the knowledge and awareness

between Japan and the United States.

B Run for the Cure 2004

A total of 43 Shinsei employees participated in the

2004 chanty run/walk event Run for the Cure,

which was held on October 2004 to enhance

awareness of breast cancer and its research.
About 500 people participated in the event,

which was sponsored by the Run for the Cure

Foundation, an organization that funds research as

well as the enhancement of people’'s awareness
of breast cancer. Shinsei Bank made a matching
donation of ¥200,000 to the Foundation, the

equivalent amount of the entry fees paid by its

employees.

Better Banking Requires the Best People

To create a competitive corporate culture that will
increase corporate value and attract and retain the
most qualified employees, we have adopted a
personnel system based on three components:

» performance-based compensation,

e decentralized staffing authority, and

¢ active lateral career recruitment.

To maximize resource allocation, we have given
each business group the authority to recruit, train,
compensate and promote its own employees. Our
objective is to better coordinate the allocation of
human resources with the specific nature and
needs of each business activity and reward
success. To enhance the impact of Shinsei's
performance-based compensation, we have
abolished the seniority system and revised the
retirement benefit program. We have also
introduced a stock option program to tie
remuneration 1o the creation of value for our
sharehoiders.

Shinsei has expanded the scope of employee
training to include specialized group training for
specific relevant business knowledge and skills, as
well as programs to evaluate performance. To
assist our employees and attract talented female
professionals who are also raising young children,
we have opened an on-site day care facility called
Hibiya Kids Park, as the first bank to launch such a
facility in Japan. Shinsei is leading in efforts to
attract and promote female managers. In
December 2003, we launched the Women's
Leadership Project, a professional networking and
leadership program for employees. As a result of
our efforts, we won an excellent firm award from
the director-general of the Tokyo Labour Bureau

and received the Commendation for Enterprises




Promoting Equal Employment by the Ministry of
Health, Labour and Welfare in June 2004.

Shinsei has increased its lateral career
recruitment activity, primarily in the fields of
financial engineering, risk control, IT and retail
banking. Since the establishment of the new
management team in March 2000, we have
actively recruited approximately 940 mid-career
employees from outside Shinsei to provide
specific skills and expertise. About 110 of these
new hires were expatriates. We continue to seek
new graduates, recruiting 41 in April 2005.

As the Bank continues to grow, Shinsei is
working aggressively to manage its expenses.
We constantly review ways to further improve
efficiency in personnel management. We have
outsourced some human resources and general
service activities that can be more efficiently
conducted by third parties and have successfully
adopted web-based attendance, performance

evaluation and payroll statement systems.

Reducing Environmental Impact

Shinsei Bank cares about the local community
and is working to reduce the environmental

impact of its activities.

Lowering Paper Consumption

At Shinsei Bank, two-sided copy and recycled
paper are recommended to reduce paper usage
and wastepaper. Shinsei also promotes the
reduction and digitization of presentation materials
and flyers for external use, as well as computer-

ized data for internal information exchange.

Promoting “Green” Purchasing

Shinsei Bank practices “green” purchasing in
selecting office supplies and prefers environment-
conscious products. The presence of Eco Mark—
environmental labels certified independently by
manufacturers and organizations—and use of

recycled materials are considered when

FUImiing Vur SocCial mesponsioiity

purchasing. In February 2002, the Bank started
providing its employees with furniture in
compliance with laws on promoting green
purchasing, and we continue to purchase

recyclable products.

Separating Wastepaper and Other Trash
In accordance with trash separation standards set
by each local organization, Shinsei Bank thoroughly

separates wastepaper and other trash.

Industrial waste

For recycling

Copy paper, office E Bottles, cans, Kitchen garbage Metal, plastic,
automation (CA) |  polyethylene oversize garbage,
paper, magazines, Eterephthalate (PET) medical waste
newspapers, E bottles
cardboard, X
shredder dust E

Data on Environmental Impact

Shinsei Bank has been making efforts to save
energy and natura! resources. Since fiscal 2002,
we have been conducting research that assesses
our performance in reducing environmental
impact. In many categories, we have become

more efficient and effective in what we consume.

Years ended March 31 2005 2004 2003
Electricity, gas (Unit: Megajoules) 44,137,789 45,972,036 108,147,524
Water (Unit: 1,000 m3) 16,433 15,441 20,186
CO: emissions (Unit: Tons) 1,900 2,148 4,492
Waste disposal (Unit: Tons) 550 413 418
Amount of recycled material (Unit: Tons) 268 190 200
Final waste disposal 282 223 218

Notes:

(1) Based on the ratio of occupied space by the Bank to total space, excluding space occupied by
tenants.

{2) Electricity, gas and water: Based on the regulations set by the Tokyo Metropolitan Government as
global warming countermeasures.

(3) Waste disposal: Based on the regulations set by Chivoda-ku, Tokyo.
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuits of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our consolidated and non-consolidated financial statements
prepared in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in Japan (“Japanese GAAP") for banks,
including the notes to those financial statements, included elsewhere in this annual report. Except as otherwise indicated, the
financial information in the following discussion is based on our consolidated financial statements.

The discussion below contains forward-looking statements regarding the intent, belief or current expectations of manage-
ment with respect to our financial condition and future results of operations. In many cases, but not all, we use such words as

(1T (1T} hiy

"“anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,

expect,” “intend,” “plan,” “probability,

LI}

risk” and similar expressions in relation to us or

our management to identify forward-looking statements. These statements reflect our current views with respect to future events
and are subject to certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize,
or should underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary materially from those we currently anticipate or aim

at. We do not intend to update these forward-looking statements.

In this section, except where the context indicates otherwise, “we” or “our” means Shinsei Bank, Limited and its
subsidiaries and affiliates accounted for by the equity method, and “Shinsei” or “the Bank” refers to Shinsei Bank alone.
Financial and operational data that are stated in multiples of ¥0.1 billion have been truncated. All percentages have been

rounded to the nearest 0.1%.

“Fiscal 2004 refers to our fiscal year ended March 31, 2005, and other fiscal years are referred to similarly.

Shinsei Bank, Limited is a leading diversified financial
institution operating principatly in Japan. Guided by global
standards of management and governance, we are bringing
innovative banking practices to the Japanese market by pro-
viding a full range of financial services and products with an
emphasis on commercial lending, non-recourse lending,
credit trading, securitization, corporate advisory services for
institutional customers, and retail banking and consumer
finance services for individuals. We substantially expanded
our consumer and commercial finance operations during the
year ended March 31, 2005 through the acquisitions of
APLUS Co., Ltd., in September 2004 and Showa Leasing
Co., Ltd., in March 2005.

tn the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005, we made
significant progress in diversifying our revenue sources,
increasing the contribution of non-interest income and
deploying excess capital in value-enhancing opportunities.
Over the period, we were able to:

* grow revenues in our institutional banking business,
particularly in the areas of non-recourse lending,
securitization and credit trading, with products intro-
duced in the last four years accounting for more than
60% of revenues;

* continue strong growth in our retail banking business
while continually increasing product offerings and
strengthening our distribution channels;

¢ transform our consumer and commercial finance
business through the acquisition of the customer
base, experienced personnel and technical
capabilities of APLUS; and

* reduce our non-performing claims to 1.4% (non-
consolidated) of total claims with a total coverage
ratio of 94.3%.

As a result, our net income increased by 1.6% to ¥67.4
billion, and non-interest income rose to 62.4% of total rev-
enue as compared to 53.7% in the previous year. Diluted
net income per share for the year were ¥34,98, an increase
of approximately 7% from fiscal 2003.

In addition to net income calculated on the basis of
Japanese GAAP, we also report cash basis net income on a
voluntary basis in order to provide greater transparency and
understanding of our underlying performance. For fiscal
2004, consolidated cash basis net income was ¥74.7 bil-
tion, an increase of over 12% compared to the previous
year. Cash basis net income is calculated by excluding
amortization of acquired goodwill and intangible assets, net
of tax benefit, from net income under Japanese GAAP. The
acquisition of APLUS and Showa Leasing resulted in the
creation of acquired goodwill and intangible assets that,
under Japanese accounting rules, are being amortized over
periods ranging between 10 and 20 years. The combined
balance of such acquired goodwill and intangible assets at
March 31, 2005 was ¥322 billion, with approximately
¥261 billion attributable to the acquisition of APLUS and
approximately ¥61 billion attributable to the acquisition of
Showa Leasing. We expect amortization of approximately
¥30 billion in the year ending March 31, 2006.

Our balance sheet continued to strengthen as a result of
the improved quality of our loan portfolio and greater diver-
sification of interest bearing liabilities. As of March 31,
2005, retail deposits and debentures accounted for 58.8%
of total customer funding with retail deposits accounting for
48.1% of the total and retail debentures representing the
balance. The quality of our loan portfolio improved as
balances of lower-rated and non-performing loans were
reduced.
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Following our successful initial public offering in fiscal
2003, we also completed a major secondary share offering
on February 17, 2005. Prior to the secondary offering, our
controlling shareholder, New LTCB Partners C.V., distributed
most of its shareholdings to its investors. The investors, in
turn, sold an aggregate of 36.9% of our outstanding
common shares in the offering.

Acquired goodwill is referred to as “consolidation good-
will” in the financial statements,

Economic Environment in Japan

The financial and economic environment in Japan contin-
ued to show signs of gradual recovery during the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2005. The real gross domestic product
growth rate for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005 was

Principal Economic Indicators

Major Interest Rates
(%)

1.9% which represents positive growth for the third con-
secutive fiscal year. Much of this continued growth is
attributable to strong capital expenditures and exports. Not-
withstanding recent growth, however, there remain signifi-
cant concerns over continued deflation, and high
unemployment.

The Bank of Japan continued its efforts to combat defla-
tion through its quantitative easing policy resulting in short-
term interest rates remaining at near zero percent. The yield
on 10-year government bonds, used as a benchmark for
long-term interest rates decreased slightly to 1.2% as of the
end of April 2005.

Share prices peaked early in the fiscal year when the
Nikkei-225 stock average topped 12,000 in April but
declined shortly thereafter on fears of a weak economic
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recovery. The Nikkei-225 stock average remained around
the 11,000 level for the rest of the year. In the foreign
exchange markets, the yen gradually weakened on average
from approximately ¥103 per U.S. doilar as of March 31,
2004 to approximately ¥107 per U.S. dollar as of

March 31, 2005.

The major banking groups of Japan succeeded in reach-
ing the Japanese government's target of halving their bad
loan ratios to 4% by the end of this fiscal year. This marks a
new phase in the competitive landscape in Japan as banks
shift their focus from strengthening their balance sheets 1o
increasing earnings and providing customers with a wider
variety of services.

Significant Transactions

Acquisition of APLUS

On September 29, 2004, we acquired 129,653,631 shares
of newly issued common stock of APLUS for ¥35.0 billion
giving us ownership of approximately 67% of the common
stock of APLUS. At the same time, we purchased APLUS
preferred shares from UFJ Bank for ¥30.0 billion. In order
o create a stronger financial foundation for future growth,
APLUS issued an additional ¥241.0 billion of preferred
stock on February 28, 2005, ¥196.0 billion of which was
purchased by YMS6, a wholly owned subsidiary of Shinsei.
Subsequently, YMS6 sold ¥7.5 biltion of the preferred stock
resulting in ¥188.5 billion outstanding preferred stock
being held by YMS6 as of March 31, 2005. APLUS's com-
mon stock is listed on the First Section of the Osaka
Securities Exchange. As of March 31, 2005, APLUS had
64 branches and over 4.2 million customers with APLUS
partner or APLUS credit cards, and had issued approxi-
mately one million loan cards, As of such date, APLUS had
consolidated total assets of ¥1,667.0 billion, including
¥1,020.3 billion of credit guarantees for installment pay-
ments receivable, as well as ¥485.0 billion of instaliment
payments receivable that include credit card and loan card
loans that we record as part of our loans and bilts dis-
counted in our consolidated financial statements.

Although approximately 33.0% of APLUS’s commaon
stock is held by minority shareholders, none of APLUS’s
income will be attributed to minority common shareholders
until such time as the aggregate amount of APLUS's cumu-
lative net income subsequent to September 30, 2004, less
dividends on preferred stock paid, and net asset fair value
after capital injection exceeds the aggregate amount of the
preferred stock of APLUS.

Acquisition of Showa Leasing
in January 2009, we agreed to form an alliance with Showa
Leasing Co., Ltd. In order to focus on its core operations,

Management's Discussion and Analysts of Financial Condition and Results of Operations s

Showa Leasing sold non-core assets with a book value of
¥38.6 billion during the year ended March 31, 2005,
incurring aggregate losses of ¥32.0 billion. in addition, in
order to harmonize its accounting standards with those of
Shinsei Bank, Showa Leasing also adopted asset impair-
ment accounting and recognized ¥22.9 billion in impair-
ment losses on, among other things, its head office,
dormitories, and subsidiaries’ shares and also provided an
additional ¥1.2 billion in loan loss reserves and recognized
an additional ¥3.2 billion in depreciation of ieased assets.
Showa Leasing also provided a valuation allowance for the
full amount of its ¥6.5 billion in deferred tax assets.

In addition to the series of measures discussed above, on
March 23, 2005, Shinsei Bank invested ¥63.9 billion in
purchasing 233 million shares of Showa Leasing as a third
party allotment and bought approximately 20 million shares
from existing stockholders for ¥6.0 billion. As a result,
Shinsei owns approximately 96% of Showa Leasing shares.
This capital support significantly strengthened Showa
Leasing’s financial condition and is expected to contribute
to a reduction in its funding costs and a higher credit
rating.

In the consoclidation of Showa Leasing into Shinsei
Bank's consclidated financial statements for the period
ended March 31, 2005, the consolidated assets and liabili-
ties of Showa Leasing were stated at their fair values. As a
result, ¥51.2 billion in acquired goodwill and ¥10.1 billion
in intangible assets were recorded in our consolidated finan-
cial statements. The acquired goodwill will be amortized by
the straight line method over 20 years and the intangible
assets will be amortized by the straight-line method or the
sum-of-the-year’s-digits method over a period of 10 to 20
years.

Currently, we are developing a business tie-up with the
Norinchukin Bank in the general leasing and auto leasing
businesses. The business tie-up is aimed at enhancing the
long-term growth prospects of Showa Leasing and Kyodo
Leasing Co., Lid., a leasing subsidiary of Norinchukin Bank,
by realizing synergies in the two companies’ marketing and
administrative operations.

Conversion from a Long-Term Credit Bank to an Ordinary Bank
We converted our long-term credit bank charter to an ordi-
nary bank charter on April 1, 2004. We believe that operat-
ing an ordinary bank has eliminated several restrictions
applicable to long-term credit banks and not applicable to
ordinary banks thereby improving our competitiveness. In
particular, we believe that we are able to more freely accept
deposits from customers without having to offer them
debentures, on which we have paid higher rates than our
deposits. See “—Results of Operations” and “—Funding

33




~ Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

34

and Liquidity—Funding Liquidity Management.” Converting
to an ordinary bank has also enabled us to extend long-term
loans to customers, including retail customers, without hav-
ing to comply with special rules concerning loan security
and repayment terms that are applicable only to long-term
credit banks.

The Financial Services Agency (FSA) allowed us to retain
the ability to issue debentures without registration, which is
one of the benefits we enjoyed as a long-term credit bank,
for a period of ten years following conversion in April 2004.

Reduction in Non-Performing Claims and Expiration of
Cancellation Right to the DIC

Following the sale of our common shares by the Japanese
government to private investors in March 2000, our man-
agement accorded the highest priority to improving the
quality of our loan portfolio. We reduced our balance of non-
performing claims from ¥1,864.7 billion as of March 31,
2000 to ¥51.7 billion as of March 31, 2005. Over that
period, we disposed of ¥1,812.9 billion of non-performing
claims, including ¥45.5 billion in the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2005. We made the disposals through sales,
collections and write-offs, as well as the return of claims to
the Deposit Insurance Corporation of Japan, or DIC, under
the terms of the original share purchase agreement. See
“—Financial Condition—Asset Quality and Disposal of
Problem Loans—Disposal of Problem Claims.” The cancel-
lation right allowed us under specified circumstances to
return all of an obligor’s loan-related assets to the DIC using
the original value of the assets, net of collected principal
and loan loss reserves as of immediately prior to the share
acquisition.

Approximately 58.5% of the non-performing claims we
disposed of over the four-year period were returned to and
accepted by the DIC under the cancelliation right. The right
expired on the third anniversary of March 1, 2000, and all
disputes regarding exercise of the right with the DIC were
resolved in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005.

Glohal Settlement of Claims Relating to EIE International

On May 23, 2004, we entered into a global settlement with
the bankruptcy trustee for EIE International Corporation, a
real estate developer, with respect to disputes arising from
tending to EIE International by our predecessor, The Long-
Term Credit Bank of Japan, Limited, or LTCB. This resulted
in part from the trustee moving to reinstate litigation in
Saipan that had initially been filed in July 2001. Under the
terms of the settlement, we paid the trustee ¥21.8 billion
on June 16, 2004. The DIC, in connection with the sale of
our shares under the original share purchase agreement to
private investcrs, agreed to indemnify us for losses arising

from legal proceedings brought after March 1, 2000 relat-
ing to the conduct of LTCB prior to that date. On December
27, 2004, we sought indemnity from the DIC for approxi-
mately ¥15.0 billion in connection with this litigation as
well as other indemnifiable claims, after taking into account
the ¥5.0 billion threshold amount and other factors accord-
ing to the share purchase agreement. On Aprii 28, 2005,
DIC notified us that our indemnification claim includes both
indemnifiable amounts as well as unindemnifiable amounts
and unless the indemnifiable amounts are clearly separated,
the DIC will not accept our claim. We have provided ¥4.5
billion in additional specific reserves for other credit losses
related to this dispute in the fiscal year ended March 31,
2005. The Bank has determined to take legal action against
the DIC to seek performance under the indemnity.

Sales of Japanese Equities

Upon our emergence from temporary nationalization in
March 2000, we transferred to the DIC LTCB's existing port-
folio of approximately ¥2.3 trillion in Japanese equities.
The DIC entrusted these shares to our trust bank subsidiary
for a period of five years and granted us an ongoing option
to repurchase them. We record net gains from the exercise
of the call option, the resale of the underlying equity securi-
ties and related derivative transactions, which at times have
been significant, within other business income or losses, as
a component of income on monetary assets held in trust.
The five-year option period expired in March 2005,
although refusals on the part of the DIC to sell particular
shares have resulted in one-year extensions with respect to
such shares from the date of refusal. We have informed the
DIC, and the DIC has acknowledged, that we will request
that the option be extended over shares of any given com-
pany only once, so iong as we conduct any repurchase dur-
ing the period the option is extended pursuant to our prior
agreement with the DIC.

Pension Plans

After combining a non-contributory defined benefit welfare
pension plan and a non-contributory tax qualified defined
benefit pension plan, Shinsei maintains a non-contributory
defined benefit pension plan. In the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2003, we recorded a ¥3.0 billion gain as a
result of Shinsei's receipt of approval on September 18,
2002 from the Japanese government of an exemption from
the obligations for benefits relating to future employee ser-
vice relating to the portion of the pension assets that it
managed on the government’s behaif as part of its employ-
ees’ public welfare plans. In light of the mounting pension
liabilities that companies bore as a result of the continuing
low-interest environment and weakness in the Japanese




stock market, the government enacted legislation in June
2001 that permitted Japanese companies to return to the
government any pension assets covering their employees’
public welfare pension obligations that they managed on the
government’s behalf. The fiscal year ended March 31, 2003
was the first fiscal year in which the government approved
these returns. On March 1, 2004, we obtained approval of
an exemption from our obligation to pay benefits for past
employee services related to the portion of the public wel-
fare pension assets that it managed on the government's
behalf. No additional gain was recorded as a result of this
approval. During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005, we
completed the return of the reievant pension assets.
Separate from Shinsei’s pension plan for its employees,
APLUS and Showa Leasing maintain non-contributory
defined benefit pension plans and severance indemnity
plans for their employees. Also, some of Shinsei Bank's
other subsidiaries maintain severance indemnity plans.

Participation in the Industrial Revitalization Corporation of
Japan

Pursuant to the Industrial Revival Law, the DIC established
the Industrial Revitalization Corporation, or IRC, in April
2003. Japanese banking corporations, including us, volun-
tarily invested an aggregate of ¥50 billion to capitalize the
IRC through the DIC. Our investment amount of ¥250
million is recorded in other assets.

The IRC's mandate is to identify substandard cbligors
that are good candidates for revitalization. Once a company
is selected for support, the IRC will acquire its outstanding
loans from lenders and, typically with one or more private
sector sponsors, support the company’s restructuring in
order to recover its investments within three years. The IRC
is initially expected to operate for approximately five years.
In the case of a deficit at the end of that pericd, the
Japanese government may support the IRC.
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Recent Developments

Stock Options to Directors and Other Staff of Shinsei and its
Subsidiaries

In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004, we issued 9,641
stock acquisition rights as stock options to directors (except
for outside directors), statutory executive officers (shikkou-
yaku) and employees of Shinsei as well as directors (except
for outside directors) and empioyees of our wholly owned
subsidiaries; 9,455 of them have an exercise price of ¥684
per share of common stock, 161 have an exercise price of
¥646 and 25 have an exercise price of ¥697. We aiso
issued 250 stock acquisition rights with an exercise price of
¥551 on June 1, 2005. Such stock acquisition right repre-
sents the right to acquire 1,000 common shares and the
exercise period of the stock acquisition rights is from July 1,
2006 to June 23, 2014,

At our annual general meeting of shareholders on June
24, 2005, we obtained approval for the issuance of stock
acquisition rights as stock options to directors, statutory
executive officers (shikkou-yaku) and employees of Shinsei
as well as directors and employees of our wholly owned sub-
sidiaries. Up to 24,000 stock acquisition rights, each repre-
senting the right to acquire 1,000 common shares, may be
allocated in the aggregate under this approval. We have
already issued 9,626 of the stock acquisition rights with an
exercise price of ¥601. The exercise period of 6,209 stock
acquisition rights is from July 1, 2007 to June 23, 2015
and 3,417 stock acquisition rights is from July 1, 2005 to
June 23, 2015,
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Financial Highlights

Shinsei Bank, Limited, and Consolidated Subsidiaries

As of or for the fiscal yzars ended March 31, 2005, 2004, 2003, 2002 and 2001

Selected Financial Data (Consolidated)

Billions of yen (except per share data and percentages)

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
income statement data:
Net interest income ¥ 66.8 ¥ 571 ¥ 66.1 ¥ 884 ¥ 85.8
Net fees and commissions 42.3 18.9 16.5 7.8 10.5
Net trading income 23.9 2.7 8.5 1.7 4.6
Net other business income 44.5 44,6 16.5 22.4 1.0
Total revenue 177.8 123.5 107.7 120.4 102.1
Total general and administrative expenses 97.3 70.1 69.7 69.5 63.8
Net credit (recoveries) costs (0.8) (15.4) (8.6} 1.0 (5.9}
Amortization of acquired goodwill and intangible assets (8.8) (0.0) — (0.6) (0.2)
Other gains (losses), net (7.0} 0.1 0.2) (8.8) 47.0
Income before income taxes and minority interests 65.5 68.9 46.3 40.3 90.9
Current income taxes 1.4 14 0.8 0.3 0.4
Deferred income tax (benefit) (3.4) 11 (7.5) (21.2) 0.0
Minority interests in net (loss) income of subsidiaries 0.1 (0.0) 0.0 0.0 (0.0}
Net income ¥ 674 ¥ 664 ¥ 530 ¥ 61.2 ¥ 90.4
Balance sheet data:
Trading assets ¥ 168.5 ¥ 635.0 ¥ 361.1 ¥ 4439 ¥ 3822
Securities 1,478.2 1,483.2 1,770.9 1,462.2 1,988.5
Loans and bills discounted 3,430.4 3,047.0 3,502.3 4,801.9 6,187.3
Customers’ liabilities for acceptances and guarantees 1,058.1 38.3 50.5 114.4 172.2
Reserve for credit losses (149.7) (177.9) (216.5) (370.0) (663.8)
Total assets 8,576.3 6,343.7 6,706.9 8,069.5 9,485.7
Deposits, including negotiable certificates of deposit 3,452.8 2,734.4 2,576.9 2,260.7 3,218.8
Debentures 1,242.6 1,358.0 1,884.3 2,730.4 3,480.2
Borrowed money 1,160.2 3344 336.8 459.2 550.8
Trading liabilities 69.1 92.2 117.4 173.5 253.6
Total liabilities 7,735.7 5,612.7 6,026.9 7,445.9 8,902.8
Customers’ liabilities and guarantees 1,058.1 38.3 50.5 114.4 172.2
Minority interests in subsidiaries 53.8 0.9 0.1 0.0 —
Capital stock 451.2 451.2 451.2 451.2 451.2
Total shareholders’ equity 786.6 730.0 679.8 623.5 582.8
Total liabilities, minority interests in subsidiaries and
shareholders’ equity 8,576.3 6,343.7 6,706.9 8,069.5 9,485.7
Per share data (in yen!!):
Common shareholders’ equity ¥ 329.65 ¥ 287.94 ¥ 249.59 ¥211.00 ¥ 181.05
Fully diluted shareholders' equity® 390.06 378.70 335.28 307.51 287.45
Basic net income 46.78 46.03 36.18 42.21 63.74
Diluted net income 34,98 32.75 26.15 30.19 4271
Capital adequacy data:
Tier | capitaf ratio 7.0% 16.2% 14.3% 10.7% 8.5%
Total capital adequacy ratio 11.8% 21.1% 20.1% 17.0% 17.0%
Average balance data:
Securities ¥1,509.4 ¥1,618.1 ¥1,988.3 ¥1,947.1 ¥ 2,751.5
Loans and bills discounted 3,083.9 3,124.0 4,008.6 5,512.4 7,258.9
Total assets 7,460.0 6,525.3 7,388.2 8,777.6 11,346.2
Interest bearing liabilities 5,216.0 4,879.8 6,313.1 7,066.9 9,862.5
Total liabilities and minority interests in subsidiaries 8,701.7 5,820.4 6,736.6 8,174.5 10,818.0
Shareholders’ equity 758.3 704.9 651.6 603.1 528.2
Other data:
Return on assets 0.9% 1.0% 0.7% 0.7% 0.8%
Return on equity (fully diluted) 8.9% 9.4% 8.1% 10.2% 17.1%
Ratio of equity to total assets 10.2% 10.8% 8.8% 6.9% 4.7%
Ratio of deposits, including negotiable certificates of
deposit, to total liabilities 44.6% 48,7% 42.8% 30.4% 36.2%
Net interest margin 1.3% 1.1% 1.0% 1.1% 0.8%
- Qverhead ratio™ 54.7% 56.8% 64.7% 57.7% 62.5%
Non-performing claims, non-consolidated ¥51.7 ¥97.3 ¥233.2 ¥1,113.6 ¥ 1,296.0
Ratio of non-performing claims to total claims, non-consolidated 1.4% 2.8% 5.7% 20.0% 19.0%
Net deferred tax assets ¥4.3 ¥22.8 ¥18.4 ¥17.6 ¥0.0
Net deferred tax assets as a percentage of Tier | capital 0.9% 3.2% 2.8% 2.9% 0.0%

Notes:

(1) On June 25, 2003, Shinsei's common shareholders approved a 1-for-2 reverse stock split, which was consummated on July 29, 2003. The per share data is
presented as if the reverse stock split had been consummated at the beginning of the periods presented.

(2) Fully diluted shareholders’ equity per share is calculated by dividing shareholders’ equity at the end of the periods presented by the number of common
shares that would have been outstanding had all securities convertible into or exercisable for common shares been converted or exercised with an applicable
conversion or exercise price within the predetermined range at the end of the peried.

(3) The overhead ratio is calculated by dividing general and administrative expenses for the periods presented by the total revenue for such periods,
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We recorded amortization of acquired goodwill and intan- cash basis net income, which excludes the amortization of
gible assets of ¥8.8 billion associated with the acquisition acquired goodwill and intangible assets, net of tax benefit,
of APLUS in the year ended March 31, 2005. We expect in our earnings announcements. Gur cash basis net income
amortization of approximately ¥30 billion in the year ending for the year ended March 31, 2005 was ¥74.7 billion, an
March 31, 2006 resulting from the acquisitions of APLUS increase of 12.5% compared to the prior year. A reconcilia-
and Showa Leasing. To provide greater transparency and tion of various earnings measures from our results reported
understanding of our underlying performance, we disclose under Japanese GAAP to a cash basis is given below.

Supplemental Financial Data and Reconciliations to Japanese GAAP Measures
Shinsei Bank Limited and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Billions of yen

(except per share data
For the year ended March 31, 2005 and percentages)

Arnortization of acquired goodwill and intangible assets

Amortization of intangible assets ¥ 3.9

Associated deferred tax liability (1.5)

Amortization of acquired goodwill 4.9
Total amortization of acquired goodwill and intangible assets, net of of tax benefit 7.2
Reconciliation of net income to cash basis net income

Net income 67.4

Total amortization of acquired goodwill and intangible assets, net of of tax benefit 7.2
Cash basis net income 74.7
Reconciliation of basic net income to cash basis basic net income

Basic net income per share 46.78

Effect of amortization of acquired goodwill and intangible assets, net of tax benefit 5.36
Cash basis basic net income per share 52.15
Reconcitiation of diluted net income to cash basis diluted net income

Diluted net income per share 34.98

Effect of amortization of acquired goodwill and intangible assets, net of tax benefit 3.78
Cash basis diluted net income per share 38.76
Reconciliation of return on assets to cash basis return on assets

Return on assets 0.9%

Effect of amortization of acquired goodwill and intangible assets, net of tax benefit 0.1%
Cash basis return on assets 1.0%
Reconciliation of return on equity to cash basis return on equity

Return on equity (fully diluted) 8.9%

Effect of amortization of acquired goodwill and intangible assets, net of tax benefit 1.0%
Cash basis return on equity (fully diluted) 9.8%
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Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2005 Compared with Fiscal
Year Ended March 31, 2004

In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005, total revenue
increased 44.0% to ¥177.8 billion, led by non-interest
income that increased to ¥110.9 billion, up from ¥66.3 bil-
lion the previous year. Non-interest income has grown to
62.4% of total revenue, a trend that has continued steadily
over the past four years. Revenue growth was achieved in alil
three core business lines as described in the “—Overview—"
section. The institutional banking group achieved significant
revenue from an increase in non-recourse lending and credit
trading activities. The retail banking group generated sub-
stantial non-interest income from its structured deposits
products. The consumer and commercial finance sub-group
included revenue of APLUS, a newly acquired subsidiary, for
the second half of the current fiscal year. APLUS provides a
diversified range of consumer finance services and products
through its five principal businesses: installment credit,
credit cards, loan cards, loan guarantees, and billing
settlement services.

APLUS's revenues on a typical transaction consist of an
installment payment fee paid by the consumer, which is
analogous to interest on a loan, together with the participat-
ing merchant’s payment of a handling charge. APLUS has
adopted a “partner card"” strategy, in which it extends credit
not only to customers using its own credit cards, but also on
credit cards issued by APLUS on behaif of partner mer-
chants. When an APLUS card customer uses a credit card,
APLUS receives a fee from the participating merchant,
together with interest income in the case of instaliment or
revolving payments by the customer. APLUS also earns in-
terest income when the customer obtains cash advances on
the credit card, if they are made available. APLUS also pro-
vides unsecured consumer finance credit through loan
cards. In addition to providing financing itself, APLUS also
extends credit in the form of guarantees. The most signifi-
cant component of APLUS's guarantee business is providing
guarantees on installment shopping credit provided by other
lenders to customers of APLUS's partner merchants.

Our general and administrative expenses increased by
¥27.1 billion to ¥97.3 billion in fiscal 2004 largely due to
acquisition of APLUS and growth in retail banking distribu-
tion channels, and increased marketing and customer
driven transactional activities. In fiscal 2004, our expense
to revenue ratio improved from 56.8% to 54.7%.

Our asset quality continued to improve in fiscal 2004,
and we recorded a net credit recovery of ¥0.9 billion for the
year. As of March 31, 2005, our loan baiance stood at
¥3,430.4 billion, ¥383.3 billion higher than at the end of
the previous fiscal year. We have been promoting and gradu-
ally increasing structured loans such as non-recourse loans
to institutional customers, lending to consumer and com-
mercial finance customers and housing loan to retail cus-
tomers. At the same time, we reduced loans to less
creditworthy customers and settled any remaining issues
relating to our previous cancellation rights to return toan-
related assets to the DIC. Our total reserve for credit losses
was ¥149.7 billion as of March 31, 2005, a decline of
¥28.1 billion from the end of the previous fiscal year. We
maintained a total reserve for credit losses to total claims
ratio of 3.4% on a non-consolidated basis as of March 31,
2005. Our non-consolidated coverage ratio of reserves, col-
lateral, and guarantees to non-performing loans was 94.3%
at March 31, 2005.

With regard to the composition of our funding, deben-
tures and corporate bonds decreased 4.1% to ¥1,330.9
billion as of March 31, 2005, in line with our strategy to
source funding through retail deposits. Total deposits,
including negotiable certificates of deposit, increased
26.3% to ¥3,452.8 billion. Notably, retail deposits
increased by approximately ¥700 billion during the year.

Our total capital adequacy ratio stood at 11.8% and our
Tier | ratio stood at 7.0% as of March 31, 2005. The qual-
ity of our capital is another important differentiator for
Shinsei. Our capital mostly consists of core capital and the
amount of our net deferred tax assets is equal to only 0.9%
of our Tier | capital.




Table 1. Interest-Earning Assets and Interest-Bearing Liabilities (Consolidated)
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Billions of yen {except percentages)

2005 2004
Average Average
Fiscal years ended March 31 balance Interest Yield/rate balance {nterest Yield/rate
Interest-earning assets:
Cash and due from banks ¥ 171.2 ¥ 28 1.66% ¥ 1304 ¥ 19 1.50%
Call loans 134.1 0.0 0.02 41.5 0.0 0.01
Receivables under resale agreements 1.7 0.0 0.00 0.2 0.0 0.00
Collateral related to securities borrowing
transactions 49.5 0.0 0.01 24.2 0.0 0.01
Securities 1,509.4 15.8 1.05 1,618.1 15.9 0.98
Loans and bills discounted 3,099.9 77.3 2.50 3,124.0 64.3 2.06
Other interest-earning assets 196.8 1.0 0.53 218.4 1.1 0.51
Total interest-earning assets 5,162.8 97.1 1.88 5,167.2 83.3 1.62
Interest rate and fund swaps — 4.2 — — 5.8 —_
Total interest income ¥5,162.8 ¥101.3 1,96% ¥5,157.2 ¥89.1 1.73%
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Deposits ¥2,686.0 ¥ 135 0.50% ¥2217.6 ¥12.0 0.54%
Negotiable certificates of deposit 410.1 0.1 0.03 350.5 0.1 0.04
Debentures 1,312.4 6.1 0.47 1,493.1 8.3 0.56
Call money 118.7 0.6 0.53 94.7 0.1 0.18
Payables under repurchase agreements 121.3 0.0 0.01 179.7 0.0 0.01
Collateral related to securities lending
transactions 13.2 0.0 0.03 188.3 0.0 0.03
Commercial paper 6.4 0.0 1.45 — — —_—
Borrowed money! 515.7 12.9 2.51 325.4 9.7 3.00
Corporate bonds 31.8 0.6 2.16 27.0 0.7 2.81
Other interest-bearing liabilities 0.0 0.2 n.m.® 3.0 0.1 3.76
Total interest-bearing liabilities 5,216.0 34.4 0.66 4,879.8 314 0.64
Interest rate and fund swaps — 0.0 — — 0.5 —
Total interest expenses ¥5,216.0 ¥ 344 0.66% ¥4 879.8 ¥32.0 0.66%
Nen-interest-bearing sources of funds:
Naon-interest-bearing (assets) liabilities, net ¥ (811.5) — —_— ¥ (427.5) — —
Shareholders’ equity® 758.3 — — 704.9 — -
Total interest-bearing liabilities and
non-interest-bearing sources of funds ¥5,162.8 — — ¥5,157.2 — —
Net interest spread — — 1.30% — — 1.07%
Impact of non-interest-bearing sources —_— — 0.00 — — 0.04
Net interest income/yield on
interest-earning assets — ¥ 66.8 1.30% — ¥ 57.1 1.11%

Notes:
(1) Includes subordinated debts.

(2) The average balance is a simple average value of previous year end balance and current year end balance.

(3) n.m. is not meaningful.
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Table 2. Analysis of Changes in Net Interest Income (Consolidated)

Biilions of yen
Due to change in®

Fiscal year ended March 31, 2005 Volume Rate Net change
Increase (decrease) in interest income:
Cash and due from banks ¥0.6 ¥ 0.2 ¥ 0.8
Call loans 0.0 0.0 0.0
Receivables under resale agreements 0.0 0.0 0.0
Collateral related to securities borrowing transactions 0.0 0.0 0.0
Securities (1.0) 1.0 0.0
Loans and bills discounted (0.4) 13.5 13.0
Other interest-earning assets (0.1) 0.0 0.0
Subtotal 13.8
Interest swap and fund swaps (1.6)
Total interest income ¥12.2
Increase (decrease) in interest expense:
Deposits ¥25 ¥(1.0) ¥1.4
Negotiable certificates of deposit 0.0 0.0 0.0
Debentures (1.0) (1.1) (2.1)
Call money 0.0 0.4 0.4
Payables under repurchase agreements 0.0 0.0 0.0
Collateral related to securities lending transactions 0.0 0.0 0.0
Commercial paper 0.0 0.0 0.0
Borrowed money 5.7 (2.5) 3.1
Corporate bonds 0.1 (0.2 0.0
Other interest-bearing liabilities (0.1) 0.0 0.1
Subtotal 2.9
Interest swap and fund swaps (0.4)
Total interest expense ¥24
Net decrease in net interest income ¥ 9.7

Note:

(1) The changes in interest income and expense for each category are divided into the portion of change attributable to the variance in volume or rate for
that category. The attribution of the volume variance is calculated by multiplying the change in volume by the previous year's rate. The attribution of the
rate variance ‘s calculated by multiplying the change in rate by the current year’s balance.

Net Interest Income. Our principal interest-earning
assets are domestic loans and bills discounted as well as
securities (other than securities held for trading purposes),
consisting mainly of Japanese government bonds and bonds
issued by non-Japanese corporations. Our principal interest-
bearing liabilities are deposits (inciuding negotiable certifi-
cates of deposit and foreign-currency deposits), debentures,
subsidiaries’ borrowing from other financial institutions, and
subordinated bonds and debt.

Net interest income in the fiscal year ended March 31,
2005 was ¥66.8 billion, an increase of ¥9.7 billion com-
pared with the prior fiscal year. Total interest income
increased by ¥12.2 billion while total interest expense
increased by ¥2.4 hillion. The net interest margin increased
to 1.30%, an increase of 0.19% compared with the prior
fiscal year. Yields on interest earning assets increased by
0.23% while yields on interest bearing liabilities remained
constant. Based on an attribution analysis which divides

interest income and expense changes into either a variance
in the volume of assets or liabilities or a variance in interest
rate, the ¥12.2 billion increase in total interest income is
attributable primarily to the higher yield of loans and bills
discounted. The yield for loans and bills discounted
increased to 2.50% from 2.06% the previous year primarily
as a result of the inclusion of APLUS’s consumer finance
businesses. The yields on the interest earning portion of
these businesses were sufficiently high that they increased
the Shinsei consolidated loans and bills discounted yield
even though the consolidated balance itself declined mar-
ginally from ¥3,124.0 billion to ¥3,093.9 billion. Retail
housing loan growth also contributed to the increase in
loans and bills discounted yield. Partially offsetting the
impact from these higher margin businesses was the matur-
ing of fixed interest rate loans that were originated in a
higher interest rate environment.

The ¥2.4 billion increase in total interest expense is




attributable primarily to the increased average balances of
deposits and borrowed money. The increase in deposit inter-
est expense came entirely from an increase in the average
balance outstanding to ¥2,686.0 billion from ¥2,217.6 bil-
lion the previous fiscal year. This growth reflected Shinsei’s
continued focus on increasing retail deposit balances. A
reduction in deposit yields of 0.04% to 0.50% from 0.54%
the previous year partially offset the increase in interest
expense arising from the higher average balance outstand-
ing. The increase in interest expense for borrowed money
interest expense was also due entirely to an increase in the
average balance outstanding to ¥515.7 billion from ¥325.4
billion the previous year. The increase in borrowed money
balances was primarily the result of the inclusion of bor-
rowed money balances for APLUS. A reduction in the bor-
rowed money yield of 0.49% to 2.51%, from 3.00% the
previous fiscal year, partially offset the increase in interest
expense arising from the higher balance outstanding. A
decline in the average debenture balance outstanding to
¥1,312.4 billion from ¥1,493.1 billion the previous fiscal
year, coupled with a reduction in debenture yields of 0.09%
to 0.47% from 0.56% the previous fiscal year, partially
offset the increase in deposit and borrowed money interest
expenses. The debenture balance decline was consistent

Table 3. Net Trading Income
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with our strategy of increasing retail deposits and the reduc-
tion in debenture yield was primarily the result of the matur-
ing of debentures that were issued in a higher interest rate
environment.

Net Fees and Commissions. Fees and commissions
include, among other things, prepayment, arrangement and
aother fees on non-recourse and consumer and commercial
finance loans and other financing products, fees for securi-
ties services, particularly for structuring and underwriting
securitization transactions, fees for corporate advisory
services, and commissions on sales of asset management
products.

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005, we earned
¥42.,3 billion in net fees and commissions, an increase of
¥23.4 billion, or 123.7%, as compared to the same period
in the previous fiscal year. The main factors were an
increase of ¥19.3 billion in fees from installment shopping
credit, credit cards, guarantees and other financing to
APLUS customers, non-recourse lending and securitization
fees from institutional banking clients and commissions on
sales of asset management products such as mutual funds
and variable annuities to retail customers.

Net Trading Income. The table below shows the principal
components of net trading income.

Biilions of yen

Fiscal vears ended March 31 2005 2004
Income from trading securities ¥ 18 ¥03
income from (loss on) derivatives for trading securities 2.1 (0.2)
Income from trading-related financial derivatives 19.8 2.7
Other, net 0.0 (0.1)
Net trading income ¥23.9 ¥27

Net trading income reflects income we derive from pro-
viding derivative products, including structured deposits, to
customers, and revenues from transactions undertaken for
trading purposes (that is, transactions seeking to capture
gains arising from short-term changes in market value). In
addition to investments in securities, we engage in foreign
currency and derivatives transactions as part of our trading
activity.

Net trading income in the fiscal year ended March 31,
2005 was ¥23.9 billion, as compared to ¥2.7 billion for
the prior fiscal year. The increase was largely due to

approximately ¥14.5 billion income from financial deriva-
tives transactions encompassing option income generated in
connection with our yen-denominated Powered One struc-
tured deposits. The income from trading securities and
income from derivatives for trading securities of ¥1.8 billion
and ¥2.1 billion, respectively, consist of Japanese govern-
ment bonds and equity trading, including related derivatives
activities.

Net Other Business Income. The table below shows the
principal components of net other business income.
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Table 4. Net Other Business Income

Billions of yen
Fiscal years ended March 31 2005 2004
Income on monatary assets held in trust ¥16.8 ¥18.8
Net gain on securities and foreign exchanges 7.0 12.2
Other business income (losses)
Net gain on other monetary claims purchased for trading purpose 15.0 10.5
(Losses) income from derivatives for banking purposes, net (1.1) 2.4
Equity in net income of affiliates i.7 0.5
Income (losses) from equity related derivatives 0.6 (0.5)
Amortization of deferred issuance cost debenture (0.3) (0.2)
Other, net 46 0.7
Net other business income ¥44.5 ¥44.6

Net other business income includes, among other things,
income on monetary assets held in trust and net gains on
other monetary claims purchased for trading purposes.
These two income categories are largely comprised of
income on credit trading and securitization activities as well
as gains on equity securities related transactions.

We have been, and continue to be, an active player in
Japan's secondary market for distressed and under-
performing loans. We bid on and acquire assets from major
banks, consumsr and commercial finance companies and
regional banks. We apply the same credit analysis to these
assets as to our existing loan portfolio. For the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2005, we completed 38 new transactions
with an aggregate purchase price of ¥71.5 billion and for
the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004, we completed 41
new transactions with an aggregate purchase price of ¥51.7
billion.

Our net other business income for the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2005 was ¥44.5 billion, a decrease of ¥0.1 bil-
lion compared with the same period in the previous fiscal
year. The principal reason for the decrease was the ¥5.2
billion decrease in net gain on securities and foreign
exchanges, which was attributable to the impact of lower
gains on stock related transactions as well as lower foreign
exchange gains in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005.

Income on monetary assets held in trust of ¥16.8 billion
includes gains from equity securities related transactions of

¥7.2 billion, and the remainder mainly reflects gains in our
credit-trading business and income from real estate-related
investments. The income on monetary assets held in trust
should be considered together with net gains on other
monetary claims purchased for trading purposes as both of
these income categories include credit trading and
securitization income. Net gain on other monetary claims
purchased for trading purposes recorded net gains of ¥15.0
billion, an increase of ¥4.5 billion, reflecting strong results
of both credit trading and mortgage-backed and asset-
backed securitization businesses.

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005, we incurred
losses of ¥1.1 billion from derivatives for banking purposes.
This primarily relates to mark-to-market valuation on struc-
tured deposits and collateralized debt obligation related
derivatives hedges. An increase in equity in net income of
affiliates is mainly due to an increase in the number of
affiliates including SHINKI.

Total Revenue. Total revenue for the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2005 was ¥177.8 billion, an increase of 44.0%
compared with the previous fiscal year. The higher total rev-
enue was principally the result of the increase in net fees
and commissions of ¥23.4 billion. This increase combined
with an increase in net interest income and net trading
income, more than offset slight reduction in net other
business income.
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General and Administrative Expenses: The table below sets forth the principal components of our general and administrative

expenses:

Table 5. General and Administrative Expenses

Billions of yen

Fiscal years ended March 31 2005 2004
Personnel expenses ¥42.9 ¥35.4
Premises expenses 14.6 8.9
Technology and data processing expenses 11.5 6.7
Advertising expenses 6.0 2.9
Consumption and property taxes 5.8 3.6
Deposit insurance premium 2.1 1.9
Other 14.1 10.3

Total general and administrative expenses ¥97.3 ¥70.1

General and administrative expenses for the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2005 were ¥97.3 billion, an increase of
¥27.1 billion, or 38.7%, as compared to the previous fiscal
year. The increase is largely due to the acquisition of
APLUS and growth in retail banking customer driven trans-
action activities, expansion of retail banking distribution
channels, and the expense resulting from newly introduced
business taxes.

Personnel expenses increased by ¥7.4 billion primarily
due to the inclusion of APLUS personne! expenses of ¥7.0
billion. Similarly, premises expense increased ¥5.6 billion,
of which ¥4.9 billion pertains to APLUS’s premises expense
and the remainder of the increase largely related to retail
banking facilities establishment during the year and the full
fiscal year impact of the retail banking facilities established
in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004.

Technology and data processing expenses increased by
¥4.7 billion as compared to the fiscal year ended March
31, 2004 to ¥11.5 billion for the fiscal year ended March
31, 2005. The increase was partly due to increased invest-
ments in new information technology systems, an increase
in related maintenance and depreciation expenses, as well
as inclusion of APLUS’s technology and data processing
expense of ¥2.4 billion.

Advertising expenses increased ¥0.5 billion in retail

banking from the previous year, reflecting increased efforts
to promote our retail banking services. In addition, the ¥2.3
billion increase in advertising expense primarily relates to
APLUS's marketing activities during the second half of
fiscal 2004. t

Consumption and property taxes increased by ¥2.1 bil-
lion, or 58.1%, as compared to the same period in the pre-
vious fiscal year. This increase is attributable to a general
increase in consumption tax from various business activi-
ties, consumption and property taxes of APLUS, and an
increase of ¥1.1 billion for the new business tax that was
introduced in fiscal 2004. The bulk of other general and
administrative expenses consist of outsourcing and tempo-
rary staff expenses, professional fees, printing, communica-
tion and stationery expenses. The increase of ¥3.7 billion,
from a year ago, was due primarily to an increase in
outsourcing, printing and stationery expenses to support
business growth predominantly in retail banking and con-
sumer and commercial finance businesses, of which ¥2.4
billion relates to APLUS.

As a result of the above, our overhead ratio, or the ratio
of general and administrative expenses to total revenue,
improved 2.1% to 54.7% for the fiscal year ended March
31, 2005, compared to 56.8% for the same period in the
prior fiscal year.
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Net Credit Recoveries. The following table shows our credit recoveries on a consolidated basis for the fiscal years ended

March 31, 2005 and 2004:

Table 6. Net Credit Recoveries

Bitlions of yen

Fiscal years ended March 31 2005 2004
Losses on write-off of loans ¥ 10.0 ¥ 20
Losses on sale of loans 0.0 0.0
Net (reversal) provision of reserve for loan losses:
Net reversal of general reserve for loan losses (3.9) (19.7)
Net (reversal) provision of specific reserve for loan losses (6.6) (12.2)
Net reversal of reserve for loan losses to restructuring countries (6.0) (0.0)
Net reversal of reserve for loan losses (10.5) (31.9)
Net (reversal) provision of specific reserve for other credit losses (0.2) 12.9
(Reversal) provision of reserve for losses on sale of bonds (0.2) 15
Net credit recoveries ¥ (0.9) ¥(15.4)

The principal components of net credit recoveries are
provisions or reversals of reserves. In accordance with Japa-
nese regulatory requirements, we maintain general and spe-
cific reserves for loan losses, a reserve for loan losses to
restructuring countries, as well as a specific reserve for
other credit losses. See “—Asset Quality and Disposal of
Problem Loans” for a discussion of our loan loss reserve
policies.

We recorded net credit recoveries of ¥0.9 billion for the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2005 compared with net credit
recoveries of ¥15.4 billion for the fiscal year ended March
31, 2004. The decrease in net credit recoveries was largely
due to the inclusion of APLUS’s net credit costs, including
write-off of loans, of ¥12.8 billion for the six-month period
from October 1, 2004 to March 31, 2005.

The net reversal of general reserves for loan losses was
¥3.9 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005,
compared with ¥19.7 billiocn for the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2004. For the fiscal year ended March 31,
2005, we also recorded a ¥6.6 billion net reversal of spe-
cific reserve for loan losses, compared with ¥12.2 billion for
the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004. The decline in both
the net reversal of general reserves for loan losses and net
specific reserves for loan losses mainly pertains to the addi-
tion of APLUS's general and specific loan loss reserves as
the credit quality of the loan portfolio in our banking busi-
ness continues to improve.

Amortization of Acquired Goodwill and Intangible Assets.
The acquisition of a majority stake in APLUS resulted in the
creation of acquired goodwill and intangible assets. The
amortization of acquired goodwill and intangible assets was
¥8.8 billion for the six-month period from October 2004 to
March 2005. This includes ¥3.9 billion in amortization of
APLUS related intangible assets and ¥4.9 billion in amorti-

zation of acquired goodwill. Of the intangible assets, trade
names are amortized over 10 years using the straight-line
method and customer and merchant relationships are amor-
tized over 10 to 20 years using the sum of the year’s digits
method. Acquired goodwill is amortized over 20 years using
the straight-line method. The amortization of fair value
adjustments for assets and liabilities has been incorporated
in the respective revenue and expense categories.

Other (Losses) Gains, Net. Other losses, net were ¥7.0
billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005, as com-
pared to other gains, net of ¥0.1 billion for the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2004. Other losses, net for the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2005 included ¥3.2 billion pension-
related cost related to career planning and placement
assistance program for our employees.

Income Before Income Taxes and Minority Interests. As a
result of the foregoing, income before income taxes and
minority interests was ¥65.5 billion for the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2005, a ¥3.3 billion decrease as
compared to the same period last fiscal year.

Income Taxes. For the fiscal year ended March 31,
2005, we recorded ¥1.4 billion in current income tax,
remaining substantially unchanged as compared to the
same period in the previous fiscal year. In the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2005, we recorded a deferred income tax
benefit of ¥3.4 billion to reflect the recognition of addi-
tional deferred tax assets we expected to realize on the
basis of one-year’s future taxable income.

Net Income. Our net income for the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2005 was ¥67.4 billion, a 1.6% increase com-
pared with the same period in the prior fiscal year. We
report both Japanese GAAP net income and a cash basis net
income in order to provide greater transparency and under-
standing of our underlying performance. For fiscal 2004,




consolidated cash basis net income was ¥74.7 billion, an
increase of over 12% compared to the previous year. Cash
basis net income is defined as Japanese GAAP net income
adjusted to exclude the amortization of acquired goodwill
and intangible assets. See “—Financial Highlights.”

in June 2005, we paid dividends for the six months
ended March 31, 2005 of ¥6.50 per share of Class A pre-
ferred stock, ¥2.42 per share of Class B preferred stock and
¥1.29 per share of common stock. Our fully diluted return
on equity for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005 was
8.9%, as compared to 9.4% for the fiscal year ended March
31, 2004. The decrease in fully diluted return on equity
was primarily the result of average shareholders’ equity
increasing more quickly than net income.

Management's DisCcussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuits of Uperattons

Reconciliation fram Reported-Basis Resuits to Operating-Basis
Results

In addition to analyzing our results in the format used for
our financial statements, which we refer to as the “reported
basis”, our management also reviews our results on an
“operating basis"” to assess each of our business lines and
to measure our results against targeted goals. Operating
basis results are calculated by adjusting the reported-basis
results principally for the amortization of net actuarial
losses, lump sum payments, and certain revenue items. In
essence, the operating basis results represent “core” busi-
ness results and are in conformity with Japanese GAAP at
the net income level. The following summary table provides
reconciliation between our results on a reported and
operating basis.

Table 7. Reconciliation from Reported-Basis Results to Operating-Basis Results (Consolidated)

Billions of yen

2005 2004
Reparted- Operating- Reported- Operating-

Fiscal years ended March 31 basis Reclassifications basis basis Reclassifications  basis
Revenue

Net interest income! ¥ 66.8 ¥ — ¥ 66.8 ¥ 571 ¥(0.8) ¥ 56.3

Non-interest income® 110.9 0.2 111.1 66.3 1.1 67.5
Total revenue ¥177.8 ¥0.2 ¥178.0 ¥123.5 ¥ 0.3 ¥1238
General and administrative expenses® 97.3 (1.2) 96.0 70.1 (1.3) 68.7
Net business profit /Ordinary business profit 80.5 1.4 81.9 53.3 1.7 55.0
Credit (recoveries) costs (0.9) — (0.9) (15.4) — (15.4)
Amortization of acquired goodwill and

intangible assets (8.8) — (8.8) (0.0) — (0.0)

Other (losses) gains net'?® (7.0 (1.4) (8.5) 0.1 (1.7} (1.5)
Income before income taxes and minority interests 65.5 — 65.5 68.9 — £68.9
Income tax (benefit) and minority interests (1.8) — (1.8) 2.5 — 2.5
Net income ¥ 674 ¥ — ¥ 674 ¥ 66.4 ¥ — ¥ 664
Notes:

(1) Reclassifications consist principally of netting adjustments from net interest income to non-interest income.
(2) Reclassifications consist principally of adjustments of lease-related income (losses) between other (losses) gains, net and non-interest income.
(3) Reclassifications consist principally of adjustments relating to lump-sum compensation and amortization of net actuarial gains or losses from general and

administrative expenses to other losses, net.

(4} Ordinary business profit is derived after reclassifying certain items from net business profit.

Business Lines Results

Shinsei provides a diversified range of banking consumer
and commercial finance services and products through its
three core business lines: institutional banking, retail bank-
ing and consumer and commercial finance. Institutional
banking offers mainly financial services and products to cor-
porations, financial institutions, and government entities,
and also engages in trading and investment activities. Our
retail banking business provides banking and asset manage-
ment services to individuals, including high-net-worth indi-
viduals. Our consumer and commercial finance business

provides products such as mortgage loans, loans to small-
medium enterprises (SMEs), consumer loans and other
financing products.

Management monitors the performance of these business
lines on an operating basis. The business lines discussion
covers the operating-basis ordinary business profit of the
three business lines plus ALM/Corporate/Other. During fiscal
2004, all three main business lines were profitable and had
a significant growth in their respective operating business
profit.
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Table 8. Operating-Basis Ordinary Business Profit by Business Line (/%

Billions of yen

2005
Consumer & ALM/
Institutional Retail Commercial Corporate/
For the fiscal year ended March 31 Banking Banking Finance Other Total
Net interest income ¥ 353 ¥ 15.2 ¥17.2 ¥(0.9) ¥ 66.8
Net fee and commissions 19.0 3.0 21.0 (0.6) 42.4
Net trading income 6.6 17.3 —_ — 239
Net other business income 36.0 1.8 4.9 1.8 44.6
Non-interest income 61.7 22.2 25.9 1.1 111.1
Total revenue 97.0 375 43.2 0.1 178.0
General and administrative expenses (37.8) (31.6) (26.1) (0.4) (96.0)
Ordinary business profit (loss) ¥ 59.1 ¥ 59 ¥17.1 ¥(0.2) ¥ 81.9
Billions of yen
2004
Consumer & ALM/
Institutional Retail Commercial Corporate/
For the fiscal year ended March 31 Banking Banking Finance Other Total
Net interest income ¥ 3%.4 ¥12.6 ¥ 35 ¥ 0.6 ¥ 56.3
Net fee and commissions 14.1 4.2 0.8 (0.4) 18.9
Net trading income 0.6 2.0 — — 2.7
Net other business income 34.8 2.5 1.1 7.3 45.8
Non-interest income 49.6 8.9 2.0 6.8 67.5
Total revenue 89.1 21.5 5.5 7.5 123.8
General and administrative expenses (37.7) (26.6) (2.9 (1.4) (68.7)
Ordinary business profit (loss) ¥514 ¥ (5.0) ¥25 ¥6.0 ¥ 550

Notes:

(1) Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to current period presentation.
(2) Represents results based on management accounting basis and judgments have been applied in determining business lines' revenue breakdown by

income-type.

Institutional Banking
Our institutional banking business offers a wide range of
financial products and services, including lending, non-
recourse financing, credit trading, securitization, capital
markets, and corporate advisory services relating to corpo-
rate revitalization and mergers and acquisitions, to domestic
and international corporations, financial institutions and
government entities. We serve our customers primarily from
our offices in key metropolitan areas of Japan.

Institutional banking is one of our key pillars, accounting
for 54.5% of total revenue. In fiscal 2004, total revenue of

institutional banking increased ¥7.9 billion or 8.9% to
¥97.0 billion. More than 60% of this revenue was gener-
ated from new products capabilities that did not exist in our
bank four years ago. The revenue growth primarily stems
from increased activities in non-recourse lending and credit
trading products. In fiscal 2004, the total institutional
banking expenses basically remained flat at ¥37.8 billion,
or ¥0.1 billion higher than the previous year. This resulted
in operating leverage for the business and the total expense
to revenue ratio improved from 42.3% to 39.0%.




Table 9. Institutional Banking Revenue by Product
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Billions of yen

Fiscal years ended March 31 2005 2004

Institutional Banking:
Non-recourse loans ¥18.9 ¥14.3
Foreign exchange, derivatives, equity related 16.7 15.5
Credit trading 15.8 87
Corporate ioans 14.6 20.0
Securitization 12.6 16.6
Principal investments 7.8 5.2
Other capital markets 7.7 b.5
Others 2.6 3.0

Total Institutional Banking ¥97.0 ¥89.1

Non-recourse loans grew 18.3% to a fiscal year-end
balance of ¥577.2 billion with 143 new transactions con-
cluded during the year. As a result, the business generated
total product revenue of ¥18.9 billion in fiscal 2004—an
overall increase of ¥4.5 billion or 32.0%. This product
helped customers diversify their funding methods. In addi-
tion, we have been focusing on differentiating our offerings
by proposing comprehensive solutions to customers that
include not only debt financing, but also advice on the
arrangement of related equity financing, trust services, and
cash management services.

In credit trading, we invest in various kinds of credit—
primarily distressed assets, non-performing loans and sub-
performing loans—and then service or sell them. We are
one of the few financial institutions in Japan that services
loans originated by third parties. Drawing on the expertise of
our relationship managers and product specialists in the
early stages of transactions, we have been able to regularly
execute transactions on favorable terms despite increasing
competition. During the year, we achieved strong results
both from domestic and international activities and suc-
cessfully completed 38 new transactions with an aggregate
purchase price of ¥71.5 billion. Credit trading product rev-
enue rose to ¥15.8 billion, an increase of ¥7.1 billion or
82.7%. Most of the credit trading revenue is recorded in
net other business income under either income on monetary
assets held in trust or net gains on other monetary claims
purchased for trading purposes.

In fiscal 2004, our securitization business generated
revenue of ¥12.6 billion or 13.0% of total institutional
banking revenue. In this business, we structure, arrange,
distribute, and service mortgage-backed securities and as-
set-backed securities, both from third parties and ourselves.
We cover all major assets classes, ranging from relatively
small and homogeneous credit-card loans and residential
loans to non-performing claims on which coliection depends
primarily on selling the collateral. This business concluded
14 new deals during the fiscal year with total issuance

amount of ¥439.8 billion. This business continues to be a
significant revenue contributor. The success of this business
placed Shinsei (Shinsei Securities) as #3 on the Japan's
ABS League Table 2004 compiled by Bioomberg and Nikke/
Bonds and Financial Weekly and garnered third party recog-
nition from Asiamoney and THOMSON DealWatch.

Corporate loans generated revenue of ¥14.6 billion pri-
marily through net interest income. The revenue declined by
¥5.4 billion as compared to the previous year as a result of
a reduction in higher yielding loans, as long-term, fixed-rate
loans, extended in higher-interest rate environments contin-
ued to mature and loans to less creditworthy customers
continue to decline. We successfully reduced our non-
performing claims to ¥51.7 billion, or a decline of ¥45.5
billion or 46.8%, on a non-consolidated basis. We believe
that our non-performing claims issue is largely behind us
and given the improving economy in Japan, we are now
focused on growing our customer asset portfolio. The total
corporate loan balance as of March 31, 2005 stood at
¥2 449 3 billion, a decline of ¥42.4 biltion, or 1.7%,
resulting predominately from reduction in loans to less
creditworthy customers.

Foreign exchange, derivatives, and equity related capital

markets revenue in fiscal 2004 grew ¥1.2 billion to ¥16.7

billion. The income includes ¥7.2 billion in gains on equity
securities transaction and the remainder pertains to various
foreign exchange, derivatives, and equity trading activities.
Principal investment and other capital market had good
year-over-year revenue growth.

Retajl Banking

We launched a full-service retail banking operation in June
2001. We offer customers a wide variety of services and
products through, as of May 31, 2005, our network of 30
Shinsei Financial Centers (SFCs), 2 Platinum Centers, 4
bank spots, our internet banking services and telephone
center accessible 24 hours a day, seven days a week, and
over 60,000 ATMs (operated by Shinsei and third parties)
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located throughout Japan. Our internet banking, ATM net-
work, and call centers remain generally free of charge. The
retail banking business provides a broad range of deposit
and investment products, such as consolidated multi-
currency savings and time deposit accounts and asset
management products. We also offer credit products such
as housing loans and personalized financial services to
high-net-worth individuals.

Since its launch, the key strategy of our retail banking
business has been to atiract new customers and deepen
relationships with existing customers. Shinsei now has more
than 1.3 million customer accounts as of May 31, 2005.
Our retail services were recognized as being #1 in customer
satisfaction in a survey by Nihon Keizai Shimbun (Nikkel)
and rated the #1 Financia! Services Website 2004 by Japan
Brand Strategy.

Table 10. Retail Banking Revenue by Product

Total revenue of our retail banking business in fiscal
2004 was ¥37.5 billion, a 73.9% increase compared with
the previous year. The total expense for the year increased
¥5.0 billion to ¥31.6 billion. The increase in expenses
related to the full year impact of retail banking facilities
established in fiscal 2003 and the facilities opened in fiscal
2004, along with various expenses associated with cus-
tomer and transaction volume growth such as personnel,
technology, and telecommunications costs. The total
expense to revenue ratio of this business line improved from
123.2% in fiscal 2003 to 84.3% in fiscal year 2004. On
an internal operating basis reported to management, the
retail bank was profitable in fiscal 2004 and generated ordi-
nary business profit of ¥5.9 billion, an improvement of
¥10.9 billion as compared to the previous year.

Billions of yen

Fiscal years ended March 31 2005 2004
Retail Banking:
Deposit-related and foreign exchange fees ¥16.5 ¥ 3.3
Net fund transfer revenuet® 12.9 11.8
Asset management 6.0 5.4
Loans 1.9 0.9
Total Retail Banking ¥37.5 ¥21.5

Note:
(1) Related to both customer deposits & debentures,

Deposit related and foreign exchange fees include deriva-
tives income on structured deposits, commissions on for-
eign currency deposits and fee expense related to ATMs and
funds transfers. Total revenue from these activities was
¥16.5 billion, an increase of ¥13.2 billion as compared
with the previous year. The growth stems from approxi-
mately ¥14.5 billion of derivatives income generated in
connection with a new Powered One yen-denominated
structured deposit product introduced during this fiscal
year. The success of this product contributed to an increase
in total customer deposits of 44.5% or ¥708.8 hillion to
¥2,300.4 billion, of which increase ¥537.8 billion was
from Powered One deposits. Net funds transfer revenue
solely relates to the interest spread on customer deposits
and debentures. Total revenue grew ¥1.1 billion as com-
pared to the same period last year solely due to substantial
growth in retail customer deposits.

The asset management business also experienced strong
growth during the year. Total fees and commissions revenue
grew to ¥6.0 billion, an increase of 10.9%. We now have
total assets under management amounting to ¥398.4

billion as of the end of fiscal year. This represents a yearly
increase of ¥115.7 billion or 41.0%.

We have opened four housing loan centers in total,
including an outlet specializing in housing loans near Tokyo
station, to strengthen our sales of housing loans. As a
result, the tota! balance of retail housing loans increased
¥120.6 billion to ¥289.2 billion as of March 31, 2005.
Total revenue for retail loans grew from ¥0.9 billion to ¥1.9
billion resulting from robust growth in retail housing loans.

Consumer and GCommercial Finance

To diversify our revenues further, we have established or
acquired a number of consumer and commercial finance
subsidiaries or affiliates. These companies provide products
such as mortgage loans, loans to SMEs, consumer loans
and other financing products. This business has now
become a significant revenue contributor. In fiscal 2004,
this business produced total revenue of ¥43.2 billion, an
overall growth of ¥37.6 billion and 24.3% of our total
revenue came from consumer and commercial finance
activities.




Table 11. Consumer and Commercial Finance Revenue by Subsidiary
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Billions of yen

Fiscal years ended March 31 2005 2004
Consumer and Commercial Finance
APLUS ¥36.2 ¥ —
Life Housing Loans 2.1 1.6
Shinsei Property Finance 1.6 1.7
Shinsei Sales Finance 1.6 1.2
SHINKI and other companies, net 1.5 1.0
Total Consumer and Commercial Finance ¥43.2 ¥5.5

In September 2004, we acquired an approximately 67%
stake in APLUS. The company has 64 branches and over
4.2 million cardholders with APLUS partner or APLUS
credit cards through over 700 co-branded card partner-
ships. Customers make installment purchases through its
approximately 350,000 merchants in APLUS’s network of
partner stores. APLUS also provides unsecured consumer
finance credit through loan cards. As of March 31, 2005,
APLUS had approximately one million loan cards outstand-
ing. Customers may obtain loans from approximately
140,000 ATMs throughout Japan, and then repay them by
automatic deductions from designated bank accounts or
can repay at any time at our approximately 24,000 partner
ATMs and convenience stores. From September 2004 to
March 2005, APLUS earned total revenue of ¥36.2 biltion
on a consolidated basis from loan guarantees, installment
shopping credit, and credit cards businesses. This repre-
sents 83.8% of total consumer and commercial finance
business revenue.

In October 2004, we converted ¥15.3 billion of convert-
ible bonds issued by SHINKI, and as a result, we now own
39.1% of the voting rights in SHINKI, making it an equity-
method affiliate starting from the second half of the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2005. We recorded our share of total
income of ¥1.2 bitlion, up ¥0.5 billion from the previous
year. All of our other key subsidiaries such as Life Housing
Loan, Shinsei Property Finance, and Shinsei Sales Finance,
experienced revenue growth during the fiscal year.

Total consumer and commercial finance expenses for the
year were ¥26.1 billion, of which ¥20.3 billion, or 78.0%
of the total expenses, relates to the inclusion of APLUS
expenses from October 2005. The total expense to revenue
ratio of this business stands at 60.4%, slightly higher than
our overall expense to revenue ratio. We believe this ratio
will improve as we rationalize the operations of APLUS. The
ordinary business profit of this business line improved
¥14.4 billion from the same period last year due to the
inclusion of APLUS and other subsidiaries.

ALM/Corporate/Other

ALM/Corporate/Other primarily includes net corporate trea-
sury results, income from proprietary investments, inter-
company eliminations, and unallocated expenses that are
held at the corporate level. Revenue declined ¥7.3 billion
in fiscal 2004 as compared with last fiscal year. The main
factors in the decline were lower gains on certain proprietary
investments and a reduction in the net internal transfer
pricing charge in fiscal 2004. The expenses in fiscal 2004
improved ¥1.0 billion versus the prior year because of lower
professional and consuiting fees and personnel expenses
held at the corporate level in fiscal 2004.

Non-Consolidated Financial Results

Overview

We disclose non-consolidated financial information of
Shinsei in addition to our consolidated financial statements.
As a recipient of public funds, we are required by the FSA
to update and report on Shinsei’'s achievement of non-
consolidated performance targets set forth in a revitalization
plan on a quarterly basis, and publicly disclose that infor-
mation semiannually. Shinsei’s plan was initially prepared
by LTCB upon its emergence from nationalization and we
have subsequently updated the plan in August 2001 and
August 2003.

Shinsei accounts for a substantial portion of our consoli-
dated financial condition and results of operations. For the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2005, Shinsei accounted for
101.0% of our consolidated net income and 74.6% of our
consolidated assets. The additionat portion of our consoli-
dated assets is attributable to APLUS, Showa Leasing and
other subsidiaries. While the consolidated results of opera-
tions included profits from APLUS in the second haif of this
fiscal year and from other subsidiaries (excluding Showa
Leasing), our consolidated net income is similar to non-
consolidated net income due to the amortization of acquired
goodwill and intangible assets caused by the consolidation
of APLUS.
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In the fisca! year ended March 31, 2005, growth in both increased collections on and declines in its problem loan
the institutional banking and the retail banking businesses balance, among other reasons, led Shinsei to surpass in the
led Shinsei to record higher non-consolidated gross busi- fiscal year ended March 31, 2005, the net income target it
ness profit and net income than in the previous year. set in its revitalization plan, while total expenses exceeded
Shinsei’s efforts to maintain fiscal discipline and net rever- the target due to expansion of the retail business and the
sals of its reserves for credit losses, attributable to new business tax.

The table below compares Shinsei’s results for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005, to targets in its revitalization plan:

Table 12. Comparison of Targets and Results for Key Measures in the Revitalization Plan (Non-Consolidated)

Billions of yen {except percentages)

As of or for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005 Target Actual
Net income ¥66.0 ¥68.0
Total expenses 66.6 68.8
Return on equity based on net business profit!? 8.4% 7.2%
Note:

(1) Return on equity based on net business profit equals net business profit before general reserve for loan iosses, as such term is defined under
“—Supplemental Non-Consolidated Measures” below, divided by average total sharehclders' equity.

Supplemental Non-Consolidated Measures * net trading income; and
In addition to the reporting items set forth in our non- * net other business income, which includes, among
consolidated financial statements, Japanese banking law other things, gains or losses on securities and for-
requires us to disclose gross business profit (gyomu sorieks) eign exchanges.
on a non-consolidated basis. Furthermore, in the Japanese Net business profit before general reserve for loan
banking industry, net business profit before general reserve losses is gross business profit minus non-consolidated to-
for loan losses (jisshitsu gyomu jun-eki) has traditionally tal expenses, which corresponds to our consolidated gen-
been used as a measure of the profitability of core banking eral and administrative expenses.
operations. We review these non-Japanese GAAP perfor- While these business profit measures should not be
mance measures in monitoring the results of our operations. viewed as a substitute for net income, management be-
Gross business profit is the sum of: lieves that these non-Japanese GAAP measures provide a
* net interest income; meaningful way of comparing a number of the important
* net fees and commissions, which consist of: components of Shinsei's revenues and profitability from
- fees on loans as well as on sales of asset manage- year to year. The table below sets forth this supplemental
ment products, financial data and corresponding reconciliations to net in-
- other fee-based activities, and come under Japanese GAAP for the fiscal years ended
- income on monetary assets held in trust (in keeping March 31, 2005 and 2004.

with the definition of gross business profit in our
revitalization plan);
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Table 13. Supplemental Measures (Non-Consolidated)

Biltions of yen

Fiscal years ended March 31 2005 2004
Gross business profit (gyomu sorieki) 4
Net interest income ¥ 54.8 ¥ 57.7
Net fees and commissionst? 41.0 37.5
Net trading income 22.1 2.1
Net other business income 5.7 14.0
Total gross business profit!! 123.8 111.5
Total expenses 68.8 64.0
Net business profit 2 (jisshitsu gyomu jun-eki) 54.9 47.4
Other operating expenses, net® (8.2) (2.6)
Net operating income (keijo rieki) 46.6 448
Extraordinary income® 18.1 21.3
Income before income taxes 64.8 66.1
Current income taxes (2.3) (1.0
Deferred income tax (benefit) expense (0.8) 1.9
Net income ¥ 68.0 ¥ 65.3
Notes:

(1} fncludes income from monetary assets held in trust of ¥29.3 billion in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005, and ¥25.8 billion in the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2004, respectively.

(2} Excludes provisions for or reversals of general reserve for loan losses.

(3) Includes net credit recoveries and net gains (losses) on sales of equity securities, but exciudes income from monetary assets held in trust.

(43 Extraordinary income in the fiscal years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted primarily of net reversals of the reserve for credit losses. While
provision of reserve for credit losses is recorded in other operating income and expenses, net, if there is a net reversal of reserve for credit losses, that

amount is recorded as extraordinary income.

Critical Accounting Policies

General

Our financial statements are prepared in accordance with
Japanese GAAP. The preparation of these financial state-
ments requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabili-
ties at the date of the financial statements, as well as the
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. In addition, certain accounting principles
require significant judgment by management in applying
complex accounting principles to individual transactions to
determine the most appropriate accounting treatment. We
have established procedures and processes to facilitate
making the estimates and assumptions necessary to value
assets and liabilities, record transactions and prepare the
financial statements. On an ongoing basis, management
evaluates its estimates and judgments, including those
related to the valuation of assets and liabilities. Although
actual results may differ from these estimates under differ-
ent assumptions and conditions and future changes in the
key assumptions could change future valuations and results,
we have used the best information available at the time to
make our estimates. Significant accounting policies are
described in Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements in this annual report.

Management believes the following are our critical ac-
counting policies. These policies were considered “critical”
because:

* the estimates involved in these policies require us to
make assumptions about matters that are uncertain
at the time the estimates are made; and

¢ different estimates that we reasonably couid have
used in the current period, or changes in the
accounting estimate that are reasonably likely to
occur from period to period, could have a material
impact on the presentation of our financial condition,
or changes in our financial condition or results of
operations.

Reserve for Credit Losses
The reserve for loan iosses, a separate component of the
reserve for credit losses, is management's estimate of the
credit losses to be incurred in the lending portfolio and is
discussed in further detail in “—Financial Condition—Asset
Quality and Disposal of Problem Loans.” We establish a
specific reserve, a general reserve and a reserve for loans to
restructuring countries based on our self-assessment
manual to absorb estimated credit losses in the lending
portfolio.

A specific reserve is provided for specific claims against
obligors in the possibly bankrupt, virtually bankrupt and
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legally bankrupt categories. For claims against obligors in
the virtually and legally bankrupt categories, the unsecured,
unguaranteed portion of the claim is either written off or
fully reserved because such portion is deemed unlikely to
be collected. We write off, rather than reserve against, the
entire unsecured, unguaranteed portion of these claims. Our
specific reserve for claims against obligors in the possibly
bankrupt category is principally determined by estimating
discounted future cash flows, other than in cases where it is
difficult to reasonably estimate future cash flow.

The general reserve is provided for claims against normatl
obligors, as well as claims against caution obligors {includ-
ing substandard obligors). The amount of the reserve is
based on the total amount of, as well as the expected loss
ratios for, claims against each category of obligor. We calcu-
late expected loss ratios based on historical losses on
claims against each obligor category. Using the expected
loss ratios, we reserve against the estimated amount of
losses for the next three years for claims against substan-
dard obligors, for the remaining term of the claims with
respect to claims against caution obligors other than sub-
standard obligors, or other caution obligors, and for the next
year for claims against normal obligors. However, we have
applied the discounted cash flow method in calculating the
amount of general reserves we should establish for most of
our claims against substandard obligors. In addition, in the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2004, we changed our reserve
policy for claims against normal obligors given ratings of 5A
through 6C in our credit ratings system (described under
“—Risk Policy and Management—Credit Risk Manage-
ment”), based on the estimated amount of losses expected
for the remaining terms of the claims. This change resulted
in an additional ¥3.4 billion provision for the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2004. We review our classification of obli-
gors quarterly in principle, although every month we down-
grade obligors whose financial condition has deteriorated
based on the results of our self-assessment process. The
reserve for loans to restructuring countries is provided for
estimated losses on those loans due to political and eco-
nomic conditions in the countries where the loans are out-
standing, based on losses estimated using the secondary
market price of similar loans.

Estimating the specific reserve for claims against obli-
gors in the possibly bankrupt category and the general
reserve for claims against obligors in the substandard cat-
egory is subject to a number of significant judgments and
uncertainties regarding discounted cash flows due to the
changing financial conditions of the obligors and general
economic conditions surrounding the obligors’ business
operations. In addition, because the secured portion of

claims is not covered by specific reserve, actual losses on
such claims are also subject to significant judgments and
uncertainties regarding the fair value of collateral. Estimat-
ing the general reserve for claims against obligors in the
normal and other caution categories could be affected due
to changes made by management in the methodologies
used to calculate the migration analyses of obligors or the
assumptions used in calculation of the reserve. As a result,
actual losses in the lending portfolio could be greater or
smaller than we have estimated. If the estimated credit
losses were not enough to cover actual losses incurred from
the ultimate disposition of the portfolio, it would result in
additional losses on write-off or additional reserves in the
future for the lending portfolio, increasing our reported total
credit costs. If the estimation were in excess of actual
losses, it would result in a reduction of our total credit
costs.

The reserve for other credit losses consists primarily of
reserves, including a reserve taken on our contribution to an
industry-wide fund set up to purchase and collect loans,
and a reserve for EIEI related losses. A specific reserve has
been established for each of these exposures based on our
estimate of the prospects for recovery. Although we believe
our existing reserves are sufficient to cover the risk from
items we have identified, actual losses related to these
items could be more or less than we have estimated, which
could result in an increase or a decrease in our total credit
costs.

Valuation of Financial Instruments Measured at Fair Value

We have various types of financial instruments on our
trading and banking books. Pursuant to Japanese GAAP, we
record some of these financial instruments at their fair
values, which are measured based on market prices or third-
party quotes or, if both are unavailable, our internal
valuation methodologies.

Although we strive to follow market standards in making
assumptions and determining scenarios necessary for
these valuation methodologies, the outcomes of our
methodologies could differ from those derived from other
methodologies.

Available-for-Sale Securities
We generally record available-for-sale securities, both debt
and equity, at their fair values. The net unrealized gains or
losses on these securities are included in and presented as
a component of shareholders’ equity.

Available-for-sale securities include some securities
without readily obtainable market prices or quotes. These
securities mainly consist of residual interests and debt



investments in collateralized debt obligations as well as
illiquid corporate bonds. We estimate the fair values of
these securities based on historical data concerning market
prices and quotes. In some cases, we determine fair value
using internal valuation methodologies that are subject to
complex assumptions, including those relating to scenarios,
interest rates and volatility.

As of March 31, 2005 and 2004, the total fair value of
our available-for-sale securities were ¥1,182.5 billion and
¥1,305.5 billion, respectively, while net unrealized gains
were ¥5.2 billion and ¥12.0 billion.

Impairment in Value of Debt and Equity Securities
Available-for-sale debt and equity securities and held-to-
maturity debt securities are both exposed to the risk of
decline in their fair values. If the fair value of a security at a
measurement date has declined in excess of 50% of its
cost, unless there is strong evidence that the fair value will
recover quickly and substantially from the decline, we rec-
ognize an impairment in book value of the security since the
decline in fair value is deemed to be other than temporary.
If the fair value of a security has declined by an amount
ranging from 30% to 50% of its cost, we consider the
possibility of recovery of fair value in order to determine
whether an other-than-temporary impairment has occurred.
Our judgment of the possibility and magnitude of a future
recovery in fair value relies on our subjective views concern-
ing market uncertainties, the creditworthiness of the issuers
of the securities and various other factors. Different judg-
ments could lead to different conclusions regarding the
need to recognize impairments in value.

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005, we recog-
nized losses of ¥1.4 billion on debt and equity securities
available for sale due to impairment. The loss of ¥1.4 bil-
lion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005 was due
mainly to impairment in foreign securities and included
impairment losses of ¥0.1 billion due to declines in fair
value ranging from 30% to 50% of cost. For the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2004, less than ¥0.1 billion in impair-
ment losses were recorded.

Financial Assets and Liabilities Held for Trading Purpose

Our trading book assets and liabilities consist of derivative
financial instruments, securities, short-term money market
investments and other monetary claims maturing within a

short period of time.

In addition, we hold certain securities investments, such
as foreign fund trusts and corporate bonds, financial assets
backed by loans and receivables as well as mortgages
included in securities, other monetary claims purchased
and monetary assets held in trust that are not recorded in
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the trading book, but are held for trading purposes in the
banking book. All of these trading-purpose assets and
liabilities are booked at their fair values, and changes in
value are reflected in our net income. The fair values of
trading-purpose assets that are traded actively in open mar-
kets are based on observable market prices of the same or
similar securities and monetary claims.

When actively traded market prices are not available, we
estimate the fair values of the assets and liabilities held for
trading purposes using our internal valuation methodolo-
gies. Those methodologies require us to use our judgment in
both making assumptions regarding market parameters,
such as swap rates for interest rate and currency swaps with
longer maturities, as well as determining the required sce-
narios, such as future cash flow projections for financial
assets underlying purchased monetary claims. In addition,
we adjust the fair value estimations for interest rate and
currency swaps to account for credit and liquidity risks.

As of March 31, 2005, the net fair value of our trading
assets and liabilities was ¥99.4 billion and the net balance
of revaluation gains on those assets and liabilities was
¥27.6 billion. This compared with a net fair value of
¥542.8 billion and a net balance of revaluation losses of
¥8 .9 billion as of March 31, 2004. The fair value of securi-
ties held in our banking book for trading purposes was
¥48.5 billion and ¥72.9 billion as of March 31, 2005 and
2004, respectively. The fair value of other monetary claims
purchased was ¥189.9 billion and ¥187.6 billion as of
March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The fair value of
monetary assets held in trust was ¥218.2 billion and
¥230.7 billion as of March 31, 2005 and 2004.

Credit Trading Activities

We are engaged in credit-trading activities in Japan and for-
eign countries, in which we purchase monetary claims such
as loans, bonds, guarantees, receivables and lease receiv-
ables without intending to hotd them to maturity. To recover
our investment, we either collect on the claim, including
through repayments, legal proceedings and discounted pay-
offs, or resell or securitize the claim. Claims purchased are
recorded either in monetary assets heid in trust or other
monetary claims purchased, depending on the structure
used for the purchase, and are principally measured at fair
value, Fair value is estimated in the same way as it is for
assets held for trading purposes. The internal valuation
methodology we use to calculate the fair value of these
claims mainly relies on a discounted cash flow approach
based on cash flow projections and implied market discount
rates. As estimations of future cash flows and discount rates
are based on complex processes and contain an element of
judgment, changes in assumptions could lead to different
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estimates of the fair value of monetary assets held in trust
and other monetary claims purchased, which could in turn
impact the relatec gain or loss amounts in our financial
statements. As of March 31, 2005 and 2004, balances
related to credit trading of ¥197.0 billion and ¥163.4 bil-
lion, respectively, were included in monetary assets held in
trust for trading purpose and ¥120.3 billion and ¥136.9
billion, respectively, were included in other monetary claims
purchased for trading purpose. As of March 31, 2005 and
2004, net unrealized losses recorded in those accounts
were ¥3.8 billion and ¥3.7 billion, respectively.

Valuation of Deferred Tax Assets

We record deferred tax assets for deductible temporary dif-
ferences and tax loss carryforwards and evaluate them in
accordance with the guidelines of the Japanese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, or JICPA. Under the JICPA
guidelines for the valuation of deferred tax assets, if a com-
pany records a material amount of tax loss carryforwards, in
most cases, it is deemed difficult to reasonably estimate
“taxable income” {which, for the purpose of utilizing
deferred tax assets, is treated as income before adjustments
for existing temporary differences and tax loss carry-
forwards). If, however, a company is abie to reasonably esti-
mate future taxable income for the next year, it may record
deferred tax assets based on deductible temporary differ-
ences and tax loss carryforwards to the extent that it is
probable that those differences or carryforwards would be
used during the next year. In addition, the JICPA guidelines
provide that a company with a material amount of tax loss
carryforwards could recognize deferred tax assets as realiz-
able based on future taxable income, reasonably estimated,
for up to the next five years if the tax loss carryforwards had
been incurred due to certain non-recurring events, such as
the restructuring of businesses, and there was not necessar-
ily any significant deficiency in the company’s ability to
earn taxable income in the future.

Since we have recorded taxable income during recent fis-
cal years, we coulc have recorded deferred tax assets realiz-
able based on a reasonable estimate of income for at least a
part of the next five years if we could have demonstrated
that we would record actual income for the foreseeable
future. We have evaluated the available evidence concern-
ing our future taxable income and other possible sources of
realization of deferred tax assets, and have concluded that
it would be appropriate to record deferred tax assets that
are realizable only in the following year. We have recorded a
valuation allowance to reduce deferred tax assets accord-
ingly. The actual taxable income amount for the fiscal year
ending March 31, 2006 may be different from our esti-
mate, which would result in a larger or smaller amount of

deferred tax assets that should have been recognized.

As of March 31, 2005 and 2004 our balance of net
deferred tax assets was ¥4.3 billion and ¥22.8 billion,
respectively. The amount of net deferred tax assets was
equal to 0.9% of our Tier | capital as of March 31, 2005
and 3.2% of our Tier | capital as of March 31, 2004. If we
had concluded that we could reasonably estimate taxable
income for the next five years, as of March 31, 2005, the
balance of net deferred tax assets couid have been
significantly higher.

Reserve for Retirement Benefits

Shinsei has a non-contributory defined benefit pension plan
and certain of its Japanese subsidiaries have unfunded sev-
erance indemnity plans. In addition, APLUS and Showa
Leasing both have non-contributory defined benefit pension
plans and unfunded severance indemnity plans. Together,
these plans cover most of our regular employees. A reserve
for retirement benefits is provided for payment in future
years. We follow guidelines for accounting for employee
retirement benefit plans issued by the JICPA and estimate
the amounts of the retirement benefit obligations and plan
assets under the pension plans at the end of the fiscal year
using assumptions for the expected rate of return on plan
assets and the discount rate.

Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets

Shinsei and its consolidated subsidiaries determine the
expected rate of return on plan assets based on the targeted
average long-term performance of the assets. Because
assumptions regarding the rate of return on assets are
affected by changing general economic and market condi-
tions, we need to make significant judgments to determine
appropriate assumptions underlying the estimate of long-
term performance, which also impact the estimate of the
reserve for retirement benefits and net periodic pension
cost. For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005, the
expected rate of return was between 2.2% and 3.5%.

Discount Rate

Shinsei and its consolidated subsidiaries have selected the
interest rate for Japanese government bonds with a 20-year
maturity as the basis for the discount rate. We determined
that the interest rate for Japanese government bonds with a
20-year maturity is the best estimate of the risk-free rate
because we estimated that the period of time for effective
settlement of the benefit obligation under the pension plans
would be approximately 18 years on average and the risk-
free rate for a period of 18 years was assumed to be sub-
stantially the same as the interest rate for a 20-year
maturity Japanese government bond. This assumption could



change if we become aware of information that leads us to
determine that a different period for settling the benefit
obligation is required. A change in that assumption could,
in turn, change the discount rate and the amounts reported
in our financial statements. Changing our methodologies for
calculating the estimated settlement period would also
affect our estimate of the discount rate and amounts in our
financial statements. For the fiscal years ended March 31,
2005, the discount rate was between 2.0% and 2.2%. Had
the discount rate decreased 0.5 percentage points, net peri-
odic pension cost for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005
would not have increased materially.

Hedge Accounting

We follow guidelines issued by the JICPA regarding hedge
accounting applicable to assets and liabilities exposed to a
risk of change in fair value or cash flow. Derivative transac-
tions that meet the hedge accounting criteria are primarily
accounted for under a deferral method whereby unrealized
gains and losses are deferred as assets or liabilities until the
profits and losses on the hedged items are realized.

Until the end of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003,
we principally applied a “macro hedge” approach for inter-
est rate derivatives used to manage interest rate risks and
its ALM activities based on the transitional treatment pre-
scribed in Industry Audit Committee Report No. 24 issued
by the JICPA (“Report No. 24"). The effectiveness of the
macro hedge approach was reviewed for a reduction in inter-
est rate risk exposure and the actual risk amount of deriva-
tives within the preapproved limit under our risk control
policies. Effective April 1, 2003, we adopted portfolio hedg-
ing in accordance with the Report No. 24, Under portfolio
hedging, a portfolio of hedged items such as deposits or
loans with common maturities is matched with a group of
hedging instruments such as interest rate swaps, which off-
set the effect of fair value fiuctuations of the hedged items
by identified maturities, and are designated as a hedge of
the portfolio. The effectiveness of the portfolio hedge is
assessed by each group.

Prior to April 1, 2003, we accounted for fund swap and
certain currency swap transactions on an accrual basis.
Fund swap transactions are foreign exchange swaps, and
consist of spot foreign exchange contracts bought or sold
and forward foreign exchange contracts sold or bought.
Such transactions are contracted for the purpose of lending
or borrowing in a different currency. Fund swap transactions
are used to convert the principal equivalent amount into
spot foreign exchange contracts bought or sold with regard
to the corresponding fund borrowing or lending. Such trans-
actions convert the corresponding principal equivalents and
foreign currency equivalents to pay and receive, whose
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amounts and due dates are predetermined at the time of
the transactions, into forward foreign exchange contracts
bought or sold. Effective April 1, 2003, these swap transac-
tions are accounted for using deferral hedge accounting by
fully applying Industry Audit Committee Report No. 25 of
the JICPA. Under deferral hedge accounting, hedged items
are identified by grouping the foreign currency-denominated
financial assets and liabilities by currencies and designating
derivative transactions such as currency swap transactions
and forward exchange contracts as hedging instruments.
Hedge effectiveness is reviewed by comparing the total for-
eign currency position of the hedged items and hedging
instruments by currency.

For the fiscal years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004,
net unrealized gains and losses on hedging instruments
which were deferred and recorded as assets or liabilities
amounted to ¥1.2 billion (liabilities, net) and ¥12.0 billion
(assets, net), respectively.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

in August 2002, the Business Accounting Deliberation
Council issued a Statement of Opinion, “Accounting for
Impairment of Fixed Assets,” and in October 2003, the
Accounting Standards Board of Japan {(“ASBJ") issued ASB
Guideline No.6, “Guidance for Accounting Standards for
impairment of Fixed Assets.” The standard requires a com-
pany to evaluate its long-lived assets for impairment if cer-
tain indicators arise. Impairment losses on an individual
asset or a group of assets establish a new cost basis for the
assets, We adopted this new standard as of March 31,
2004, ahead of the date by which adoption was required,
We evaluated our long-lived assets for impairment, using
our best estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections. We recorded no impairment
losses on long-lived assets for the fiscal year ended March
31, 2004 or 2005 as a result of the application of this new
accounting standard and the related implementation
guidance.

Business Combinations

For consolidated financial statements purposes, assets and
liabilities of acquired subsidiaries are recorded primarily on
the basis of their estimated fair values at the date of the
acquisition. See “—Recently Issued Accounting Pronounce-
ments” below for further discussion of the treatment of
accounting for business combinations.

We acquired a controlling interest in APLUS and Showa
l.easing on September 29, 2004 and March 23, 2005
respectively. [n connection with the consolidation of APLUS
and Showa Leasing, we recognized the assets (including
acquired goodwill and intangible assets) and liabilities of
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the subsidiaries primarily at their fair values. We used
quoted market prices in active markets as the best evidence
of fair value, where available. If quoted market prices were
not available, the estimate of fair value was based on the
best information available, including prices for similar
assets and liabilities and the results of using other fair value
measurement techniques. We adopted the following meth-
odologies based on the nature of the assets and liabilities
being valued and the availability of information:

¢ market approach: market transactions involving the

sale of comparable assets;

¢ income approach: present value of earnings

attributable to the asset; and

® cost approach: reproduction or replacement costs

adjusted for depreciation and obsolescence.

As a result of fair value recognition, reserves for credit
losses were offset with the corresponding loans or other
assets.

We also recognized certain intangible assets in connec-
tion with the acquisition of the subsidiaries because they
arose from contractual or other legal rights, or were sepa-
rable. The excess of our purchase price over the fair value of
the net assets acquired, including intangible assets, was
recorded as acquired goodwill.

Additional information about this policy can be found in
Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Total Assets

As of March 31, 2005, we had consolidated total assets of
¥8,576.3 billion. This represented a 35.2% increase from
¥6,343.7 billion as of March 31, 2004. The increase was

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Standards for Business Combinations

In October 2003, the Business Accounting Deliberation
Council issued a new comprehensive accounting standard
for business combinations, “Accounting Standards for
Business Combinations,” which will be effective from the
fiscal year starting after March 31, 2006. The new ac-
counting standard requires business combinations to be
accounted for primarily by the purchase method and per-
mits certain limited business combinations to be ac-
counted for by the pooling-of-interest method. Under the
standard, the cost of an acquired entity in a stock trans-
action will be determined based on the quoted market
price of the equity securities for a reasonable period be-
fore and after the date that the terms of the acquisition
are agreed to and announced. An acquiring entity may al-
focate a portion of the cost of an acquired entity to the
identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities as-
sumed based on their estimated fair values at date of the
acquisition. Identifiable intangible assets are permitted to
be recognized regardless of whether they had been re-
corded in the financial statements of the acquired entity.
The excess of the cost of an acquired entity over the net
of the amounts assigned to assets acquired and liabilities
assumed will be recognized as acquired goodwill. This
new standard will be applied prospectively.

principally attributable to our acquisition of APLUS and
Showa Leasing, which resulted in significant increases in
other assets, acquired goodwill and intangible assets and
customers’ liabilities for acceptances and guarantees.
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The foliowing table summarizes the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of September 30, 2004 as a
result of our acquisition of APLUS. As the capital injection made in February 2005 was considered to be the second step in a
step acquisition, the fair value of APLUS’s assets and liabilities, including intangible assets and acquired goodwill, was updated
and set forth as follows.

Table 14. Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities—APLUS

Billions of yen

Cash and due from banks ¥168.8
Monetary assets held in trust 64.1
Securities 10.8
Loans 122.9
Other assets (including ¥178.7 billion of instaliment receivables and ¥70.9 billion of intangible assets) 330.3
Premises and equipment 14.7
Customers’ liabilities for guarantees 1,200.7

Total assets acquired, excluding acquired goodwill (A) 19124
Commercial paper (11.0)
Borrowed money (677.2)
Other liabilities (241.2)
Deferred tax liabilities, net (18.6)
Guarantees (1,200.7)

Total liabilities assumed (B) (2,048.9)
Net asset fair value before capital injection (A)-(B)=(C) (136.4)
Capital injection (D} 241.0
Net asset fair value after capital injection (D)-(C) 104.5
Minority interest (Class D) (49.5)
Minority interest (Class E) (0.1)
Net asset fair value attributable to Shinsei 54.8
Purchase price 253.5
Acquired goodwill 198.6
Acquired goodwill amortization (second half of fiscal 2004) (4.9)
Acquired goodwil! outstanding as of March 31, 2005 ¥193.6

The following table summarizes the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of March 31, 2005 as a
result of our acquisition of Showa Leasing.

Table 15. Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities—Showa Leasing

Billions of yen

Cash and due from banks ¥19
Securities 11.5
Loans and bills discounted 0.7
Other assets (including ¥132.1 billion of installment receivables and ¥10.1 billion of intangible assets) 223.4
Premises and equipment 3134

Total assets acquired, excluding acquired goodwill 551.1
Acquired goodwill 51.2

Total assets acquired 602.4
Commercial paper (6.0
Borrowed money (458.8)
Other liabilities (52.4)
Reserve for retirement benefit (2.1)
Deferred tax liabilities (6.1)

Total liabilities assumed (525.5)
Minority interest (0.9

Net assets acquired (Total purchased price) 75.9
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Securities

The following table sets forth the composition of our con-
solidated portfclio of available-for-sale equity and debt

securities and held-to-maturity debt securities as of

Table 16. Securities by Maturity (Consolidated)

March 31, 2005. As reflected below, most of the securities
in these categories are Japanese government bonds and
Japanese corporate bonds, a substantial majority of which
will mature during the next five years.

Billions of yen

As of March 31, 2005

Over Over Over Over
One year ore year to  three yearsto five years to  seven years to Qver Unspecified
or fess three years five years seven years ten years ten years term Total
Japanese national government bonds  ¥225.5 ¥321.8 ¥ — ¥ — ¥ 5.1 ¥35.1 ¥ — ¥ 5878
Japanese local government bonds 147.8 38 0.0 — 0.0 — — 151.6
Japanese corpaorate bonds 257.5 217.1 53.2 1.8 0.0 — — 529.8
Japanese equity securities — — — — — — 24.9 24.9
Foreign bonds and other 6.2 19.5 46.9 9.0 19.3 6.2 4.9 112.4
Total securities ¥637.1 ¥562.3 ¥100.2 ¥10.9 ¥24.5 ¥41.4 ¥29.8 ¥1,406.5

Loan Portfolio
As of March 31, 2005, we had ¥3,430.4 billion in loans
and bills discounted. This represented 40.0% of total con-
solidated assets and a 12.6% increase from the ¥3,047.0
billion of loans and bills discounted as of March 31, 2004,
Most of our loan portfolio was originated by Shinsei and
our domestic subsidiaries. Of the ¥770.3 billion in loans to
the finance and insurance industry, ¥170.7 billion con-
sisted of loans to public sector financial institutions or
government-related institutions. In addition, a majority of
loans to the real estate industry as of March 31, 2005

Table 17. Loans by Borrower Industry (Consolidated)

consisted of non-recourse, project finance loans. Compared
to March 31, 2004, loans to the real estate industry
increased by ¥190.7 billion, 54.6% of which is attributable
to the increase in non-recourse financing. Loans to others,
which increased by ¥314.4 billion or 98.9% in the fisca!
year ended march 31, 2005, include mortgage loans from
Shinsei and other loans to individuals mainly from APLUS.
Loans to transportation increased by ¥109.6 billion, to
¥427.4 billion as of March 31, 2005 due to the increase of
loans to public sector financial institutions.

Billions of yen (except percentages)

As of March 31 2005 2004
Domestic offices (excluding Japan offshore market accounts):
Manufacturing ¥ 1939 5.7% ¥ 261.5 8.7%
Mining 1.9 0.1 3.7 0.1
Construction 23.9 0.7 25.8 0.9
Electric power, gas, heat supply and water supply 120.5 3.6 169.4 5.7
Information and communications 21.3 0.6 37.9 1.3
Transportation 427.4 12.6 317.7 10.6
Wholesale and retail 59.7 1.8 70.0 2.3
Finance and insurance 770.3 22.7 873.4 29.1
Real estate 852.5 25.1 661.8 22.1
Services 149.4 4.4 146.9 4.9
Local government 138.8 4.1 111.1 3.7
Others 632.3 18.6 318.0 10.6
Total domestic (A) ¥3,393.4 100.0% ¥2,997.7 100.0%
Overseas offices (including Japan offshore market accounts):
Governments ¥ — —% ¥ — —%
Financial institutions — — — —
Others 36.7 100.0 49.2 100.0
Total overseas (B) ¥ 36.7 100.0% ¥  49.2  100.0%
Total (A+B) ¥3,4304 ¥3,047.0
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Loan Maturity
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The following table sets forth the composition of Shinsei’s non-consolidated loan portfolio by type of interest rate and maturity
as of the dates indicated. In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005, fixed-interest rate loans increased as well as variable-

interest rate loans increased.

Table 18. Loan Maturity (Non-Consalidated)

Billions of yen
As of March 31 2005 2004
Fixed-interest loans:
One year or less® ¥ — ¥ —
Over one year to three years 209.9 219.6
Over three years to five years 124.9 155.2
Over five years to seven years 207.2 105.4
Over seven years 545.6 441.3
Indefinite term 324 51.8
Variable-interest loans:
One year or lesst® ¥ — ¥ —
Over one year to three years 562.2 467.8
Over three years to five years 335.9 313.5
Over five years to seven years 125.5 51.3
Over seven years 70.3 84.2
Indefinite term 35.3 58.7
Total loans:
One year or less ¥1,193.9 ¥1,268.4
Over one year to three years 772.1 687.4
Over three years to five years 460.9 468.7
Over five years to seven years 332.8 156.8
Over seven years 616.0 525.6
Indefinite term 67.7 110.6
Total loans ¥3,443.7 ¥3,217.8
Note:

(1) Loans with maturities of one year or less are not broken down by type of interest rate.

Asset Quality and Disposal of Problem Loans

We classify our obligors and assess our asset quality based
on our self-assessment manual developed in accordance
with guidelines published by the FSA. We generally perform
our self-assessment quarterly and at least semi-annually.
The self-assessment process involves classifying obligors
based on their financial condition and then categorizing
claims against obligors in order of collection risk. For a dis-
cussion of our process of categorizing obligors, see “Risk
Policy and Management—Credit Risk Management.” Based

on these classifications we establish reserves and disclose
our problem loans and other claims using criteria specified
in the Financial Revitalization Law. We also disclose our
problem foans under a format devised by the Japanese
Bankers Association for the disclosure of risk-monitored
foans.

The following table compares the scope of each category
of claim under the Financial Revitalization Law and each
type of risk-monitored loan, as well as the obligor type to
which they relate:
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Table 19. Comparison of Categories of Obligors, Claims Under the Financial Revitalization Law and Risk Monitored Loans

Legally bankrupt

Virtually bankrupt

Loans to bankrupt obligors
Claims against bankrupt and

quasi-bankrupt obligors

Possibly bankrupt

Non-accrual delinquent loans

Doubtful claims

(Substandard)

Caution

Loans past due for three months or more

Substandard claims
Restructured loans

Normal

{Other claims against substandard obligors)

Normal claims

Notes:

(1) The Financial Revitalization Law requires us to classify and disclose “claims,” which include, in addition to loans and bills discounted, foreign exchange
claims, securities lent, accrued income and suspense payment in other assets, as well as customers’ liabilities for acceptances znd guarantees. By
comparison, the format devised by the Japanese Bankers Association only classifies, and calls for disclosure of, certain lcars.

(2) Shaded claims denote claims that are considered to be non-performing under the Financial Revitalization Law.

In October 2002, the FSA announced a new “Program requirements for employing the discounted cash flow
for Financial Revival” that has led to more stringent evalua- method, applying it to our claims against substandard
tions of claims. This program required banks to use dis- obligors and possibly bankrupt obligors, in each case by
counted cash flow analyses, among other measures, when principal amount.
providing loan loss reserves against major borrowers with The following tables and discussion on our asset quality
substandard claims. We have gone well beyond the FSA’s are on a non-consolidated basis unless specified otherwise.
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Self-Assessment Guidelines and Reserve Policies

Table 20.

Obligor classification

Definition of Obligor Classifications

Definition

Legally bankrupt (hatan-saki)
Virtually bankrupt

(jisshitsu hatan-saki)

Possibly bankrupt
(hatan kenen-saki)

Caution (youchui-saki)

Normal (seijo-saki)

Obligors who have already gone bankrupt, from both a legal and/or formal perspective.

Obligors who have not yet gone legally or formally bankrupt but who are substantially
bankrupt because they are in serious financial difficulties and are not deemed to be
capable of restructuring.

Obligors who are not yet bankrupt but are in financial difficulties and are very likely to
go bankrupt in the future because they are having difficulty implementing their man-
agement improvement plans. This includes obligors who are receiving ongoing support
from financial institutions.

Obligors who require close attention because there are problems with their borrowings,
such as reduced or suspended interest payments, problems with fulfiliment, such as
substantial postponements of principal or interest payments, or problems with their
financial positions as a result of their poor or unstable business conditions. The term
“caution obligors” includes “substandard obligors” (youkanri-saki), which refers to obli-
gors with “substandard claims,” that is, loans past due for more than three months or
restructured loans. Claims against caution obligors that are not substandard claims are
sometimes referred to as “other claims against caution obligors” (sonota youchui-saki).

Obligors whose business conditions are favorable and who are deemed not to have any
particular problems in terms of their financial position.

Table 21.

Definitions of Claims Classified Under the Financial Revitalization Law

Category

Definition

Claims against bankrupt and
quasi-bankrupt obligors
(hasan kosei saiken oyobi
korera ni junzuru saiken)

Doubtful claims (kiken saiken)

Substandard claims
(youkanri safken)

Normal claims (seijo sarken)

Claims against obligors under bankruptcy and similar claims, as provided for under
the Bankruptcy Law, the Corporate Reorganization Law, the Civil Rehabilitation Law
and similar laws,

Claims against obligors that are not yet in bankruptcy but have experienced deteriora-
tion in their financial condition and operating performance and for which there is a high
probability of contractual defaults on principal and interest payments.

Loans past due for three months or more and restructured loans, excluding those
categorized as claims against bankrupt and quasi-bankrupt obligors or doubtful ciaims.

Claims against obligors that are experiencing no particuiar problems with their financial
condition or operating performance, other than claims in any of the three categories
above.
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Table 22.
Definitions of Categories of Risk-Monitored Loans
Category Definition
Loans to bankrupt obligors Loans to legally bankrupt obligors.

(hatan-saki saiken)

(ental-saki saiken)

or more (san-ka-getsu ijou
entai saiken)

Non-accrual delinquent loans Loans to virtually bankrupt and possibly bankrupt obligors.

Loans past due for three months Loans on which principal and/or interest are past due three months or more.

Restructured loans (kashidashi  Loans with lending terms that have been changed in ways favorable to the borrower,

jouken kanwa saiken) including reducing interest rates, providing grace periods for repayment and forgiving
a portion of the debt.

Table 23.

Claims against obligors, as categorized
under self-assessment guidelines

Reserve Policies

Reserve policy

Claims against virtually and legally bankrupt
obligors

Claims against possibly bankrupt obligors

Claims against substandard obligors

Claims against caution obligors, other than
claims against substandard obligors

Claims against normal obligors

We either write off directly or make a provision for, in the specific reserve
for loan losses, the full amount of the unsecured, unguaranteed portion
of the claim.

For most claims against possibly bankrupt obligors, we make a provision
in the specific reserve for loan losses in an amount calculated based on
the discounted cash flow method. See “—Reserve for Credit Losses.”

For the remaining claims, we make a provision to that reserve for the
unsecured, unguaranteed portion of the claims in the amount of the
product of that portion and the higher of 70% or the estimated loss ratio,
based on historical losses on claims in this category, for the next three
years.

For most claims against substandard obligors, we make a provision in the
general reserve for loan losses in an amount calculated based on the dis-
counted cash flow method. See “—Reserve for Credit Losses.”

For the remaining claims, we make a provision to that reserve for the
estimated amount of losses over three years computed based on the
expected loss ratio for claims in this category.

We make a provision, in the general reserve for loan losses, for the
estimated amount of losses over the average remaining term of the loans
computed based on the expected loss ratio for claims in this category.

For claims against obligors rated 5A through 6C under our credit rating
system, we make a provision, in the general reserve for loan losses, for the
estimated amount of losses over the remaining term of the loans com-
puted based on the expected loss ratio for claims in this category. For the
remaining claims, we make a provision to that reserve for the estimated
amount of losses over a year computed based on the expected loss ratio
for claims in this category.
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Claims Classified Under the Financial Revitalization Law Shinsei’s other claims against caution obligors (sono ta
Under the Financial Revitalization Law, Japanese banks cat- youchui-saki) totaled ¥71.9 billion as of March 31, 2005, a
egorize their total claims in four categories by reference to 43.5% decrease from the ¥127.2 billion as of March 31,
the nature of the relevant assets. In addition to loans and 2004. These claims represented 2.0% of total non-
bills discounted, claims that are subject to disclosure under consolidated claims as of March 31, 2005, down from
the Financial Revitalization Law include foreign exchange 3.6% as of March 31, 2004.
claims, securities lent, accrued income and suspense pay- The reductions we have achieved are attributable to the
ment in other assets, as well as customers’ liabilities for following remedial processes to identify, manage and
acceptances and guarantees. resolve problem loans effectively:

‘ ¢ first, we rigorously apply our ratings and self-
Disclosure of Claims Classified Under the Financial assessment procedures to label each obligor and loan
Revitalization Law consistently and accurately;
Our current management team has consistently emphasized ¢ second, for obligors with relatively low credit quality,
the monitoring and reduction of problem loans. Shinsei's particularly those whose financial situation is
total amount of non-performing claims as disclosed pursu- unstable, we commence early remedial consultation
ant to the Financial Revitalization Law decreased ¥45.5 bil- and action, including collections and sale of collat-
lion, or 46.8%, to ¥51.7 billion, between March 31, 2004 eral. We closely review various options, including
and 2005. During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005, company restructuring and securitization, which can
all three categories of non-performing claims decreased sig- improve or reduce credit risk, before deciding on a
nificantly: claims against bankrupt and quasi-bankrupt obli- final course of action; and
gors decreased 71.8% to ¥3.1 billion, doubtful claims ¢ third, we assign obligors rated as caution obligors or
decreased 38.8% to ¥42.1 billion, and substandard claims lower to an independent division within Shinsei that
decreased 62.5% to ¥6.4 billion. As a result of these dra- specializes in managing the claims of such obligors.
matic reductions, the ratio of non-performing claims dis- We tailor action plans for each obligor based on its
closed under the Financial Revitalization Law to total particular circumstances and with sensitivity to its
non-consolidated claims as of March 31, 2005 decreased particular problems.

to 1.4%, as compared to 2.8% as of March 31, 2004,

The table below shows the reduction in the balance of our non-performing loans on a non-consolidated basis:

Table 24, Claims Classified Under the Financial Revitalization Law (Non-Consolidated)

Billions of yen {(except percentages)

As of March 31 2005 2004
Claims against bankrupt and quasi-bankrupt obligors ¥ 3.1 ¥ 111
Doubtful claims 42.1 68.8
Substandard claims 6.4 17.2

Total claims disclosed under the Financial Revitalization Law 51.7 97.3
Normal claims and claims against caution obligors excluding substandard claims 3,569.3 3,403.8

Total claims ¥3,621.0 ¥3,501.1
Ratio of total claims disclosed under the Financial Revitalization Law to total claims 1.4% 2.8%
Note:

(1) Total claims disclosed under the Financial Revitalization Law includes loans and bills discounted, customers’ liabilities for acceptances and guarantees
and other exposure to or in respect of bankrupt and quasi-bankrupt obligors and doubtful claims, as wel} as loans and bills discounted classified as
substandard claims.
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Coverage Ratios

As of March 2005, Shinsei's non-consolidated coverage
ratios for claims classified under the Financial Revitaliza-
tion Law, which is the total of collateral pledged against
claims, guarantees for claims and reserve for loan losses,
measured against total claims, were 100.0% for claims
against bankrupt and quasi-bankrupt obligors, 94.6% for
doubtful claims and 89.5% for substandard claims. For all
claims classified under the law, the coverage ratio was

94.3%. The slight decrease in coverage ratio is mainly due
to resolution of all remaining items under our cancellation
right during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005.

Shinsei directly writes off, rather than reserving, the por-
tion of claims against virtually and legally bankrupt obligors
that are estimated to be uncollectible. in the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2005 and the fiscal year ended March
31, 2004, ¥5.9 billion and ¥9.3 billion, respectively, of
such claims were written off on a non-consolidated basis.

Table 25. Coverage Ratios far Non-Performing Claims Disclosed Under the Financial Revitalization Law (Non-Consolidated)

Billions of yen {except percentages)

Amounts of coverage

Reserve Collateral
Amount of for and Coverage
claims loan losses guarantees” Total ratio

As of March 31, 2005:
Claims against bankrupt and quasi-bankrupt obligors ¥ 3.1 ¥ — ¥ 31 ¥ 3.1 100.0%
Doubtful claims 42.1 30.3 9.5 39.8 94.6
Substandard claims 6.4 2.7 3.0 5.8 89.5

Total ¥ 51.7 ¥33.0 ¥ 15.7 ¥ 48.8 94.3%
As of March 31, 2004:
Claims against bankrupt and quasi-bankrupt obligors ¥ 11.1 ¥ 60 ¥ 5.1 ¥ 11.1 100.0%
Doubtful claims 68.8 44 4 23.4 67.9 98.6
Substandard claims 17.2 7.0 10.2 17.2 100.0

Total ¥ 97.3 ¥57.4 ¥ 38.8 ¥ 96.3 99.0%
Note:

(1) Collateral and guarantees as of March 31, 2004 includes part of the unreserved portion of claims that have become eligible to be sold back to the DIC
pursuant to our cancellation right. As of March 31, 2005, there are no unresolved disputes with the DIC related to [oan assets. For a discussion of our
cancellation right, see “—Overview—Significant Transactions—Reduction in Non-Performing Claims and Expiration of Cancellation Right to the DIC.”

Disposal of Problem Claims

Shinsei uses a variety of methods for removing problem
loans from its balance sheet, including sales, collections
and, prior to the third anniversary of the closing date of the

acquisition of LTCB, the return of loans to the DIC pursuant

to the cancellation right regarding loan-related assets held

by our predecessor, provided by the DIC in connection with
the acquisition of our common shares by New LTCB Part-
ners, C.V. in March 2000. The following table sets forth a
breakdown of disposals of substandard claims, doubtful
claims and cfaims against bankrupt and quasi-bankrupt
obligors on a non-consolidated basis:

Table 26. Reduction of Problem Claims as Disclosed Under the Financial Revitalization Law (Non-Gonsolidated)

Billions of yen

Fiscal years ended March 31 2005 2004
Write-off/forgiveness ¥ 2.7 ¥ 13.8
Sale 8.3 26.5
Transferred to the DIC via exercise of cancellation right 23 64.1
Collections, net 32.0 31.3
Total ¥45.5 ¥135.8

&aA




In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005, Shinsei dis-
posed of ¥45.5 billion in non-performing claims. Of the
total decline, 70.3% or ¥32.0 billion was attributable to
collections or improvement of obligor's credit.
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Changes in the Amount of Problem Claims

The table below sets forth Shinsei's experience since March
31, 2003 with the removal of problem claims and the
emergence of new claims over recent periods on a non-
consolidated basis:

Table 27. Changes in the Amount of Problem Claims (Non-Consolidated)

Billions of yen

Claims against
bankrupt and

Substandard Doubtful quasi-bankrupt

As of March 31 claims claims obligors Total
Balance of problem claims as of March 31, 2003 ¥ 98.4 ¥ 99.0 ¥ 35.7 ¥ 233.2
Claims newly added April 1 to March 31, 2004 8.4 7.9 1.7 18.1
Claims removed April 1 to March 31, 2004 (84.0) (40.3) (29.5) (154.0)
Claims migrating between classifications April 1 to March 31, 2004 (5.4) 2.2 3.2 —
Net change (81.1) (30.1) (24.5) (135.8)
Balance of problem claims as of March 31, 2004 ¥17.2 ¥ 68.8 ¥11.1 ¥ 97.3
Claims newly added April 1 to March 31, 2005 0.0 6.5 0.9 7.5
Claims removed April 1 to March 31, 2005 (10.2) (32.2) (10.5) (53.0)
Claims migrating between classifications April 1 to March 31, 2005 (0.5) (1.0) 1.6 —
Net change (10.7) (26.7) (8.0) (45.5)
Balance of problem claims as of March 31, 2005 ¥ 64 ¥42.1 ¥ 3.1 ¥ 51.7

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005, only ¥7.5 bil-
lion of claims were newly classified as substandard or
worse, while Shinsei removed ¥53.0 billion of claims in
these categories during the same period. The ¥32.2 billion
in doubtful claims removed during the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2005 was principally attributable to collections,
as well as sales to third parties other than the DIC.

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004, only ¥18.1
billion of claims were newly classified as substandard or
worse, while Shinsei removed ¥154.0 billion of claims in

these categories during the same period. The ¥84.0 billion
in substandard claims removed during the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2004 was principally attributable to recoveries
from obligors through such means as assisting them with
restructuring, as well as sales to third parties other than the
DIC. Most of the ¥69.9 billion of doubtful claims and
claims against bankrupt and quasi-bankrupt obligors that
we removed were through the DIC accepting claims under
the cancellation right.
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Reserve for Credit Losses

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our total reserve for credit losses on a non-consolidated basis as of the dates

indicated:

Table 28. Reserve for Credit Losses (Non-Consolidated)

Billions of yen (except percentages)

As of March 31 2005 2004
General reserve for loan losses ¥ 56.1 ¥ 617
Specific reserve for loan losses 35.7 54.3
Reserve for loans to restructuring countries 0.0 0.0
Subtotal reserve for loan losses 91.9 116.1
Specific reserve for other credit losses 32.5 61.7
Total reserve for credit losses ¥ 1244 ¥ 177.9
Total claims!? ¥3,621.0 ¥3,501.1
Ratio of total reserve for loan losses to total claims 2.5% 3.3%
Ratio of total reserves for credit losses to total claims 3.4% 5.1%

Note:

(1) Total claims includes loans and bills discounted, foreign exchange claims, securities lent, accrued interest income and suspense payment in other assets,

as well as customers’ liabilities for acceptances and guarantees,

Effective March 31, 2003, Shinsei applied the dis-
counted cash flow method in calculating the loan loss
reserve amounts for most of its claims against obligors cat-
egorized as possibly bankrupt or substandard under its self-
assessment guidelines. This entails reserving the difference
between the cash flow out of which principal and interest
will be paid, discounted by the originally contracted interest
rate on the claim, and the book value of the claim. In cases
where it is difficult to reasonably estimate future cash flow,
Shinsei set aside as reserves the product of the estimated
toss ratios on the claims and either the balance of the
claims, in the case of claims against substandard obligors,
or the unsecured, unguaranteed portion of the claims, in
the case of claims against possibly bankrupt obligors.

in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005, Shinsei
applied the discounted cash flow method to 84.8% of its
claims against possibly bankrupt obligors and 64.4% of its
claims against substandard obligors, in each case by princi-
pal amount. In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005, we

reversed a portion of our reserves for other credit losses due
to our resolution of all claims under our previous cancella-
tion right with the DIC. The remaining reserve for other
credit losses consists primarily of a reserve taken on our
contribution to an industry-wide fund set up to purchase
and cotlect loans and a reserve for EIE| related losses.

For a discussion of our reserve policies, see “Critical
Accounting Policies—Reserve for Credit Losses.”

Risk-Monitored Loans

We had ¥80.0 billion in consolidated risk-monitored loans
as of March 31, 2005. As was the case regarding total non-
performing claims as disclosed under the Financial Revital-
ization Law, this figure represented a significant decrease,
15.7%, from the balance as of March 31, 2004. While
restructured loans increased primarily due to the consolida-
tion of APLUS, non-accrual delinquent loans decreased by
¥26.6 billion or 34.4%.
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The following tables set forth information concerning our consolidated and non-consolidated risk-monitored loans as of the

dates indicated:

Table 29. Risk-Manitored Loans (Consolidated)

Billions of yen (except percentages)

As of March 31 2005 2004
Loans and bills discounted ¥3,430.4 ¥3,047.0
Loans to bankrupt obligors (A) 2.6 7.9
Non-accrual delinquent loans (B) 48.1 69.5
Total (A)+(B) ¥ 508 ¥ 774
Ratio to total loans and bills discounted (%) 1.5% 2.5%
Loans past due for three months or more (C) ¥ 5.5 ¥ 8.2
Restructured loans (D) 23.6 8.2
Total risk-monitored loans (A)+(B)+(C)+(D) 80.0 94.9
Ratio to total loans and bills discounted (%) 2.3% 3.1%
Reserve for credit losses ¥ 149.7 ¥ 177.9

Table 30. Risk-Monitored Loans (Non-Consolidated)

Billions of yen (except percentages)

As of March 31 2005 2004
Loans and bills discounted ¥3,443.7 ¥3,217.8
Loans to bankrupt obligors (A) 2.3 7.5
Non-accrual delinguent loans (B) 41.2 68.6
Total (A)+(B) ¥ 435 ¥ 761
Ratio to total loans and bills discounted (%) 1.3% 2.4%
Loans past due for three months or more (C) ¥ 31 ¥ 8.2
Restructured loans (D) 3.3 9.0
Total risk-monitored loans (A)+(B)+(C)+(D) ¥ 50.0 ¥ 034
Ratio to total loans and bills discounted (%) 1.5% 2.9%
Reserve for credit iosses ¥ 1244 ¥ 177.9

Other assets on our consolidated balance sheet as of
March 31, 2005 aiso inctude ¥1.4 billion of installment
receivables to bankrupt obligors, ¥4.2 billion of non-accrual
delinquent installment receivables, ¥1.0 biflion of past due
for three months or more installment receivables, and
¥18.2 billion of restructured instailment receivables, which
are not included in our balance of consolidated risk
monitored loans as of that date.

Funding and Liquidity

Funding and Liquidity Management

The focus of liquidity management is to ensure sufficient
cash to meet both normal and unanticipated funding needs.
Successful liquidity management requires being able to
fund all requirements without disruption to our normal busi-
ness operations. Funding requirements may include con-
tractual obligations, future asset growth, fiability maturities
and deposit withdrawals.

Our liguidity management strategy includes the following

key components:

¢ maintaining a portfolio of surplus cash and liquid

assets;

¢ developing retail customer deposits as a long-term,

stable source of funding;

¢ maintaining unutilized funding capacity; and

e maintaining diverse sources of funding.

We continuously seek to improve our liquidity manage-
ment strategy and minimize refinancing risk by enhancing
the stability and diversity of our funding sources. Our Trea-
sury Division is responsible for our liquidity management
and funding execution.

In accordance with its role as a special purpose long-
term credit bank in Japan, LTCB relied heavily on domestic
debentures for funding. Over the past four years, however,
we have transformed ourseives into a full-service financial
institution and as part of that process have increased our
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retail deposit balances. We formally converted from a long-
term credit bank to an ordinary bank on April 1, 2004. In
connection with this conversion, the FSA has allowed us to
continue issuing debentures for ten years after the conver-
sion. Our long-term funding strategy, however, is to eventu-
ally replace debenture issuances with customer deposits
and ordinary debt financing.

Table 31. Diversification by Funding Type (Consolidated)

The table below shows changes in the proportion of our
overall funding represented by funds raised from debentures
and deposits in our retail and institutional banking busi-
nesses, as well as from our collateralized loan obligation
program at the end of the periods indicated. As seen below,
our retail deposits have become an increasingly important
source of funding.

Billions of yen

Fiscal year ended March 31 2005 2004 2003 2002

Retail deposits ¥2,300.4 ¥1,591.5 ¥1,492.1 ¥ 880.8
Retail debentures 559.3 645.2 701.5 990.8
Institutional funding 1,924.0 1,886.3 2,296.7 3,175.3
Collateralized oan obligation 255.0 2b5.2 300.2 175.0

We take a conservative approach in managing our liquid-
ity gap positions. The table below shows a maturity profile
for our non-consolidated yen-demonstrated assets and

Table 32, Contractual Maturity Gap Profile (Non-Consolidated)

liabilities as of March 31, 2005 on a cash settlement basis.
As this table shows, we have strived to minimize our
liquidity risk by maintaining conservative net gap positions.

Billions of yen

As of March 31, 2005 Assets Liabilities® Net gap

Less than one year ¥2,701.6 ¥(1,860.0) ¥ 841.6
One year or more, but less than two years 1,115.8 (1,398.8) (283.0)
Two years or more, but less than three years 974.8 (733.0) 241.8
Three year or more, but less than four years 346.5 (230.9) 115.6
Four years or mare, but less than five years 347.0 (752.3) (405.3)
Five years or more 804.5 (1,283.0) (478.5)

Note:

(1) Liability balances include debentures, deposits, senicr and subordinated debt,

Deposits

As of March 31, 2005, we had deposits, including nego-
tiable certificates of deposit, of ¥3,452.8 billion, which
constituted 44.6% of total liabilities and represented a
26.3% increase compared with March 31, 2004. In par-
ticular, retail deposits increased ¥708.8 billion in the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2005, reflecting both the successful
implementation of our strategy to place greater emphasis on
deposits in funding, as well as the continued growth of our
retail banking business.

collateralized loan obligations, overnight funding and shareholders’ equity.

Most of our deposits and all of our negotiable certificates
of deposit are from domestic corporate and individual cus-
tomers. Although most of our deposits remained denomi-
nated in yen, the foreign currency deposits of our retail
customers grew from ¥200.3 billion as of March 31, 2004
to ¥250.5 biltion as of March 31, 2005.

As of March 31, 2005, ¥1,785.8 billion of our total
deposits consisted of time deposits. The following table sets
forth the composition of the time deposits, all of which paid
fixed interest rates, in the fiscal years ended March 31,
2005 and 2004.
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Table 33. Time Deposits by Maturity (Consolidated)

Billions of yen

As of March 31 2005 2004
Less than three months! ¥ 268.5 ¥ 227.0
Three months or more, but less than six months 165.9 120.3
Six months or more, but less than one year 104.7 148.1
Cne year or more, but less than two years 334.0 27.2
Two years or more, but less than three years 315.3 323.7
Three years or more 597.1 334.0

Total ¥1,785.8 ¥1,180.6
Note:

(1) Less than three months includes time deposits that have matured but not yet been paid.

Debentures from March 31, 2004, Debentures are issued with terms of
As of March 31, 2005, we had ¥1242.6 biliion in deben- ong, two, three or five years.

tures outstanding. This represented 16.1% of our consoli- As of March 31, 2005, scheduled repayments of deben-
dated total liabilities and constituted a decline of 8.5% tures over the periods indicated below were as follows:

Table 34. Maturity Schedule of Debentures (Consolidated)

Fiscal year ending March 31 Biltions of yen
2006 ¥ 343.7
2007 397.3
2008 152.0
2009 178.6
2010 and thereafter 170.9

Total debentures ¥1,242.6

While we will continue to issue debentures which permit us to minimize funding costs, we will also continue to diversify our
funding sources by raising funds through other means, such as deposits.

Other continue to use securitization, particularly our collateralized
The securitization of loans and other assets is another loan obligation program, as one component of our diversi-
important component of our funding strategy. in the fiscal fied funding strategy. See “—Off-Balance Sheet

year ended March 31, 2002, we established a collateralized Arrangements—Collateralized Loan Obligation Program.”
loan obligation program under which we receive the net pro- We also have established a medium-term note program,
ceeds from the issuance of notes that are backed by inter- under which we can issue up to U.S. $5.0 billion in notes
ests in loans we transfer to a master trust. As of March 31, of varying terms. As of March 31, 2005, there were ¥15.4
2005, there were ¥255.0 billion in Class A certificates billion of notes outstanding under the program.

securing notes issued to third-party investors. We intend to
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Credit Ratings

Our borrowing costs and ability to raise funds are impacted directly by our credit ratings and changes thereto. Shinsei’s credit

ratings are set forth in the table below:

Table 35. Shinsei’s Credit Ratings as of April 2005

Rating agency Long-term Short-term
Fitch Ratings Ltd. BBB F2
Japan Credit Rating Agency Ltd. (JCR) A- —
Moody's Investors Service Baal (Deposits, Senior debt) P-2
Rating and Investment Information, (nc. (R&I) A- —_
Standard & Poor’s (S&P) BBB+ A-2

Shinsei received credit ratings upgrades from S&P and R&l in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005. We believe these
upgrades will reduce our funding costs and facilitate our tiquidity risk management.

Asset and Liability Management (ALM)

Our ALM Committee is responsible for asset and liability
management. In particular, the committee is responsible for
reviewing and approving liquidity and interest rate risk poli-
cies and limits. Our president is the chair of the committee.
Other members include group heads and general managers
of divisions whose operations are closely related to balance
sheet management. Our president retains final decision-
making authority over policy relating to asset and liability
management.

Interest Rate Risk Methodology

We take an integrated approach to manage interest rate risk,
incorporating both on-balance sheet transactions, such as
lending activities, and off-balance sheet transactions, such
as swaps. We analyze and manage risk both in terms of fair
market value and profit or loss for a given accounting
period.

We set limits for fair market value risk according to the
basis point value, or bpv, method, whereby risk arising from
interest rate fluctuation is restricted to a predetermined
proportion of our shareholders’ equity.

For profit or loss within a specific period, risk limits are
set based on net interest income. Qur future balance sheet
is estimated by constructing a hypothetical model that
includes expected rollover of lending and deposits, together
with information from our current balance sheet and opera-
tional plans. Net interest income simulations are carried out
using various statistically generated scenarios for market
interest rate fluctuations. Based on these calculations, fluc-
tuations of net interest income over a year are restricted to a
predetermined range, with the objective of stabilizing inter-
est income and expenses. We manage our assets and liabili-
ties, including the mixture of fixed and variable-rate assets
and liabilities, accordingly.

Bpv Method

The bpv method measures the risk of changes in fair market
value due to fluctuations in interest rates. For example, 10
bpv means the change of fair market value when interest
rates move 10 basis points, or 0.1%. The table below sets
forth the impact on the value of our on-balance sheet and
off-balance sheet items for the maturities shown when
interest rates move 10 basis points.

Table 36. Impact of a 10 Basis Point Movement on Fair Market Value (Non-Consolidated)

Billions of yen
Over six Over one
Three months Six months months to year to Over three
As of March 31, 2005 or less one year three years years Total
On-balance sheet ¥(0.0) ¥0.0 ¥(0.9) ¥1.2 ¥0.2
Off-balance sheet (0.0 0.0 0.1 0.5 0.5

Total

¥(0.1) ¥0.0 ¥(0.8) ¥1.7 ¥ 0.8

Note: Positive figures indicate where a decline in interest rates will result in an increase in fair market value. Negative figures indicate where a dectine in

interest rates will result in a decrease in fair market value.
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We use contractual cash obligations for funding purposes. The following table sets forth a summary of our primary consolidated

contractual cash obligations as of March 31, 2005 and 2004

Table 37. Contractual Cash Obligations (Consolidated)

Billions of yen

Payments due by period as of March 31, 2005 One year or less Over one year Total
Borrowed money ¥502.5 ¥657.7 ¥1,160.2
Capital lease obligations 0.7 1.8 2.5
Total ¥503.2 ¥659.5 ¥1,162.8
Billions of yen
Payments due by period as of March 31, 2004 One year or less Over one year Total
Borrowed money ¥110.1 ¥224.3 ¥334.4
Capital lease obligations 0.0 0.1 0.1
Total ¥110.1 ¥224.4 ¥334.6
Taxation previous tax years, the expiry dates for our tax loss

Tax Loss Carryforwards

Our tax loss carryforwards principally have resuited from the
realization of credit losses for tax purposes. As of March 31,
2005, Shinsei had ¥423.4 billion in tax loss carryforwards.
Tax reforms implemented in fiscal 2004 extended the
period of tax loss carryforwards from 5 years to 7 years. As
this extension was applied retroactively for the three

Table 38. Schedule of Tax Loss Carryforwards (Non-Consaolidated)

carryforwards generated in fiscal year ending March 31,
2002 and 2003 have been extended to March 31, 2009
and 2010 respectively. We believe this amendment is ben-
eficial for us as it provides more time to utilize these tax
loss carryforwards. The table below sets forth a schedule of
tax loss carryforwards related to corporation tax and their
expiration dates:

Billions of yen

Year tax loss carryforward generated Amount Date of expiry
Fiscal year ended March 31, 2001 ¥205.2 March 31, 2006
Fiscal year ended March 31, 2002 63.0 March 31, 2009
Fiscal year ended March 31, 2003 155.1 March 31, 201G
Total ¥423.4

In addition, other important tax loss carryforwards of major subsidiaries are as follows:

Billions of yen

Year tax loss carryforward generated Amount Date of expiry
APLUS

Fiscal year ended March 31, 2005 ¥157.7 March 31, 2012
Showa Leasing

Fiscal year ended March 31, 2005 ¥42.5 March 31, 2012

Shinsei cannot add the tax loss carryforwards of APLUS
and Showa Leasing to its own tax loss carryforwards
because, as less than wholly-owned subsidiaries, they are
not included in Shinsei's consolidated corporate-tax system.

in the event that the relevant entity generates less tax-
able income in a given fiscal year than the foss carryforward

that wiil expire at year-end, we will lose the benefit of the
unused portion of the expiring loss carryforward.

We record deferred tax assets for tax loss carryforwards
and evaluate them in accordance with the JICPA guidelines.
See “Critical Accounting Polices—Valuation of Deferred Tax
Assets.”
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Changes in Japanese Tax Law

A new nationwide business tax on corporations with share-
holders’ equity of more than ¥100 million was introduced
in April 2004. The new tax is calculated based on paid-in
capital, pre-tax profit, personnel expenses, net interest
expense, and net office rent. This tax is categorized as a
part of general and administrative expenses as it is not
based on income. Corporations, including ourselves, cannot
offset it against any tax loss carryforwards. Our annual

Capital Resources and Adequacy
Table 39. Shareholders’ Equity

general and administrative expenses in the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2005 increased by ¥1.1 billion as a result of the
introduction of this new tax.

We have applied to file our tax returns under the recently
adopted consolidated corporate-tax system since the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2004. Under the consolidated sys-
tem, we base corporate tax payments on the combined
profits or losses of Shinsei and its wholly owned domestic
subsidiaries.

The following table sets forth a summary of our shareholders’ equity on a consolidated basis as of March 31, 2005 and 2004:

Millions of yen {except percentages)

As of March 31 2005 2004
Common stock ¥180,853 ¥180,853
Preferred stock 270,443 270,443
Capital surplus 18,558 18,558
Retained earnings 311,039 250,737
Net unrealized gains on securities, net of taxes 3,043 7,154
Foreign currency translation adjustments 2,738 2,255
Treasury stock, at cost ()] (1)
Total shareholders’ equity ¥786,667 ¥730,000
Ratio of total shareholders’ equity 1o total assets 9.2% 11.5%

The primary reason for recent increases in our sharehold-
ers’ equity has been increases in retained earnings due to
our profitable operations. Shareholders’ equity is also
adjusted for net unrealized gains on securities available-for-
sale, net of taxes. Shareholders’ equity as of March 31,
2005 increased by ¥56.6 billion, or 7.8%, as compared to
March 31, 2004 due primarily to an increase of ¥60.3 bil-
lion in retained earnings, offset in part by a ¥4.1 billion
decrease in net unrealized gains on securities, net of taxes,
that was mainly attributable to the impact of increasing
interest rates on the market value of our portfolio of
Japanese government bonds.

Capital Ratios

The FSA's bank capital guidelines are based on the risk-
adjusted approach developed by the Basle Committee on
Banking Regulations and Supervisory Practices of the Bank
for International Settlements. The FSA's guidelines are simi-
lar to those issued by other central bank regulators and the

differences reflect the FSA's implementation of the BiS's
approach in a manner designed to suit the Japanese bank-
ing environment. We continuously monitor our risk-adjusted
capital ratios and manage our operations in light of the
capital ratio requirements.

Our capital adequacy ratio as of March 31, 2005 was
11.78%, compared with 21.13% as of March 31, 2004.
While Tier 1l capital increased, due to a new subordinated
bond issued by Shinsei and perpetual preferred stock issued
by APLUS, Tier | capital decreased, due to acquired good-
will and intangible assets recognized through the acquisi-
tions of APLUS and Showa Leasing, as well as through the
increase in risk assets resulting from the acquisitions. Qur
Tier | capital ratio, or the ratio of Tier | capital to risk assets,
decreased from 16.15% as of March 31, 2004 to 7.00%
as of March 31, 2005. The amount of our net deferred tax
assets represented 0.9% of our Tier | capital as of March
31, 2005, and 3.2% of our Tier | capital as of March 31,
2004,




Table 40. Consolidated Capital Ratios
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Billions of yen (except percentages)

As of March 31 2005 2004
Basic items (Tier |):
Capital stock ¥ 451.2 ¥ 451.2
Acquired goodwill and intangible assets (321.2) —
Total Tier | (A) 463.0 720.3
Supplementary items (Tier I1):
General reserve for loan losses 41.3 27.8
Perpetual preferred stocks 49.5 —_
Perpetual subordinated debt and bonds 196.8 196.7
Non-perpetual subordinated debt and bonds 51.0 2.2
Total ¥ 2973 ¥ 226.8
Amount eligible for inclusion in capital (B) ¥ 2973 ¥ 226.8
Deduction (C) 22.8 4.9
Total capital (D) {(A) + (B) - (C)] ¥ 7789 ¥ 94272
Risk assets:
On-balance sheet items ¥4.624.6 ¥3,675.0
Off-balance sheet items 1,986.2 783.7
Total (E) ¥6,611.0 ¥4,458.7
Consolidated capital adequacy ratio (D) / (E) (%) 11.78% 21.13%
Consolidated Tier | capital ratio (A) / (E) (%) 7.0 16.15

Composition of Tier | Capital
Common stock and retained earnings. In conjunction with
the sale of our common shares by the DIC to New LTCB
Partners, the DIC contributed funds to offset the existing
deficit in the accounts of LTCB and new shares of common
stock were acquired by New LTCB Partners. Following this
recapitalization, our shareholders’ equity includes common
stock in the amount of ¥180.8 billion. As a result of our
recording net income in each of the past five fiscal years,
retained earnings have grown to ¥311.0 billion as of March
31, 2005.

Preferred stock. Shinsei has issued two classes of pre-
ferred stock. All shares of Class A preferred stock were
initially issued to the RCC by LTCB. Upon LTCB'’s

nationalization, the RCC transferred those shares to the

DIC. At the time of the sale of LTCB’s common shares to the
private investors in March 2000, a portion of the Class A
preferred shares was redeemed without any consideration
paid and cancelled. The DIC continues to own the remain-
ing 74,528,000 shares. At the same time, Shinsei issued
600,000,000 new shares of Class B preferred stock to the
RCC.

As holders of our preferred shares, the DIC and the RCC
are entitled to receive annual dividends and distributions of
residual assets of Shinsei as set out below in priority to
holders of common shares but pari passu among
themselves:

Table 41. Dividends and Distribution Amounts on Shares of Preferred Stock

Yen per share

Amount of
Amount of distribution of
Class of preferred shares annual dividend residual assets
Class A preferred shares ¥13.00 ¥1,300
Class B preferred shares 4.84 400

Shinsei may pay up to one-half of the annual dividend
payable on each class of preferred shares as an interim divi-
dend. Dividends on the preferred shares are not cumulative.
As long as the preferred dividend is paid, holders of pre-
ferred shares are not entitled to vote at a general meeting of
shareholders. If the preferred dividend is not paid, preferred

shares vote on a one-to-one basis with common shares on
all matters.

On June 25, 2003, Shinsei's common shareholders
approved a 1-for-2 reverse stock split, which was consum-
mated on July 29, 2003. The conversion prices for the
Class A and Class B preferred shares described below
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reflect adjustments made due to the reverse stock split.

The Class A preferred shares are convertible into com-
mon shares at the cption of the holder at a conversion price
of ¥360 per share. They are mandatorily convertible on
April 1, 2008, at the number of common shares calculated
by dividing ¥1,300 by the average market price per com-
mon share during a certain period preceding April 1, 2008,
with a maximum of two common shares per Class A
preferred share.

The Class B preferred shares cannot be converted by
their holder until August 1, 2005 and are mandatorily con-
vertible on August 1, 2007. The Class B preferred shares
shall be converted into the number of common shares cal-
culated by dividing ¥400 by the average market price per
share during a certain period preceding August 1, 2005,
2006 or 2007, as applicable (or, if the common shares are
not yet publicly traded, the total amount of shareholders’
equity, excluding preferred stock, per diluted common
share). At no time, however, shall the conversion price be
less than ¥599.90 or more than ¥799.90.

Other material terms of the preferred shares are set forth
in Note 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Holders of our preferred shares have no redemption

Table 42. Subordinated Debt and Bonds

rights, but it is possible we would seek to redeem the pre-
ferred shares in order to increase our flexibility in managing
our business. We currently have no agreement with the DIC
or RCC as to how or when any such redemption would be
accomplished. In deciding whether to pursue a redemption
of preferred shares, we would give due consideration to the
maintenance of prudent capital adequacy ratios and our
other funding needs.

Composition of Tier Il Capital

The principal component of our Tier || capital is subordi-
nated debt. As of March 31, 2005, we had ¥175.0 billion
in subordinated debt from private lenders, which qualified
as Tier |l capital.

Other elements of our Tier [ capital are subordinated
bonds and the general reserve for loan losses. Tier | capital
is subject to the limitation that it cannot exceed the amount
of Tier | capital. Subject to that ceiling, the entire amount
of perpetual subordinated debt and bonds can be included
in Tier 1l capital.

The table below sets forth the amount of our subordi-
nated debt and bonds, as well as the portion included in our
Tier |1 capital.

Billions of yen

Non-perpetual Total
included in inctuded in
As of March 31, 2005 Perpetual Non-perpetual Tier 1l Total Tier 11
Subordinated debt ¥175.0 ¥ — ¥ — ¥175.0 ¥175.0
Subordinated bonds 21.8 51.0 51.0 72.8 72.8
Total ¥196.8 ¥51.0 ¥51.0 ¥247.8 ¥247.8
Billions of yen
Non-perpetual Total
included in included in
As of March 31, 2004 Perpetual Non-perpetual Tier li Total Tier I
Subordinated debt ¥175.0 ¥19.0 ¥ — ¥194.0 ¥175.0
Subordinated bonds 21.7 3.5 2.2 25.2 23.9
Total ¥196.7 ¥22.5 ¥2.2 ¥219.2 ¥198.9

Interest rates on ¥91.0 billion of our subordinated debt
will increase in October 2005. Interest rates on another
¥75.0 billion of subordinated debt will increase in April
2007. Interest rates on the remaining balance of our subor-
dinated debt as of March 31, 2004, as well as all of our
subordinated bonds, will increase from time to time
between September 2005 and December 2008.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005, we
prepaid ¥2.5 billion of dated subordinated debt. Of our
remaining perpetual subordinated debt, ¥84.0 billion cur-
rently may be prepaid at each semiannual interest payment
date, while the rest will become prepayable in the same
manner after October 2005. All but ¥4.0 billion of our per-

petual subordinated bonds are currently prepayable semi-
annually, while the remaining ¥4.0 billion of perpetual sub-
ordinated bonds and ¥1.0 biilion of our dated subordinated
bonds will become prepayable at some time between 2005
and 2007. In the future, we intend to continue to prepay,
redeem or purchase and cancel our subordinated debt and
bonds when we can do so on favorable terms.

Shinsei issued ¥50.0 billion of dated subordinated
bonds on March 25, 2005 for the first time as Shinsei, not
LTCB. These dated subordinated bonds cannot be repaid
untif maturity, on March 25, 2015, and bears interest at a
fixed rate of 1.96%.




In addition to the above new bonds, Class D perpetual
preferred shares issued by APLUS on February 28, 2005
are a new component of our Tier |l capital. Our “Minority
interest in subsidiaries” as of March 31, 2005 includes
¥49.5 billion of the Class D perpetual preferred shares held
by third parties. “Minority interest in subsidiaries” is nor-
mally a component of Tier | capital. However, the portion of
the Class D preferred shares, on which dividends are cumu-
tative, are included in Tier Il capital.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We use off-balance sheet arrangements, including invest-
ments through special purpose entities, securitizations,
lines and letters of credit, loan commitments and loan par-
ticipations, in the ordinary course of business, including in
our securitization and financing businesses, as well as to
manage our own liquidity risk.

The main purposes of such off-balance sheet arrange-
ments are to develop our institutional banking business and
to diversify our sources of liquidity. The following is a dis-
cussion of the principal off-balance sheet arrangements we
use.

Securitization Relating to Our Institutional Banking Business
We structure, arrange, distribute and service mortgage-
backed securities and asset-backed securities both for third
parties and ourselves. We also invest in and manage port-
folios of asset-backed and mortgage-backed securities. Our
securitization services utilize special purpose entities, which
may be organized in the forms of trusts, partnerships or
corporations, mainly to protect the securitized assets from
creditors of transferors even in bankruptcy. Assets
securitized include commercial loans, residential mortgage
loans, installment receivables and credit-card receivables.
One aspect of our securitization business involves our
repackaging assets purchased by special purpose entities
that we establish into new financial instruments that repre-
sent undivided interests in the underlying assets. Repackag-
ing the assets generally entails analyzing the cash flows
from the underlying assets, using various means to rear-
range the timing and order of cash flows, and then combin-
ing them with other cash flows to create new financial
instruments that can be tailored to meet the demands of a
broad range of investors. Often the assets are repackaged
into residual, or subordinated, interests, mezzanine inter-
ests and senior interests. The residual interests are the first
to suffer any losses as a result of any decline in the value of
the underlying financial assets, while the senior interests
are structured to be the last to absorb such losses. In
instances where we repackage assets on our own initiative,
rather than for our customers, we generally retain the
residual interests and either sell the senior or mezzanine
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interests immediately to third parties or hold them tempo-
rarily before placing them with investors. Revenues on these
transactions consist of gains on sales of the repackaged
senior and mezzanine interests, transaction arrangement
fees received from the originators of the assets, fees for
underwriting the senior instruments, and returns on the
residual interests.

The principal risk inherent in these repackagings is
credit risk on the securitized financial instruments that are
absorbed by the retained residual interests. We may record
losses on the residual interests due to declines in the value
of the underlying financial assets. We manage this credit
risk through semiannually assessing our retained interests
and providing vaiuation allowances for them based cn those
assessments, taking into consideration how much we
believe we will be able to collect on the underlying assets.
We generally transfer financial assets to special purpose
entities on a “true sale” basis, which means that we would
neither be entitled nor required to reacquire the financial
assets so transferred on a contingent basis.

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005 and 2004, we
sold ¥218.1 billion and ¥186.0 billion, respectively, of
debt securities issued out of repackaging transactions to
third-party investors. As of March 31, 2005 and 2004, we
also held ¥10.1 billion and ¥7.8 billien of residual inter-
ests, net of valuation allowances, respectively.

We also securitize customers' assets on their béhalf,
drawing on our know-how and experience in establishing
securitization vehicles tailored to accommodate clients’
needs, analyzing cash-flows from the financial assets, struc-
turing them into classes of securitized interests, arranging
credit enhancements and locating investors for the securi-
ties to be issued. We generally place the securities repre-
senting the senior interests from these transactions with
third-party investors. We may choose, however, to acquire
temporarily a portion of these senior securities for later sale
and often structure financial arrangements, including
repackaging, that enhance the liquidity of these securities
in order to attract third-party investors. These securities are
recorded in other monetary claims purchased and recorded
at fair value. Our revenue on these transactions consists of
fees, generally fixed, for arranging the transaction and for
underwriting the sale of the financial instruments. We typi-
cally record those fees as having been received at the
completion of all arrangements for the customer.

On these transactions, we act as an arranger, an under-
writer, a servicer, a trustee or an administrator, or combina-
tion of some of these roles, for our corporate customers. As
our customers usually retain the residual interests and the
related risk of loss on them, we are not exposed to risks of
incurring losses inherent in such residual interests.

As of March 31, 2005 and 2004, we temporarily held
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¥42.0 billion and ¥164.4 billion, respectively, in senior
securities from these transactions for the reason mentioned
above.

In our subsidiaries, during the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2005, APLUS securitized after our acquisition
¥11.0 billion of its loan cards related receivables of which
¥7.2 billion were sold to third parties and ¥0.6 billion of
mezzanine portion were held by Shinsei Bank (included in
¥10.1 billion mentioned above), and ¥3.9 billion of sub-
ordinated portion were held by APLUS as of March 31,
2005. During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004, Life
Housing Loan securitized ¥10.8 billion of its housing
loans, of which ¥10.0 billion were sold to third parties and
¥(0.8 billion, net of cash reserves, of subordinated portion
were held by Life Housing Loan. There was no securiti-
zation transaction concluded by Life Housing loan in the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2005.

Gollateralized Loan Obligations (CLO)

In order to diversify our funding sources and enhance our
liquidity, we employed the financial engineering skills we
developed in our securitization business to securitize our
performing loans to corporate customers through a collater-
alized loan obligation, or CLO, program.

in the program, which we established in the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2002, Shinsei entrusted a part of its per-
forming corporate loans to a “master trust” which was
established with Shinsei Trust & Banking Co., Ltd. The
master trust then issued several classes of beneficial certifi-
cates, each of which represents an undivided economic
interest in the underlying loans but differs in “'seniority,” or
the priority in which it receives cash collected from the
underlying loans. Shinsei sold the most senior class of cer-
tificates to special purpose entities established in order to
issue debt securities backed by the certificates; these debt
securities were subsequently sold to third-party investors.
Shinsei has retained the two subordinated classes of
beneficial certificates.

Since the sales of the debt securities backed by senior
certificates satisfied criteria for transferring assets under
Japanese GAAP, Shinsei derecognized a portion of the cor-
porate loans entrusted to the master trust for the CLO pro-
gram from its assets by pro rating the carrying amount of
such corporate loans by the fair values of all of the
beneficial certificates the trust has issued.

Shinsei's retaining the subordinated classes of beneficial
certificates enhances the credit of the debt securities
backed by the senior certificates, as the subordinated cer-
tificates would be the first to be affected by shortfalls in
cash collections on the underlying commercial loans due to
reasons such as deteriorations in the financial condition of
the loan obligors. As a result, however, Shinsei is exposed to

credit risk on the commercial loans entrusted to the master
trust as the underlying assets for the CLO program.

A significant amount of prepayments on the underlying
loans may result in a lack of sufficient cash flows to satisfy
future interest or principal payment obligations on the debt
securities backed by the senior certificates. In order to man-
age this risk, Shinsei has structured the debt securities so
that they may be amortized ahead of schedule when various
conditions are satisfied.

As of March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, ¥642.4
billion and ¥825.2 billion in loans had been placed in the
trust. As of March 31, 2005 and 2004, beneficial certifi-
cates representing ¥352.1 billion and ¥355.4 bilion,
respectively, of such loans had been issued and remained
outstanding, comprising ¥255.0 billion and ¥255.2 billion,
respectively, in senior certificates securing notes issued to
third-party investors and, as of March 31, 2005 and 2004,
an additional ¥97.1 billion and ¥100.2 billion, respectively,
in beneficial certificates retained by Shinsei and recorded
in loans and bills discounted. In accordance with our self-
assessment procedures and reserve policies, we have pro-
vided ¥4.9 billion and ¥9.2 billion, in the general reserve
for loan losses to absorb losses on all of the entrusted loans
as of March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Loan Participations

We have sold or transferred participation interests in certain
of our loans. Loan participation involves the original lender
under the loans transferring economic interests in the loan
to others, while the original lender retains title to the loan
itself.

Under Japanese GAAP, where substantially all of the eco-
nomic interest in and risks of the loans are transferred to
the participants, the original lenders are not deemed to bear
recourse obligations for the participating interest nor to
have any rights of repurchasing such interest. As a result,
the original lender may remove the loans from its balance
sheet as if the loans were sold to the participants. Because
substantially all of the economic interest and risks have
been transferred to the participants, we believe that we are
not taking any substantial economic risks on the portions of
loans in which we have sold participating interests.

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005 and 2004, the
total principal amount of participation interests in loans
transferred to third parties was ¥118.1 billion and ¥176.6
billion, respectively.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements to Extend Credit, Acceptances
and Guarantees

We have off-balance sheet commitments to extend credit to
customers up to certain predetermined amounts at current
market rates, in consideration of which we recognize fee



income that is recorded on an accrual basis for the period of
the commitments. As of March 31, 2005 and 2004, we
had ¥3,277.6 billion and ¥1,304.6 billion of these com-
mitments, of which ¥3,095.2 billion and ¥1,156.7 billion
of them had agreement terms of less than one year,
respectively.

In addition, we provide acceptances and guarantees,
which include lines and letters of credit and guarantees on
customers' borrowings from other creditors. These accep-
tances and guarantees require us to satisfy our customers’
obligations in the event they fail to do so, although we
would have a claim for reimbursement against them. Under
Japanese GAAP for banks, these commitments are deemed
to be both contingent assets and liabilities, and are
recorded as both assets and liabilities in the principal
amount of the acceptances and guarantees. We record the
fees we earn from providing acceptances and guarantees on

Overview

Our corporate governance and risk management framework
enables us to manage all major aspects of our business
through a coherent and well-integrated process. A detailed,
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an accrual basis over the period of the acceptance or guar-
antee. As of March 31, 2005 and 2004, we had ¥1,058.1
billion and ¥38.3 billion, respectively, of outstanding
acceptances and guarantees.

The increase in off-balance sheet commitment and
acceptances and guarantees are attributable to our acquisi-
tion of APLUS in September 2004, APLUS extends credit
in the form of guarantees. The most significant component
of APLUS’s guarantee business is providing guarantees on
installment shopping credit provided by other lenders to
customers of APLUS’s partner merchants. APLUS also of-
fers collection guarantees for foreign automobile dealers.
Providing guarantees allows APLUS to limit its balance
sheet exposure, while continuing to maintain its relations
with its partner merchants. Among the above-mentioned
amount, ¥1,020.3 billion is due to this guarantee business
as of March 31, 2005.

sophisticated analytical structure, accompanied by diligent
surveillance and oversight, is used to evaluate and monitor
risks and returns to produce sustainable revenue, reduce
earnings volatility and increase shareholder value.

We have established a corporate governance and risk man-
agement structure that separates business management
function. Our management structure is shown below:

Corporate Governance

Board of Directors
Function:
i Appoint management to lead business operations
i« Make high level decisions regarding business and strategy
* Evaluate and monitor the management team
Members:
¢ Two executive directors and 13 non-executive directors

Nomination Committee

Function:

» Make decisions regarding proposals submitted at shareholders’
meetings for the appointment and removal of directors

Members:

» One executive director and five non-executive directors

Audit Committee

Function:

« Audit the general conduct of the business of the Bank based
on the Bank's internal control systems

Members:

¢ Four non-executive directors

Compensation Committee

Function:

« Make decisions regarding compensation of individual directors
and statutory executive officers

Members:

* Six non-executive directors

Management

sformdtion. management and prevention
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Committees

We maintain several executive committees under the leader-

ship of our Chief Executive Officer and other statutory ex-

ecutive officers. The principal committees that deal with
risk policy and management are listed below.

e The ALM Committee, as well as its subcommittee, the
Market Risk Management Committee, reviews our
balance sheet and asset/liability structure, cash
liguidity and risk versus return of the trading port-
folios. It also reviews and approves our analytical
methodologies and parameters for liquidity and
market risk analytics.

¢ The Compliance Committee reviews and resolves com-
pliance issues relating to matters such as antitrust
law, information management and prevention of
money laundering.

¢ The Risk/Investment Committee establishes long-term
strategy and short-term operating plans, setting over-
all risk appetite through capital allocation and aggre-
gate risk levels. It also approves and reviews activities
outside the normal course of our institutional and
retail banking businesses. The committee reviews
actual performance against plans, using established
performance measures, as well as actual risk levels
against forecast levels. The committee also focuses
on franchise, regulatory and reputation risks.

¢ The Credit Committee establishes corporate credit prac-
tices, determines approval requirements and author-
ity, and handles exceptions. It approves major credit
transactions for institutional customers and reviews
portfolio concentrations. The committee is also
responsible for reviewing and approving the analytical
methodologies and parameters for credit risk
analytics.

¢ The New Business/Product Committee reviews proposals
for new businesses and products though a rigorous
process that considers the full range of quantitative
and qualitative risks, and necessary mitigants or
controls.

While each committee has specific objectives, the
common objectives, mission and mandate of all of them
are to:

¢ delegate authority;

e clarify definitions, policies, metrics and procedures
relating to, as well as methods of measuring, specific
risks;

¢ be highly sensitive to qualitative risks, in particular
regulatory and franchise risks, offering guidance to
management concerning them, and establishing
procedures to mitigate them; and

* ensure a decentralized internal organization and
authority structure that enables the discovery,

management and mitigation of risks on a day-to-day
basis, in line with our strategic objectives.

Risk Management—Goaverning Principles
Our Risk Management Policy defines risk management as
the discipline of evaluating risks, defining policies and prac-
tices that balance risk and return, and implementing the
infrastructure and authority to ensure compliance with prin-
ciples, policies and procedures. In this sense, “risk manage-
ment” encompasses the related disciplines of compliance,
audit and self-assessment/inspection.

Our Policy states three objectives:

» to establish and enhance our credit standing;

s to optimize the use of capital; and

* to create a strategic management tool.

Risk Capital Management

We use risk capital to provide a consistent, uniform and
well-understood measure of risk and performance across
different activities. Generally, risk capital is defined as the
worst-case economic amount by which a portfolio or busi-
ness may deviate from its expected financial performance
as a result of unexpected, adverse events or movements in
factors that affect value. Accordingly, risk capital is the
excess of the economic loss in the unexpected, worst case
over the estimated “average” loss. Risk capital analysis
requires two parameters: time horizon and confidence level.
With respect to time horizon, the time required for a change
in position differs for each category of risk. The longest time
horizon, or the conceptual period required to effectively
alter portfolio parameters, is that of credit risk, which we
estimate at one year. To enable us to compare different
businesses by using one common measure, a time horizon
of one year is therefore used for the entire business. Rigor-
ous analytical techniques are used to “normalize” different
businesses to this time horizon. The confidence level is a
management decision, based on our rating objective.

We presently calculate risk capital for the following six
risk categories: (1) credit risk, (2) equities/investment risk,
(3) market risk, (4) interest rate risk, (5) liquidity risk and
(6) operational risk. We have developed specific analytical
methodologies for each risk category.

Credit Risk Management
Credit risk is defined as the risk of loss due to a counterpart
defaulting on contractual debt obligations.

Our mocel for credit risk management is focused on (1)
securing adequate return on risk, (2) avoiding concentra-
tions to particular sectors or obligors, and (3) managing the
credit portfolio with an awareness of potential losses under
a worst-case scenario.




In line with this, we have established processes as
follows:

e (Credit Ratings: Qur credit rating methodology assigns
credit ratings to each obligor using neural network
analytics that model the correlation between obligors’
financial data and agency ratings. Results generated
by our anaiytics are verified by risk management. All
ratings are updated on an ongoing basis with refined
models and new financial data. Neural network mod-
eling is a methodology which emulates rating agen-
cies’ approach of labeling obligors and quantifying
the default probability of each borrower. We have
developed separate models for major industry groups.
The score generated by the model is subject to
adjustment by our credit rating committee, when
determining the rating.

e Default Analytics: Our historical default and migration
data, as well as rating agency statistics, are coupled
with management’s judgment to generate defautt
probability parameters.

* Facility Ratings: Facility ratings enable comparisons of
varying transactions based on expected loss by
incorporating the full range of risk mitigants.

* Pricing Guidelines: Pricing thresholds are based on
appropriate credit, funding and economic capital
factors. These guidelines are continuously updated
based on additional data and concepts.

e Approval Process: Our transaction approval process pro-
vides multiple levels of approval based on key credit
sensitivities such as group exposure, group credit
standing, amount, tenor and facility rating.

* Risk Capital: We have implemented a bank-wide process
to measure true risk and risk/return by sector, product
and transaction, thereby creating a resource monitor-
ing and allocation tool.

Core Credit Policies

We have fully revised the core credit policies, making use of
our experience since March 2000. These policies apply to
our business with corporate, financial institution and
government clients, and detail standards for the key compo-
nents of the credit process: origination/approval, documen-
iation, monitoring/management, problem recognition,
remedial management and portfolio management.

Lending Guidelines
Our lending guidelines are a comprehensive set of recom-
mended structures and disciplines that relationship manag-
ers and credit officers must follow when structuring new
joan transactions.

The guidelines provide detailed recommendations on
acceptable terms, interest rates, fees, amortization
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schedules, collateral, covenants and documentation for
each class of credit risk, as well as specific procedures for
communicating terms and conditions to customers. The
guidelines also require a compeiling explanation from
Senior Credit Officers when our standard pricing or struc-
tures cannot be achieved. Relationship managers and
officers are required to improve our risk profiie at every
opportunity.

Concentration Guidelines

We have implemented industry concentration guidelines,
obligor group concentration guidelines, as well as effective
review and countermeasures for when the guidelines are
exceeded. These procedures are designed to insufate our
credit portfolio against systemic shock or other events
outside the normal range of occurrences.

We currently use concentration guidelines to monitor two

kinds of concentration:

Industry Concentration Guidelines. The purpose of
industry concentration limits is to ensure manage-
ment is alerted, and appropriate questions raised,
when exposure to one particular industry increases
rapidly. Starting in the fiscal year ending March 31,
2005, industry concentration is managed on a risk
capital basis to make the industry concentration
guidelines more risk-sensitive, reflect actual portfolio
conditions and account for correlation among
industries.

Group Concentration Guidelines. The primary purpose of
group concentration limits is to guard against “event
risk,” that is, to ensure that even in the case of a
sudden degradation in our obligors’ credit quality
through rapid business deterioration, or the occur-
rence of a highly unexpected event, inciuding fraud
or catastrophe, our business will not be critically
impaired. Event risk is defined as any unexpected
Joss for reascns not realistically reflected in analyses
of the historic default statistics, such as events inde-
pendent of risk rating, statistical estimation error in
default rates and misrated obligors.

Market Risk

Market risk, which is the risk associated with changes in the
value of financia! instruments from fluctuaticns in exchange
rates, interest rates, stock prices and other market-
determined price mechanisms, is inherent in all assets and
liabilities, as well as off-balance sheet transactions.

Policies

We manage market risk by segregating the overall balance
sheet into a trading book and a banking book. The ALM
Committee, chaired by our President, is the senicr review
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and decision-making body for the management of all market
risks related to asset/liability management, and the banking
and trading books. The actual risk limits for asset/liability
management as well as trading, such as the value-at-risk or
“VaR" method are approved by the ALM committee. The
VaR method is a procedure for estimating the probability of
portfolio losses exceeding some specified propartion based
on a statistical analysis of historical market price trends,
correlations and volatilities.

The Market Risk Management Committee serves as an
arm of the ALM Committee and is chaired by the head of
Risk Management, with senior representatives from related
divisions, including the chief financial officer. The commit-
tee meets weekly to review detailed risk and liquidity reports
from the Market Risk Management Division, which is
responsible for the objective and timely recognition, moni-
toring and reporting of market risk in both our trading and
banking operations. In addition to reporting risk information
to management, administrative divisions and front office
units, the Market Risk Management Division carries out
regular risk analyses and recommendations.

Framework and Organization

The Treasury Division manages asset/liability risk arising
from normal banking operations and the Capital Markets
Division manages the active risk from trading operations in
financial markets. The Treasury Division and each unit
within the Capital Markets Division are assigned overall risk
limits.

The Market Risk Management Division is responsible for
the objective and timely recognition, monitoring and report-
ing of market risk in both our trading and banking opera-
tions. In addition to reporting risk information to

Table 43. Actual Daily VaR
{1 day holding period, 2.33 standard deviations)

management, administrative divisions and front office units,
it carries out regular risk analyses and recommendations.
The transaction execution, operations and risk management
sections operate independently, establishing a system of
effective checks and balances.

Quantification of Market Risk
We have built a system capable of facilitating the recogni-
tion and management of risk by quantifying market risk fre-
quently, tracking it objectively and visually, and making
adjustments according to market trends.

Market risk management involves the continual repetition
of a five-step process. The first step is the construction of a
transaction information database. The second step is data
classification according to risk unit. The third step is risk
quantification grouped by risk characteristics and risk unit.
The fourth step is risk position summarization and report-
ing, and the fifth step is the assessment of a reported risk
position and imptementation of necessary adjustments. To
obtain a precise picture of the current risk position, transac-
tion data must be accurate and complete. Measurement
definitions must be valid and valuation criteria such as rates
and pricés must be reliable. We have introduced a market
risk measurement system that meets all of these
requirements.

Trading Book

Methodology: We use the VaR method in our trading opera-
tions. The validity of the VaR model is verified through back
testing, which examines how frequently actual daily profit or
loss exceeds daily VaR for a one-day holding period. Back
testing of the sample data for the year ended March 31,
2005 confirmed the continued reliability of our VaR model.

Mitiions of yen
2005 2004
Fiscal years ended March 31 Average Maximum Minimum Average Maximum Minimum
¥298 ¥487 ¥200 ¥455 ¥882 ¥181




VaR and Daily Profit or Loss
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(Year ended March 31, 2005)
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Trading Activity: Qur trading activity is carried out mainly

on behalf of customers, although we also engage in propri-
etary trading activity. The allocated risk capital for propri-
etary trading is less than 5% of total allocated risk capital.

Limit Setting Process: Setting limits is important for
appropriate risk control within Shinsei on a consolidated
basis. Loss limits and VaR limits are approved by the board
of directors and delegated to the Chief Financial Officer.
The Chief Financial Officer sets limits for business heads,
who in turn assign limits to risk takers.

Mark-Down for Trading Assets: Trading assets are nor-
mally measured by market price, yields and rates. However,
the value of assets may be affected by credit risk or market

liquidity risk. We use two methods to mark down the value
of trading assets as necessary to reflect those risks in our
financial statements.

e We record provisions for losses on derivative transac-
tions according to obligor classifications in the same
manner as on-balance transactions by taking into
account current exposures as well as potential future
exposures.

* We record costs for disposing of and reconstructing
market-related positions centered on bid and offer
costs as provisions related to market liquidity risk for
derivative-related transactions in trading accounts.
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Banking Book

Methodology: In our banking bock, we use as principal risk
indicators the bpv method and net interest income volatility.
The bpv method measures the risk of changes in fair market
value resulting from fluctuations in interest rates. NIl vola-
tility measures the risk of changes in net interest income
during a specified period, usually one year, due to fluctua-
tions in interest rates.

Risk Limits for Banking Operations: Risk limits for bank-
ing operations are determined based on balance sheet
structure and the profitability of our traditional banking
activities.

New Products

We initiate new businesses, products and transactions
under a disciplined and well defined launch and manage-
ment process that is coordinated by the New Business/
Product Committee. Members of this Committee include
product specialists and representatives from support areas
responsible for products. The New Business/Product Com-
mittee seeks to ensure that the product’s strategy and
potential are in balance; risk, legal, compliance, account-
ing, tax and other key considerations are addressed; and
internal controls and procedures are in place to deliver the
product.

The result of this effort is a formalized product program,
which describes the policy and processes for each new
product initiative. Each product program defines the strate-
gic intent, investment parameters, delivery process,
approval process, risk management guidelines, ongoing
monitoring procedures. The Risk/investment Committee
approves the risk limits, and designates the approval
authority associated with each Product Program.

Transactions within a product program are assessed by
the product specialists and reviewed by the Risk Manage-
ment Group. Through the Product Program process, the
product specialists and the Risk Management Group moni-
tor all transactions. The Risk Management Group provides
monthly reporting and a more detailed a quarterly update of
Product Programs and transactions to the Risk/Investment
Committee.

Liquidity Risk
Our ALM Committee is the senior review and decision-
making body for the management of liquidity risk. The ALM
Committee determines the overall limit for liquidity risk by
establishing the short-term liquidity gap structure limits and
minimum liquidity reserve levels. A liquidity gap structure
and a minimum reserve are the principal management tools
we use to monitor and manage liquidity.

Our Liquidity Management FPolicy, reviewed and approved

-

periodically by the ALM Committee, stipulates the guide-
lines and norms for appropriate liquidity risk management.

To quantify liquidity risk, we have developed three liquid-
ity forecast models:

¢ Business as usual model: This model forecasts the
liquidity situation on an ongoing basis. The output of
this model is an estimate of the funds we need to
raise under normal circumstances.

e Stress/event model: This is a liquidity forecast under
extraordinary circumstances. The output of this meth-
odology is the outflow of funds under extraordinary
circumstances.

* Contractual maturity model: This is a liquidity fore-
cast on the assumption that assets and liabilities will
be liquidated at contracted maturity, based on cer-
tain assumptions. The model indicates how much we
need to raise based on our actual contractual
obligations.

The output of these models is carefully analyzed and pre-
sented monthly to the ALM Committee together with a rec-
ommendation on the liquidity gap structure and minimum
reserve level, as well as the underlying rationale, which is
determined as follows:

* The first requirement or test is that we should be
able to survive in a crisis or emergency situation;
based on the assumptions relating to inflow and out-
flow in a stress situation, the cumulative outflow over
a specified period should not exceed available
reserves.

¢ |f available reserves are insufficient to meet the test,
action to remedy the situation, such as increasing
reserves or changing our liability profile, must be
taken.

¢ |f available reserves are sufficient to meet the test,
then reserves may be reduced, but only in a way that
the first stress or emergency survival test is still met,
and the liquidity gap at various times is within
approved gap limits. Generally, this results in some
very short-term liabilities being repaid.

We also develop and maintain contingency funding plans
for liquidity, including our Liquidity Crisis Contingency Plan,
which clarifies specific policies and measures to deal with a
liquidity crisis. We ptan for the possibility that funding costs
may increase, or funding may become otherwise difficult,
due either to internal factors, such as a deterioration in our
credit standing, or external factors such as a lack of cash
liquidity in the market. These plans evaluate market-based
funding capacity under various possible market conditions,
and specify actions and procedures to be implemented
under liquidity stress. Further, these plans address alterna-
tive sources of liguidity, measure the overall ability to fund




our operations and define roies and responsibilities for
effectively managing liguidity through a period of stress,
including mandating the creation of a crisis management
headquarters in the event of a liquidity crisis.

Daily liquidity reports based on this model are prepared
by the Risk Management Group, which also circulates the
reports to business managers and senior management for
review and action as necessary. More detailed reviews are
conducted monthly.

Operational Risk

Operational risk refers to the risk of loss resulting from inad-
equate or failed internal processes or systems, human error
or wrongdoing. Losses due to the fraudulent acts of employ-
ees, failed transaction processing, system failures or
external fraud are typical examples.

Unlike credit risk or market risk, a risk source cannot be
specified for operational risk. Frequency and severity of
losses will vary greatly, ranging from operational errors that
may occur frequently but have low-severity loss profiles, to
frauds or serious disasters that may seldom occur but have
high-severity loss profiles. There is a considerable differ-
ence between the nature of risks faced by a business line
that handles simple products and operates in a systematic
manner and a business line that handles complicated prod-
ucts and depends highly on staff with specific skitls. More-
over, operational conditions, inctuding products, sales
channels and customer bases, will continue to evolve.

Monitoring Operational Risk

We have developed a risk quantification framework based
on the loss-distribution method. The framework has the
following three steps:

(i) estimate the probability distribution for frequency
that is applicable fo historical loss records and loss
scenarios,

(ii) estimate the probability distribution for severity that
is applicable to historical loss records and loss
scenarios, and

(ifi) run a statistical simulation based on these two
distributions to estimate an annual aggregated loss
amount distribution.

Loss scenarios are established jointly by business lines
and the Risk Management Group so that each business
manager’s perception of the relevant risk may be trans-
formed into an appropriate source of quantitative informa-
tion. This process involves all business lines, including
those of our subsidiaries, and contributes to an appropriate
recognition and analysis of the total risk. Senior manage-
rment reviews the results of quantifying our overall
operational risk capital.
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Operations Risk

Operations risk is the risk of loss due to inadeguate proce-
dures or failed processing. We have established operations
guidelines, reviewed and revised our organizational struc-
ture and operational procedures, and implemented training
programs aimed at improving the quality of our operations.
{n addition, we maintain a database of operational errors
that enables us to analyze the source of operations risks in
order to prevent recurrences.

Systems Risk

We have designed systems to minimize the threat of disrup-
tion, and have implemented procedures for passive recovery.
Key components of our system have multiple back-ups,
including at an independent back-up site in Osaka. In addi-
tion, critical data is replicated. As a result, loss of part or all
of any one cluster will not disrupt system operations. In
addition, we have comprehensive back-up procedures to
support less critical systems and allow restoration and
recovery of these systems in the event of a malfunction. We
continuously monitor system security as well as our continu-
ity of business to maintain readiness. We introduce new sys-
tems and changes in a controlled manner and design new
systems to run in parallel with old ones, to minimize risk of
incompatibility.

Our Banking Infrastructure organization (both informa-
tion technology and operations) has been certified as com-
pliant with BS7799 and ISMS, which are international and
domestic information security management system
standards.

Legal and Compliance Risk

Legal and compliance risk is the risk of unexpected dis-
putes or losses due to contracts unreasonably unfavorable to
us or otherwise inadvisable, or the violation of laws, regula-
tions, orders or contracts, whether instant monetary dam-
ages or damages to our regulatory relationship or reputation.
Our Legal and Compliance Division consists of the Legal
Department and the Compliance Team.

Compliance Systems Organization

The Compliance Committee, the Legal and Compliance
Division and individual compliance managers within various
business and support units constitute the main elements of
our compliance organization.

The Compiiance Committee, with our Chief Executive
Officer as chairman, examines and discusses important
matters such as the prevention of money laundering. Third-
party monitoring of the Committee is carried out by outside
counsels invited to serve as committee members. The
Compliance Team plans various measures concerning

83



Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

84

compliance risk and promotes these measures through
central management. It also assigns compliance officers
specializing in specific areas to implement compliance
measures for each of our business areas. Every division,
department or branch also has a compliance manager to act
as the point of contact for compliance-related matters.

Compliance Activities

We produce a Compliance Program annually that outlines
our compliance-related plans, including compliance promo-
tion activities such as training programs. Programs include
those concerning new laws and regulations such as the Per-
sonal Information Protection Act, as well as those on impor-
tant compliance issues such as the prevention of money
laundering and insider trading. Compliance materials are
built directly into the training curricula for each business
line.

Legal Department

The Legal Department is in charge of legal affairs, including
compliance with corporate and transactional law, legal
documentation and litigation supervision. The Legal Depart-
ment, by providing legal analysis and advice, also supports
our compliance systems, working with the Compliance
Team.

Internal Audit

Our Internal Audit Division examines and evaluates our risk
management measures and internal controls from an inde-
pendent standpoint, thereby enhancing our corporate gover-
nance. The internal Audit Division reports directly to the
Chief Executive Officer and the Audit Committee of the
board of directors and is independent from the operating
units. This division examines and evaluates operating units’
risk management, internal controls, information technology
systems and processes.

Our Internal Audit Division practices risk audit approach,
in which we first assess degree of inherent risk and
adeguacy of risk management and internal controls within
each particular operating unit. Based on our risk assess-
ment, we audit operating units with larger risks, new busi-
nesses, or significant changes to their organizational
structure or computer systems. As part of the internal audit
process, we also require operating units to perform control
self-assessments and hold workshop discussions directed at
addressing issues other than those relating directly to inter-
nal controls.

To strengthen our internal audit capabilities, we have
continued to enhance the necessary infrastructure and
developed a new audit methodology. To enhance staff exper-
tise, we also encourage employees to obtain professional
certifications such as Certified Internal Auditor and Certi-
fied Information Systems Auditor. In addition, we work with
outside auditors to further enhance our audit standards and

capabilities.



Consolidated Balance Sheets

Shinsei Bank, Limited, and Consolidated Subsidiaries
March 31, 2005 and 2004

Millions of yen

Consolidated Balance Sheets Il

Thousands of
U.S. dollars (Note 1)

2005 2004 2005
ASSETS
Cash and due from banks (Notes 4 and 22) ¥ 277,583 ¥ 312,709 $ 2,584,910
Call loans 70,000 — 651,830
Collateral related to securities borrowing transactions 3,744 18,121 34,863
Other monetary claims purchased (Note 5) 320,379 246,987 2,983,330
Trading assets (Notes 6, 22 and 33) 168,501 635,096 1,569,066
Monetary assets held in trust (Note 7) 372,224 242,750 3,466,096
Securities (Notes 8 and 22) 1,478,219 1,483,234 13,764,963
Loans and bills discounted (Notes 9, 22 and 32) 3,430,421 3,047,042 31,943,588
Foreign exchanges (Notes 17 and 22) 8,550 9,490 79,624
Other assets (Notes 10, 22 and 33) 850,440 375,088 7,919,176
FPremises and equipment (Notes 11 and 22) 418,938 89,703 3,901,097
Deferred discounts on and issuance expenses for debentures 284 166 2,654
Deferred tax assets (Note 31) 24,623 22,941 229,295
Consoclidation goodwill, net 244,042 — 2,272,492
Customers’ liabitities for acceptances and guarantees (Note 21) 1,058,161 38,339 9,853,448
Reserve for credit losses (Note 12) (149,79%) (177,916) (1,394,915)
Total assets ¥8,576,328 ¥6,343,755 $79,861,517
LIABILITIES, MINORITY INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Liabilities:
Deposits, including negotiable certificates of deposit
(Notes 13 and 22) ¥3,452,813 ¥2,734,489 $32,152,099
Debentures (Note 14) 1,242,632 1,358,021 11,571,214
Call money 204,295 112,559 1,902,371
Payables under repurchase agreements (Note 22) — 445,634 —
Collateral related to securities lending transactions (Note 22) — 29,275 —
Commercial paper 13,300 — 123,848
Trading liabilities (Notes 15 and 33) 69,101 92,231 643,460
Borrowed money (Notes 16 and 22) 1,160,265 334,416 10,804,226
Foreign exchanges (Note 17) 20 4 193
Corporate bonds (Note 18) 88,344 30,675 822,647
Other liabilities (Notes 19, 22 and 33) 412,763 424,899 3,843,593
Accrued employees bonuses 10,276 8,722 95,690
Reserve for retirement benefits (Note 20) 3,376 629 31,444
Reserve for loss on disposition of premises and equipment 153 — 1,425
Reserve for loss on sale of bonds — 1,918 —_
Reserve under special law 2 0 15
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 31) 20,262 42 188,681
Consolidation negative goodwill — 915 —
Acceptances and guarantees (Notes 21 and 22) 1,058,161 38,339 9,853,448
Total liabilities 7,735,763 5,612,776 72,034,358
Minority interests in subsidiaries 53,831 977 501,831
Shareholders’ equity:
Capital stock (Notes 23 and 24):
Common stock 180,853 180,853 1,684,084
Preferred stock 270,443 270,443 2,518,328
Capital surplus (Note 23) 18,558 18,558 172,812
Retained earnings (Note 23) 311,039 250,737 2,896,354
Net unrealized gain on securities available-for-sale, net of taxes 3,043 7.154 28,341
Foreign currency transiation adjustments 2,738 2,255 25,496
Treasury stock, at cost (Notes 23 and 24) (9) (1) {87)
Total shareholders’ equity 786,667 730,000 7,325,328
Total liabilities, minority interests in subsidiaries
and shareholders’ equity ¥8,576,328 ¥6,343,755 $79,861,517

See accompanying “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” which are an integral part of these statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Income

Shinsei Bank, Limited, and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the fiscal years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 1)

2005 2004 2005

Interest income:

Interest on loans and bills ¥ 77,379 ¥ 64 318 $ 720,550
Interest and dividends on securities 15,862 15,917 147,706
Interest on deposits with banks 2,834 1,954 26,392
Other interest income 5,320 7,002 49,543
Total interest income 101,396 89,192 944,191
Interest expenses:
Interest on deposits, including negotiable certificates of deposit 13,671 12,185 127,307
Interest and discounts on debentures 6,184 8,376 57,587
Interest on other barrowings 13,550 9,944 126,183
Other interest expenses 1,090 1,502 10,155
Total interest expenses 34,497 32,009 321,232
Net interest income 66,899 57,183 622,959
Fees and commissions income 57,690 26,193 537,203
Fees and commissions expenses 15,308 7,249 142,547
Net fees and commissions 42,382 18,944 394,656
Net trading income (Note 25) 23,992 2,714 223,415
Other business income {losses):
Income on monetary assets held in trust, net 16,879 18,888 157,176
Net gain on securities and foreign exchanges 7,030 12,230 65,463
Other, net (Note 26) 20,636 13,562 192,163
Net other business income 44,545 44,680 414,802
Total revenue 177,819 123,523 1,655,832
General and administrative expenses:
Personnel expenses 42,979 35,482 400,216
Premises expenses 14,648 8,989 136,407
Technology and data processing expenses 11,522 6,767 107,297
Advertising expenses 6,074 2,918 56,563
Consumption and property taxes 5,840 3,693 54,385
Deposit insurance premium 2,115 1,938 19,698
Other general and administrative expenses 14,136 10,389 131,637
Total general and administrative expenses 97,317 70,178 906,203
Net business profit 80,502 53,344 749,629
Net credit recoveries (Note 27) (989) (15,415) (3,214)
Amortization of consolidation goodwill and other intangibles (8,837) (5) (82,294)
Other (losses) gains, net (Note 28) (7,057) 152 (65,716)
Income before income taxes and minority interests 65,597 68,907 610,833
Income tax (benefit) (Note 31):
Current 1,438 1,463 13,395
Deferred (3,444) 1,111 (32,074)
Minority interests in net income (loss) of subsidiaries 168 (71) 1,565
Net income ¥ 67,435 ¥ 66,404 $ 627,947
Yen U.S. dollars {Note 1)
Basic net income per common share (Note 35) ¥ 46.78 ¥ 46.03 % 0.44
Diluted net income per common share (Note 35) 34.98 32.75 0.33
Cash dividends applicable to the year:
Common share (Note 36) 2.58 2.22 0.02
Class A preferred share (Note 36) 13.00 13.00 0.12
Class B preferred share (Note 36) 4.84 4.84 0.05

See accompanying “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” which are an integral part of these statements.



Consolidated Statements of Shareholders

Sthinsei Bank, Limited, and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the fiscal years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004

* Equity

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars {Note 1)

2005 2004 2005
Common stock:

Ealance at beginning of year ¥180,853 ¥180,853 $1,684,084

Balance at end of year 180,853 180,853 1,684,084
Preferred stock:

Balance at beginning of year 270,443 270,443 2,518,328

Balance at end of year 270,443 270,443 2,518,328
Capital surplus:

Balance at beginning of year 18,558 18,558 172,812

Balance at end of year 18,558 18,558 172,812
Retained earnings:

Balance at beginning of year 250,737 194,666 2,334,831

Dividends paid (7,133) (10,333) (66,424)

Net income 67,435 66,404 627,947

Balance at end of year 311,038 250,737 2,896,354
Net unrealized gain on securities available-for-sale, net of taxes:

Balance at beginning of year 7,154 13,243 66,619

Net change during the year (4,110) (6,089) (38,278)

Balance at end of year 3,043 7,154 28,341
Foreign currency translation adjustments:

Balance at beginning of year 2,255 2,071 20,999

Net change during the year 482 183 4,497

Balance at end of year 2,738 2,255 25,496
Treasury stock, at cost:

Balance at beginning of year {n (0) (11)

Purchase of treasury stock (8) (1) (76)

Balance at end of year (9) (1) (87)

Total shareholders’ equity ¥786,667 ¥730,000 $7,325,328

See accompanying “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

" which are an integral part of these statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Shinsei Bank, Limited, and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the fiscal years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S, dollars (Note 1)

2005 2004 2005
Cash flows from operating activities:
Income before income taxes and minority interests ¥ 65,597 ¥ 68,907 $ 610,833
Adjustments for:
income tax paid (1,397) (1,272) (13,015)
Depreciation 3,706 3,353 34,515
Amortization of consolidation goodwill and other intangibles 8,837 5 82,294
Net change in reserve for credit losses (28,083) (40,105) (261,507)
Net change in other reserves (869) (5,558) (8,100)
Interest income (101,396) (89,192) (944,1¢1)
Interest expenses 34,497 32,009 321,232
Investment gains (14,183) (20,674) (132,077)
Net exchange (gain) loss (4,850) 24,452 (45,164)
Net change in trading assets 466,594 (273,920) 4,344,859
Net chanige in trading labilities (23,130) (25,265) (215,387)
Net change in loans and bills discounted (506,571) 451,744 (4,717,122)
Net change in deposits, inctuding negotiable certificates
of deposit 718,324 165,063 6,688,930
Net change in debentures (115,388) (526,344) {1,074,480)
Net change in borrowed money (other than subordinated debt) 56,030 35,528 521,747
Net change in corporate bonds (other than subordinated
corporate bonds) 9,357 4,869 87,133
Net change in deposits with banks 136,664 {53,840) 1,272,601
Net change in call loans, collateral related to securities borrowing
fransactions and other monetary claims purchased (128,397) (42,111) (1,195,615)
Net change in call money, payables under repurchase agreements,
collateral related to securities lending transactions and
commercial paper (386,959) 25,166 (3,603,314)
Net change in foreign exchange assets 939 783 8,752
Net change in foreign exchange liabilities 16 {(8) 150
Interest received 122,569 100,640 1,141,351
Interest paid (33,534) (35,599) (312,271)
Net change in securities for trading purposes 24,381 (11,848) 227,038
Net change in monetary assets held in trust for {rading purposes 12,454 (66,207) 115,975
Other, net (83,158) (63,299) (774,361)
Total adjustments 166,451 {412,338) 1,549,973
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 232,048 (343,431) 2,160,806
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of investments 4,471,140) (2,417,027) (41,634,607)
Proceeds from sales of investments 652,188 705,081 6,073,082
Proceeds from maturity of investments 3,589,334 2,135,689 33,423,358
Purchase of premises and equipment (7,301) (5,766) (67,991)
Proceeds from sales of premises and equipment 595 — 5,548
Payment for acquisition of new subsidiaries (75,875) (5,821) (706,546)
Proceeds from acquisition of new subsidiaries 10,020 — 93,310
Other, net 1,380 22 12,853
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (300,798) 412,178 (2,800,993)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayment of subordinated debt (19,000) (38,000) (176,925)
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated corporate bonds 50,000 — 465,593
Payment for redemption of subordinated corporate bonds (2,570) (2,226) (23,931)
Proceeds from issuance of preferred shares to minority shareholders
of subsidiaries 52,500 — 488,872
Dividends paid (7,133) (10,333) (66,425)
Purchase of treasury stock 3) (1) (32}
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 73,793 (50,560) 687,152
Foreign currency translation adjustments on cash and cash equivalents 3 — 37
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 5,047 18,186 47,002
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 157,178 138,991 1,463,623
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 4) ¥ 162,226 ¥ 157,178 $ 1,510,625

See accompanying “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” which are an integral part of these statements.
Note: Investments consist of securities and monetary assets held in trust for other than trading purposes.




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Shinsei Bank, Limited, and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the fiscal years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of
Shinsei Bank, Limited (the “Bank”) and its consolidated
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), stated in Japanese
yen, are prepared on the basis of accounting principles gen-
erally accepted in Japan and in conformity with the Banking
Law of Japan, and compiled from the consolidated financial
statements prepared under the provisions set forth in the
Accounting Standards for Consolidated Financial Statements
(the Business Accounting Deliberation Councif, March 13,
1998) and the standards of the Securities and Exchange
Law of Japan, which are different in certain respects as to
application and disclosure requirements of International
Financial Reporting Standards.

Certain reclassifications and rearrangements have been
made to the consolidated financial statements issued
domestically in order to present them in a form which is
more familiar to readers outside Japan. In addition, the
accompanying notes include information that is not required
under accounting principles generally accepted in Japan,
but is presented herein for the convenience of readers.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the consolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

As permitted by the Securities and Exchange Law of
Japan, yen amounts, except for per share amounts, are
presented in millions of yen and are rounded down to the
nearest million. As a result, the totals do not necessarily
agree with the sum of the individual amounts.

E

(a) Principles of Consolidation
The Group applied its consolidation scope using the
control and influence concept. Under the control and
influence concept, those companies in which the Bank,
directly or indirectly, is abie to exercise control over opera-
tions are to be fully consolidated and those companies in
which the Bank, directly or indirectly, is able to exercise
significant influence over operations are to be accounted
for by the equity method.

The number of consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates
as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 was as follows:

Notes to Consolidated Financia! Statements

The consolidated financial statements are stated in
Japanese yen, the currency of the country in which the
Bank is incorporated and operates. The transiation of
Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts is
included solely for the convenience of readers outside
Japan and has been made at the rate of ¥107.39 to
U.S.$1.00, the rate of exchange prevailing on the Tokyo
Foreign Exchange Market on March 31, 2005. Such
translations should not be construed as representations
that the Japanese yen amounts could be converted into
U.S. dollars at that or any other rate.

The Bank was placed under temporary nationalization
by the prime minister of Japan on October 23, 1998,
under Section 1 of Article 36 of the Financial Revitaliza-
tion Law of Japan, and continued its operations in accor-
dance with Articles 47 and 48 of the same law. The
Bank's temporary nationalization status was terminated on
March 1, 2000, when all common shares of the Bank
held by the Deposit Insurance Corporation of Japan (the
“DIC") were transferred to New LTCB Partners C.V. in
accordance with the Share Purchase Agreement, dated
February 9, 2000 (the “Share Purchase Agreement”).

In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004, the Bank com-
pleted an initial public offering of its shares and became
listed on the First Section of the Tokyo Stock Exchange on
February 19, 2004. The Bank’s then controlling shareholder,
New LTCB Partners C.V., offered the shares sold in the initial
public offering. Following the initial public offering, the Bank
also completed a secondary offering on February 17, 2005.
Prior to the secondary offering, the Bank’s controlling share-
holder, New LTCB Partners C.V., distributed most of its
shareholdings to its investors. The investors, in turn, sold an
aggregate of 36.9% of the Bank's outstanding common
shares in the offering.

2005 2004

Subsidiaries 76 51
Affiliates accounted for

using the equity method 9 4

Unconsolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2005: 75

Unconsolidated subsidiaries are mainly operating com-
panies that undertake leasing business based on the
Tokumei Kumiai system (Silent Partnership). These subsid-
iaries are excluded from consolidation due to insignificance
that would not mislead judgment on the financial condition
or result of operations considering its total assets,
operating income, net income or retained earnings etc.
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Major consolidated subsidiaries for the year ended
March 31, 2005 were as listed below:

Percentage
Name Location ownership
APLUS Co., Ltd. Japan 67.7%
Showa Leasing Co., Ltd. Japan 96.5%
Shinsei Trust & Banking Co., Ltd. Japan 100%
Shinsei Securities Co., Ltd. Japan 100%
Shinsei Sales Finance Co., Ltd. Japan 100%

All significant intercompany transactions, related
account balances and unrealized profits and losses have
been eliminated in consolidation. As of March 31, 2005,
the fiscal year ending dates are March 31 for 59 subsid-
iaries, January 31 for 3 subsidiaries and December 31 for
14 subsidiaries, of which one subsidiary is consolidated
using its March 31 financial statements and the other
subsidiaries are consolidated using the January 31 and
the December 31 financial statements with appropriate
adjustments made for significant transactions during the
period from the ending dates of the fiscal year to the date
of the consolidated financial statements.

(b) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The Bank recognized certain identifiable intangible assets
in connection with the acquisition of APLUS and Showa
Leasing because they arose from contractual or other legal
rights, or were separable. The identified intangible assets
with amortization method and period were as listed below:

APLUS Co., Ltd.

tdentified intangible assets Amortization method Amortization period

Trade name and

trade marks: Straight-line 10 years
Customer relationship:  Sum-of-the-year's-digits 10 years
Merchant relationship: ~ Sum-of-the-year's-digits 20 years

Showa Leasing Co.,Ltd.

ldentified intangible assets Amartization methed Amortization period

Trade name: Straight-line 10 years
Customer relationship:  Sum-of-the-year's-digits 20 years
Maintenance
component contracts:  Straight-line based on  Subject to the
individual contract remaining
contract years
Straight-line based on  Subject to the
individual contract remaining
contract years

Sublease contracts:

The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of
the net assets acquired, including identified intangible
assets, was recorded as consolidation goodwiil and will be
amortized on a straight-line basis over 20 years. The
amortization period is the maximum period as defined in
accounting principles generally accepted in Japan and
was determined based upon the Bank’s business strategy.
However, both APLUS and Showa Leasing have significant

tax loss carryforwards and deductible temporary differ-
ences which were not recognized by the Bank at the time
of the acquisition due to uncertainty concerning their ulti-
mate realization. Had the Bank recognized the related
deferred tax assets at the time of the acquisition, consoli-
dation goodwill would have been reduced. Under Japanese
GAAP, any future recognition of the benefits of the tax
loss carryforwards or temporary differences (the carry-
forward period for tax loss carryforwards being generally
limited to seven years) that existed at the acquisition will
result in accelerated goodwill amortization. Any unamor-
tized balances of identified intangible assets and consoli-
dation goodwill are subject to impairment testing.

(c) Translation of Foreign Currency Financial Statements
and Transactions

The financial statements of consolidated foreign subsid-

jaries are translated into Japanese yen at exchange rates

as of the balance sheet date, except for shareholders’
equity, which is translated at the historical exchange
rates. Differences arising from such translation are shown
as foreign currency translation adjustments as a separate
component of shareholders’ equity in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets.

(i) Foreign currency-denominated assets and liabilities
and the accounts of overseas branches are translated
into Japanese yen at the exchange rates prevailing at
the balance sheet date, except for investments in
unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates which are
translated at the relevant historical exchange rates.

(ii) Foreign currency accounts held by consolidated foreign
subsidiaries are translated into the currency of the
subsidiary at the respective period-end exchange rates.

(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and
non-interest-bearing deposits. '

(e) Other Monetary Claims Purchased

The components of other monetary claims purchased are
principally loans held for trading purposes. Other mon-
etary claims purchased held for trading purposes are
recorded at fair value and unrealized gains and losses are
recorded in other business income (losses).

{f) Valuation of Trading Account Activities

Trading account positions entered into to generate gains
arising from short-term changes in interest rates, currency
exchange rates or market prices of securities and other
market-related indices, or from price differences among
markets, are included in trading assets and trading liabili-
ties on a trade date basis.

Trading securities and monetary claims purchased for
trading purposes are stated at market value and derivative
financial instruments related to trading positions are stated
at fair value based on estimated amounts that would be




settled in cash if such positions were terminated at the end
of the fiscal year, which reflects liquidation and credit risks,

Trading revenue and trading expenses include interest
received and paid, the amount of increases/decreases in
valuation gains/losses on the balance sheet date for
securities and monetary claims, and the net change in
valuation gains/losses during the year using the estimated
settiement prices assuming settlement in cash on the
balance sheet date for derivatives.

(g) Monetary Assets Held in Trust

The components of trust assets are accounted for based
on the standard appropriate for each asset type. Instru-
ments held in trust for trading purposes are recorded at
fair value and unrealized gains and losses are recorded in
other business income (losses). Instruments held in trust
classified as available-for-sale are recorded at fair value
with the corresponding unrealized gains/losses recorded
directly in a separate component of shareholders’ equity.

(h) Securities

Securities other than investments in unconsolidated sub-
sidiaries and affiliates are classified into three categories,
based principally on the Group’s intent, as follows:

Trading securities are securities held in anticipation of
gains arising from short-term changes in market value
and/or held for resale to customers. Trading securities are
carried at fair value with corresponding unrealized gains/
losses recorded in income.

Securities being held to maturity are debt securities for
which the Group has positive intent and ability to hold
until maturity. Securities being held to maturity are car-
ried at amortized cost by the moving average method.

Securities available-for-sale are securities other than
trading securities and securities being held to maturity.
Securities available-for-sale are carried at fair value with
the corresponding unrealized gains/losses recorded
directly in a separate component of shareholders’ equity.
The cost of sale of these securities is determined by the
moving average method. Securities available-for-sale for
which fair value is not readily determinable are carried at
moving average cost or amortized cost determined by the
moving average method.

Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries without
application of the equity method are carried at cost
determined by the moving average method.

Individual securities are written down when a decline
in fair value below the cost of such securities is deemed
to be other than temporary.

(i) Premises and Equipment
Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumu-
lated depreciation.

Depreciation of the Group’s building and the Bank’s
computer equipment (including ATMs) other than personal

Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements

computers is computed principally using the straight-line
method, and depreciation of other equipment is computed
principally using the declining-balance method. Principal
estimated useful lives of buildings and equipment as of
March 31, 2005 were as follows:

Buildings ......... 3 years to 50 years

Equipment ....... 2 years to 15 years

Effective April 1, 2004, the Bank adopted the straight-
line method of depreciation for its computer equipment
(including ATMs), except for personal computers. Prior to
April 1, 2004, computers equipment had been depreci-
ated using the declining-balance method. This change
was made to provide a more rational atlocation of the cost
of computer equipment, including ATM machines, and a
better matching of revenues and expenses in our retail
banking business, following the increased acquisition of
ATM machines. The effect of this change was to both
decrease general and administration expenses and
increase income before income taxes and minority inter-
ests for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005, by ¥374
miltion (U.S.$3,492 thousand).

(j) Software

Capitalized software for internal use is depreciated using
the straight-line method based on the Group's estimated
useful lives (mainly five or eight years). Capitalized soft-
ware for internal use is included in other assets.

(k) Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

In August 2002, the Business Accounting Deliberation
Council issued a Statement of Opinion, “Accounting for
Impairment of Fixed Assets,” and in October 2003, the
Accounting Standards Board of Japan {“the ASBJ") issued
ASB Guideline No. 6, “The Guidance for the Accounting
Standard for Impairment of Fixed Assets.” The Group has
early adopted these new accounting pronouncements for
impairment of long-lived assets and conducted a review
for impairment as of March 31, 2004. As a result of the
review, no impairment loss was recognized for the fiscal
years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004.

(I) Deferred Charges
Deferred charges are amortized as follows.

The Bank’s deferred issuance expenses for corporate
bonds are amortized by the straight-line method over the
shorter of the terms of the debentures or the maximum
three-year period stipulated in the Japanese Commercial
Code (the “Code”) and its regulations.

Deferred discounts on debentures are amortized by the
straight-line method over the terms of the debentures.

Deferred issuance expenses for debentures are amor-
tized by the straight-line method over the shorter of the
terms of the debentures or the maximum three-year period
stipulated in the Code and its regulations.
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Consolidated subsidiaries’ deferred issuance expenses
for corporate bonds are amortized by the straight-line
method over the terms of the corporate bonds.

Formation costs and stock issuance costs of consoli-
dated subsidiaries are charged to income in the fiscal year
incurred. '

{m) Reserve for Credit Losses

The reserve for loan losses of the Bank and the domestic
trust and banking subsidiary has been established as
detailed below based on the Bank'’s internal rules for
establishing the reserve.

Under “Warranty of Loan-Related Assets” described in
the Share Purchase Agreement, a precondition of exercise
of the cancellation right was the existence of a defect and a
20% reduction in value. To estimate the reserve amount for
the Bank up to March 31, 2004, the precondition of exer-
cise of the cancellation right was taken into account. Where
conclusions as fo the exercise of the cancellation right were
reached after the application deadline for exercising the
cancellation right under the “Warranty” clause date of expi-
ration, adjustments were made to reserve for credit losses in
the fiscal period in which such events occurred. During the
year ended March 31, 2005, all disputes with the DIC
were settled and our cancellation right under the Share
Purchase Agreement was entirely terminated.

For claims to obligors who are legally bankrupt (due to
bankruptcy, special liquidation, etc.) or virtually bankrupt,
a specific reserve is provided based on the amount of
claims, after the charge-off stated below, net of amounts
expected to be collected through the disposal of collateral
or execution of guarantees.

For claims tc obligors who are possibly bankrupt, a spe-
cific reserve is provided for the amount considered to be
necessary based on an overall solvency assessment per-
formed for the amount of claims net of amounts expected
to be collected through the disposal of collateral or
execution of guarantees.

The Bank applies the “discounted cash flow method”
(hereinafter referred to as the “DCF method”) in calculat-
ing the loan loss reserve amounts for most of the claims
against obligors categorized as possibly bankrupt or sub-
standard under the self-assessment guidelines. Under the
DCF method, the loan loss reserve is determined as the
difference between (a) relevant estimated cash flows dis-
counted by the original contractual interest rate and (b)
the book value of the claim. In cases where it is difficult
to reasonably estimate future cash flow, the Bank sets
aside as reserves the product of the estimated loss ratios
on the claims and either (a) the balance of the claims, in
the case of claims against substandard obligors, or (b) the
unsecured, unguaranteed portion of the claims, in the
case of claims against possibly bankrupt obligors.

For other claims, the Bank provides a general reserve
based on historical loan loss experience.

For specific foreign claims, there is a reserve for loans
to restructuring countries which has been established
based on losses estimated by considering the political and
economic conditions in those countries.

All claims are assessed by business divisions and
branches based on the internal rules for the self-
assessment of asset quality. The Credit Assessment Divi-
sion, which is independent from business divisions and
branches, conducts audits of these assessments, and
additional reserves may be provided based on the audit
results.

For collateralized or guaranteed claims to obligors who
are legally bankrupt or virtually bankrupt, the amount of
claims exceeding the estimated value of collateral or guar-
antees, which is deemed uncollectible, has been charged
off and totaled ¥8,401 million (U.S.$78,238 thousand)
and ¥ 10,609 million as of March 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.

The reserve for other credit losses primarily consists of
reserves on amounts, included in accounts receivable, that
the Bank believes the DIC is obligated to reimburse to it
but the return of which the DIC has not yet accepted, as
well as a reserve taken on the Bank's contribution to an
industry-wide fund set up to purchase and collect loans
and certain litigation claims.

The consolidated subsidiaries other than the domestic
trust and banking subsidiary calculate the general reserve
for “normal” and “caution, including substandard”
categories based on the specific actual historical loss ratio,
and the specific reserve for the “possibly bankrupt,”
“virtually bankrupt” and “legally bankrupt” categories
based on estimated losses, considering the recoverable
value.

(n) Accrued Employees Bonuses

The accrued employees bonuses are provided in the
amount of estimated bonuses which are attributable to
each fiscal year.

(o) Reserve for Retirement Benefits

The Bank, APLUS and Showa Leasing each have a non-
contributory defined benefit pension plan and certain of
its Japanese consolidated domestic subsidiaries have
unfunded severance indemnity plans, which cover sub-
stantially all of the Group’s employees. The reserve for
retirement benefits is provided for the payment of employ-
ees’ retirement benefits based on the estimated amounts
of the actuarial retirement benefit obligation net of the
estimated value of pension assets. Net actuarial gain/loss
and prior service costs are amortized using the straight-
line method over the average remaining service period
mainly from the fiscal year of occurrence.



Effective April 1, 2000, the Bank adopted a new
accounting standard for employees’ retirement benefits
and accounts for the liabilities for retirement benefits
based on the projected benefit obligations net of plan
assets at the balance sheet date. The transitional unrecog-
nized net retirement benefit obligation for the Bank of
¥9,081 million is being amortized using the straight-line
method over 15 years.

The funded defined benefit pension plan of the Bank,
which was established under the Japanese Welfare Pension
Insurance Law, covered a substitutional portion of the gov-
ernmental pension program managed by the Bank on be-
half of the government and a corporate portion established
at the discretion of the Bank. Subsequent to the enact-
ment of the Defined Benefit Pension Plan Law in April
2002, the Bank applied for an exemption from its obliga-
tion to pay benefits for future employee services related to
the substitutional portion which would result in the transfer
of the pension obligations and related assets to the govern-
ment subsequent to a second application. The Bank
obtained approval of its application for exemption from
providing future benefit obligations from the Ministry of
Health, Labour and Welfare on September 18, 2002.

As a result of the approval of its application for
exemption from providing future benefits, the Bank
derecognized the benefit obligation and related plan
assets and recognized a gain in the amount of ¥3,019
million in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003, in accor-
dance with a transitional measurement rule under the
accounting standard for employees' retirement benefits.

On March 1, 2004, the Bank obtained approval of its
application for exemption from its obligation to pay ben-
efits for past employee services related to the substitu-
tional portion. No additional gain was recorded as a result
of this approval. On the same date, the Bank combined its
three defined benefit pension plans into one plan, which
succeeds all previous plans and comprises all of the
Bank’s retirement benefit obligations to its employees and
the related assets, including those which were contributed
through the employee retirement benefit trust. During the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2005, the Bank completed
the return of the relevant pension assets to the
government.

(p) Reserve for Loss on Disposition of Premises and
Equipment

The reserve for loss on disposition of premises and equip-

ment includes the estimated amount of loss reasonably

calculated based on gquotations, etc. with respect to

expenses for the move of branches and/or offices.

(g) Reserve for Loss on Sale of Bonds
The reserve for loss on sale of bonds is established when
the Bank officially plans a sale of specific bonds, and is
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determined based on the estimated loss on the sale of
bonds net of the gain or loss on the cancellation of deriva-
tives designated as hedges for those bonds.

(r) Reserve under Special Law

The reserve under special law is provided for contingent
liabilities from brokering of securities transactions in
accordance with Article 51 of the Securities and
Exchange Law of Japan.

(s) Accounting for Lease Transactions
Under Japanese accounting standards for leases, finance
leases where the ownership of the property is deemed to
transfer to the lessee are capitalized, while other finance
leases can be accounted for as operating leases if the
required as if “capitalized” information is disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements. All leases
entered into by the Bank and its consolidated domestic
subsidiaries have been accounted for as operating leases.
Leased assets held by consolidated domestic subsidiar-
ies are amortized using the straight-line method over the
leasing periods.

(t) Installment Sales Finance and Credit Guarantees

Fees from customers of instaliment sales finance have
principally been prorated by the respective number of
installments, and the prorated amounts have been recog-
nized as income either when they become due (the “sum-
of-the-months digits method”), or otherwise have been
recognized using the credit-balance method depending on

the contract terms.

Fees from credit guarantees have been recognized
either by the sum-of-the-months digits method, by the
straight-line method, or by the credit-balance method
depending on the contract terms.

(u) Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes relating to temporary differences
between financial reporting and tax bases of assets and
liabilities and tax loss carryforwards have been recog-
nized. The asset and liability approach is used to recog-
nize deferred income taxes.

The Bank files its corporate income tax return under
the consolidated corporate tax system, which allows com-
panies to base tax payments on the combined profits and
losses of the Bank and its wholly owned domestic
subsidiaries.

A valuation allowance is recognized for any portion of
the deferred tax assets where it is considered more likely
than not that it will not be realized.

(v) Appropriation of Retained Earnings

Cash dividends and transfers to legal reserve are recorded
in the fiscal year that the relevant proposed appropriation
of retained earnings is approved by the Board of Directors
and noticed at the general meeting of shareholders,
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After the June 2004 annual general meeting of share-
holders, the Bank adopted a Company with Committees
board model as stipulated in the Code. In this model, the
appropriation of retained earnings is approved by the
Board of Directors with notification to shareholders at the
general meeting of common shareholders while it used to
require approval of the shareholders as well as the Board
of Directors.

(w) Derivatives and Hedge Accounting

Derivatives are stated at fair value. Derivative transactions
that meet the hedge accounting criteria are primarily
accounted for under a deferral method whereby unrealized
gains and losses are deferred as assets or liabilities until
the profits and losses on the hedged items are realized.

The gross amounts of deferred hedge losses and
deferred hedge gains recorded as a result of deferral hedge
accounting were ¥2,486 million (U.S5.$23,150 thousand)
and ¥3,726 million (U.S.$34,703 thousand) as of March
31, 2005 and ¥20,678 million and ¥8,643 million as of
March 31, 2004, respectively. The net amounts were
inctuded in either other assets or other liabilities.

The interest rate swaps which qualify for hedge
accounting and meet specific matching criteria are not
remeasured at market value but the net payments or
receipts under the swap agreements are recognized and
included in inierest expenses or income.

(i) Hedge of interest rate risks

Prior to April 1, 2003, the Bank principally applied a
“macro hedge” approach for interest rate derivatives used
to manage interest rate risks, and its ALM activities based
on the transitional treatment prescribed in Industry Audit
Committee Report No. 24 issued by the Japanese Insti-
tute of Certified Public Accountants (the "JICPA"). Effec-
tive April 1, 2003, the Bank adopted portfolio hedging in
accordance with Report No. 24. Under portfolio hedging,
a portfolio of hedged items such as deposits or loans with
common maturities is matched with a group of hedging
instruments such as interest rate swaps, which offset the
effect of fair value fluctuations of the hedged items by
identified maturities, and are designated as a hedge of
the portfolio. The effectiveness of the portfolio hedge is
assessed by each group.

Deferred hedge losses and deferred hedge gains previ-
ously recorded on the balance sheet as a result of macro
hedge accounting are being amortized as expenses or
income over the remaining lives of the hedging instru-
ments. The unamortized balances of deferred hedge
losses and deferred hedge gains attributable to macro-
hedge accounting were ¥391 million (U.S.$3,650 thou-
sand) and ¥261 million (U.S.$2,435 thousand) as of
March 31, 2005 and ¥3,400 million and ¥645 million as

of March 31, 2004, respectively. The net amount is in-
cluded in deferred losses on derivatives for hedging pur-
poses in either other assets or other liabilities.

(ii) Hedge of foreign exchange fluctuation risks
Prior to April 1, 2003, the Bank accounted for fund swap
and certain currency swap transactions on an accrual
basis by applying the one-year transitional treatment pro-
vided in Industry Audit Committee Report No. 25 of the
JICPA. Fund swap transactions are foreign exchange
swaps, and consist of spot foreign exchange contracts
bought or sold and forward foreign exchange contracts
sold or bought. Such transactions are contracted for the
purpose of lending or borrowing in a different currency.
Fund swap transactions are used to convert the principal
equivalent amount into spot foreign exchange contracts
bought or sold with regard to the corresponding fund bor-
rowing or lending. Such transactions convert the corre-
sponding principal equivalents and foreign currency
equivalents to pay and receive, whose amounts and due
dates are predetermined at the time of the transactions,
into forward foreign exchange contracts bought or sold.
Effective April 1, 2003, these swap transactions are
accounted for using either deferral hedge accounting or
fair value hedge accounting by fully applying Industry
Audit Committee Report No. 25. Under deferral hedge
accounting, hedged items are identified by grouping the
foreign currency-denominated financial assets and liabili-
ties by currencies and designating derivative transactions
such as currency swap transactions and forward exchange
contracts as hedging instruments. Hedge effectiveness is
reviewed by comparing the total foreign currency position
of the hedged items and hedging instruments by currency.
The Bank also applies deferral hedge accounting and
fair value hedge accounting to translation gains or losses
from foreign currency assets of net investments in foreign
affiliates and securities available-for-sale (other than bonds
denominated in foreign currencies) when such foreign cur-
rency exposures recorded as assets are hedged with offset-
ting foreign currency liabilities and the liabilities exceed
the acquisition cost of such foreign currency assets.

(iii) Intracompany derivative transactions

Gains/losses on intracompany and intercompany derivative
hedging transactions between the trading book and the
banking book are not eliminated since offsetting transac-
tions with third parties are appropriately entered into in
conformity with the non-arbitrary and strict hedging policy
in accordance with Industry Audit Committee Reports

No. 24 and No. 25. As a result, in the banking book, real-
ized gains/losses on such intracompany transactions are
reported in current earnings and valuation gains/losses are




deferred as assets/liabilities. On the other hand, in the
trading book, realized gains/losses and valuation gains/
losses on such intracompany transactions are substan-
tially offset with covering contracts entered into with third
parties.

(x) Per Share Information

Basic net income per common share calculations represent
net income available to common shareholders, divided by
the weighted average number of outstanding shares of
common stock during the respective year, retroactively
adjusted for stock splits and/or reverse stock splits.

Diluted net income per common share calculations
consider the dilutive effect of common stock equivalents,
which include preferred shares, and stock acquisition
rights, assuming that all preferred shares were converted

The acquisition of both APLUS and Showa Leasing was
made in line with the Bank's business strategy to expand
consumer and commercial finance which is now a third
pillar of Shinsei's businesses together with Institutional
Banking and Retail Banking.

APLUS Co., Ltd.

On September 29, 2004, the Bank acquired a controlling
interest in APLUS, a consumer credit company in Japan.
The Bank acquired 129,653,631 shares, or approximately
67%, of APLUS’s common stock, primarily through a
third-party allotment of new shares, for ¥35.0 billion, and
acquired all of APLUS’s Class A, Class B and Class C pre-
ferred stock from UFJ Bank Limited for ¥30.0 billion.

Following the investment in APLUS, the Bank con-
ducted a fair value review of APLUS's assets and liabili-
ties, and also conducted a fair value review of its
intangible assets for purposes of preparing the consoli-
dated balance sheet as of September 30, 2004 (deemed
acquisition date). The excess of our purchase price over
the net asset fair value after recognized identified intan-
gible assets and their associated deferred tax liability was
accounted for as consolidation goodwill.

On February 28, 2005, APLUS issued 49,000,000
shares (¥98 billion) of Class D preferred stock and
71,500,000 shares (¥143 billion) of Class E preferred
stock, of which 22,000,000 shares (¥44 billion) of Class
D preferred stock and 500,000 shares (¥1 billion) of
Class E preferred stock were allocated to third parties.
Subsequently, 2,750,000 shares (¥5.5 billion) of Class D
preferred stock and 1,000,000 shares (¥2 billion) of
Class E preferred stock, were sold to third parties. As a
result, 24,750,000 shares (¥49.5 billion) of Class D pre-
ferred stock and 1,500,000 shares (¥3 billion) of Class E
preferred stock were held by third parties.
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into common stock at the beginning of the fiscal year with
an applicable adjustment for related dividends on pre-
ferred stock, and that stock acquisition rights were fully
exercised at the time of issuance.

Cash dividends per common share and per Class A and
Class B preferred shares presented in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income are dividends appli-
cable to the respective years, including dividends to be
paid after the end of the year, which are retroactively
adjusted for stock splits and/or reverse stock splits.

(y) Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the consoli-
dated financial statements for the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2004 to conform to the presentation for the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2005.

As the capital injection made in February 2005 was
considered to be the second step in a step acquisition,
the fair value of APLUS assets and liabilities, including
intangible assets and goodwill, was updated and was as
follows:

Billions of yen

Cash and due from banks ¥168.8
Monetary assets held in trust 64.1
Securities 10.8
Loans 122.9
Other assets (including ¥178.7 billion of
installment receivables and ¥70.9 billion of
intangible assets) 330.3
Premises and equipment 14.7
Customers’ liabilities for guarantees 1,200.7
Total assets acquired, excluding consolidation
goodwill 1,912.4
Commercial paper (11.0)
Borrowed money {677.2)
Other liabilities (241.2)
Deferred tax liabilities, net (18.6)
Guarantees (1,200.7)
Total liabilities assumed (2,048.9)
Net asset fair value before capital injection (136.4)
Capital injection 241.0
Net asset fair value after capital injection 104.5
Minority interest (Class D) (49.5)
Minority interest (Class E) (0.1)
Net asset fair value attributable to Shinsei 54.8
Purchase price 253.5
Consolidation goodwill 198.6
Consolidation goodwill amortization (Second half
of fiscal 2004) (4.9)
Consolidation goodwill outstanding as of
March 31, 2005 ¥193.6

95



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

96

Although approximately 33.0% of APLUS's common
stock is held by minority shareholders, none of APLUS's
income will be attributed to minority common shareholders
until such time as the aggregate amount of APLUS's cumu-
lative net income subsequent to September 30, 2004
(adjust for fair value of net assets at acquisition), less divi-
dends paid on preferred stock, and net asset fair value
after capital injection, exceeds the aggregate amount of the
preferred stock of APLUS.

Showa Leasing Co., Ltd.

On March 23, 2005, we acquired a controlling interest in
Showa Leasing, one of the largest leasing companies in
Japan. In connection with our acquisition, we acquired
233,000,000 shares, or approximately 97%, of Showa
Leasing’s commoen stock, primarily through a third-party
allotment of new shares and purchase of existing shares,
for approximately ¥75.9 billion.

Following our investment in Showa Leasing, we con-
ducted a fair value review of Showa Leasing’s assets and
liabilities, and also conducted a fair value review of its
intangible assets for purposes of preparing our consoli-
dated balance sheet as of March 31, 2005 (deemed
acquisition date). The excess of our purchase price over
the net asset fair value after recognized identified intan-
gible assets and their associated deferred tax liability was
accounted for as consolidation goodwill.

The following table summarizes the fair value of the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of March 31,
2005.

Billions of yen
Cash and due from banks ¥ 1.9
Securities 11.5
Loans and bills discounted 0.7
Other assets (including ¥132.1 billion of
installment receivables and ¥10.1 billion of
intangible assets) 223.4
Premises and equipment 3134
Total assets acquired, excluding consolidation
goodwill 551.1
Consolidation goodwill 51.2
Total assets acquired 602.4
Commercial paper (6.0
Borrowed money (458.8)
Other liabilities (52.4)
Reserve for retirement benefit (2.1)
Deferred tax liabilities 6.1)
Total liabilities assumed (525.5)
Minority interest (0.9}
Net assets acquired (Total purchase price) 75.9

The reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents at the end of the fiscal year and cash and due from banks in the
consolidated balance sheets as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 was as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2005 2004 2005
Cash and due from banks ¥ 277,593 ¥ 312,709 $ 2,584,910
Interest-bearing deposits included in due from banks (115,367) (155,531) (1,074,285)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ¥ 162,226 ¥ 157,178 $ 1,510,625
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(1) Other monetary claims purchased as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. doliars
2005 2004 2005
Trading purposes ¥189,908 ¥187,601 $1,768,399
Other 130,471 59,386 1,214,931
Total ¥320,379 ¥246,987 $2,983,330

(ii} Fair value and the unrealized gain of other monetary claims purchased for trading purposes as of March 31, 2005 and
2004 were as follows:

Thousands of

Mitlions of yen U.S. dollars
2005 2004 2005
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair value gain Fair value gain Fair value gain
Trading purposes ¥189,908 ¥2,137 ¥187,601 ¥67 $1,768,39¢ $19,905

The Bank reclassified other monetary claims purchased of ¥20,755 million from held for other than trading purposes to
trading in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004. This resulted in an increase in income before income taxes and minority
interests of ¥55 million.

Trading assets as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2005 2004 2005
Trading securities ¥ 666 ¥446,722 $ 6,206
Derivatives for trading securities 799 240 7,445
Securities held to hedge trading transactions 104,657 106,844 974,551
Derivatives for securities held to hedge trading transactions 0 — 7
Trading-related financial derivatives 62,378 81,289 580,857
Total ¥168,501 ¥635,096 $1,569,066

(i) Monetary assets held in trust as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2005 2004 2005
Trading purposes ¥218,258 ¥230,713 $2,032,391
Other 153,965 12,037 1,433,705
Total ¥372,224 ¥242,750 $3,466,096

(i) Fair value and the unrealized loss of monetary assets held in trust for trading purposes as of March 31, 2005 and 2004
were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2005 2004 2005
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair value loss Fair value loss Fair value loss
Trading purposes ¥218,258 ¥(6,016) ¥230,713 ¥(4,370) $2,032,391 $(56,021)
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(iii) The acquisition cost and the book value of monetary assets held in trust for other than trading purposes as of
March 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

Millions of yen

2005 2004
Gross Gross Gross Gross
Acquisition unrealized unrealized Book Acquisition unrealized unrealized Book
cost gain loss value cost gain loss value
Other ¥153,965 ¥— ¥—  ¥153,965 ¥12,037 ¥— ¥— ¥12,037

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2005
Gross Gross
Acquisition unrealized unrealized Book
cost gain l0ss value
Other $1,433,705 $— $— $1,433,705

Securities as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2005 2004 2005
Trading securities ¥ 48,550 ¥ 72,932 $ 452,099
Securities being held to maturity 525 20 4,892
Secutities available-for-sale:
Marketable securities, at fair value 1,182,543 1,305,578 11,011,675
Securities whose fair value is not readily determinable,
at amortized cost 223,501 100,535 2,081,212
Equity of unconsclidated subsidiaries, at cost
and affiliates using the equity method 23,097 4,167 215,085
Total ¥1,478,219  ¥1,483,234 $13,764,963

The above balances do not include securities held in relation to securities borrowing transactions with or without cash
collateral and securities purchased under resale agreements and securities accepted as collateral based on derivative trans-
actions, where the Group has the right to sell or pledge such securities without restrictions. The balances of those securities
as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 were ¥13,749 million (U.S.$128,032 thousand) and ¥20,213 million, respectively.

SHINKI!'s securities (stocks and convertible bonds), ¥21.1 billion, category was changed from “Securities available-for-
sale” to “Equity of unconsolidated subsidiaries, at cost and affiliates,” according to the exercise of convertible right of the
bond in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005.

The amortized cost and the fair value of marketable securities (other than trading securities) as of March 31, 2005 and
2004 were as follows:

Millions of yen

2005 2004
Gross Gross Gross Gross
Amortized unrealized unrealized Amortized unrealized unrealized
cost gain loss Fair value cost gain loss Fair value
Securities being held to maturity
Japanese national government bonds ¥ 25 ¥ 0 ¥ o~ ¥ 26 ¥ 20 ¥ 1 ¥ — ¥ 21
Japanese corporate bonds 499 —_ 0 499 — — — —
Total ¥ 525 ¥ 0 ¥ 0 ¥ 525 ¥ 20 ¥ 1 ¥ — ¥ 21
Securities available-for-sale:
Equity securities ¥ 16,910 ¥1,788 ¥ 3 ¥ 18695 ¥ 1451 ¥ 749 ¥ 11 ¥ 2,189
Japanese national government bonds 586,890 859 50 587,790 869,762 1,241 1,610 869,393
Japanese local government bonds 134,619 1 71 134,548 132,035 0 129 131,905
Japanese corporate bonds 354,366 170 118 354,419 143,804 148 332 143,621
Other, mainly foreign debt securities 84,260 3,494 812 87,089 146,323 13,259 1,253 158,467
Total ¥1,177,047 ¥6,314 ¥1,056 ¥1,182,543 ¥1,293,377 ¥15,399 ¥3,337 ¥1,305,578
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Thousands of U.S. dollars

2005
Gross Gross
Amortized unrealized unrealized
cost gain loss Fair value
Securities being held to maturity
Japanese national government bonds $ 236 § 6 $ — 8 242
Japanese corporate bonds 4,656 — 0 4,656
Total $ 4892 % 6 $ 0$% 4,898
Securities available-for-sale:
Equity securities $ 157,467 $16653 $ 33 $ 174,087
Japanese national government bonds 5,465,042 8,003 472 5,473,419
Japanese local government bonds 1,253,556 12 670 1,252,899
Japanese carporate bonds 3,299,813 1,592 1,099 3,300,305
Other, mainly foreign debt securities 784,619 32,542 7,567 810,965
Total $10,960,497 $58,802 $9,841 $11,011,675

Individual securities are written down when a decline in fair value below the cost of such securities is deemed to be other
than temporary. The amount written down is accounted for as impaired loss. Impaired loss for the fiscal years ended
March 31, 2005 and 2004 was ¥1,225 million (U.S.$11,410 thousand) and ¥5 million, respectively.

Gross unrealized gains or losses as of March 31, 2005 and 2004, as presented above, do not include the valuation gains
or losses related to certain securities with embedded derivatives, which are carried at ¥238 million (gain) (U.$.$2,217 thou-
sand) and ¥138 million (gain) respectively and for which the gain or loss has been recorded in other business income
(losses).

The Bank changed its intent to hold certain "Securities available-for-sale” totaling ¥27,998 million and classified them as
“Trading securities” in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004. This resulted in an increase in income before income taxes and
minority interests of ¥1,197 mitlion.

Securities available-for-sale sold during the fiscal years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

Millions of yen

2005 2004
Total amount Total amount Total amount  Total amount
Proceeds of gains of losses Proceeds of gains of {osses
from sales on sales on sales from sales on sales on sales
Securities available-for-sale ¥634,605 ¥5,796 ¥3,656 ¥701,198 ¥7,015 ¥2,616

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2005
Total amount Total amount
Proceeds of gains of losses
from sales on sales on sales
Securities available-for-sale $5,909,351 $53,980  $34,048

In addition to the above, profit and loss resulting from the cancellation of derivative instruments executed to hedge these
investments was recorded in other business income (losses) for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005.

The amortized cost of securities available-for-sale whose fair value is not readily determinable as of March 31, 2005 and
2004 was as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2005 2004 2005
Equity securities ¥ 6,214 ¥ 2,204 $ 57,864
Japanese local government bonds 17,085 4 159,098
Japanese corporate bonds 174,881 86,403 1,628,473
Foreign securities 21,988 11,855 204,753
Other 3,331 67 31,024
Total ¥223,501 ¥100,5635 $2,081,212
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Redemption schedules for held-to-maturity and available-for-sale debt securities as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 were

as follows:
Millions of yen
2005 2004
Qver 1 year Over 5 years Quer 1 year Qver 5 years
1 year to to Over 1 year to 0 Over
or fess 5 years 10 years 10 years or less 5 years 10 years 10 years
Bonds:
Japanese national government bonds ¥225,573 ¥321,895 ¥5,172 ¥35,174 ¥372,765 ¥392470 ¥ 60,796 ¥43,381
Japanese local government bonds 147,819 3,805 9 - 131,89 4 9 —
Japanese corporate bonds 257,503 270,360 1,938 — 120,550 94,057 15,391 26
Subtotal 630,896 596,060 7,120 35,174 625211 486,532 76,196 43,407
Other 6,283 66,555 28,334 6,282 1,060 90,612 71,848 3,645
Total ¥637,179 ¥662,616  ¥35455 ¥41456 ¥626,272  ¥577,145  ¥148,044 ¥47,053
Thousands of U.S. dollars
2005
Over 1 year Over 5 years
1 year to to Over
or less 5 years 10 years 10 years
Bonds:

$2,100,509 $2,997,442
1,376,472 35,437
2,397,831 2,517,554

Japanese national government bonds
Japanese local government bonds
Japanese corporate bonds

$ 48,168 $327,537

87 —

18,049 —

Subtotal 5,874,812 5,550,433 66,304 327,537
Other 58,511 619,756 263,849 58,504
Total $5,933,323 $6,170,189 $330,153 $386,041

Loans and bills discounted as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2005 2004 2005
Loans on deeds ¥2,820,518  ¥2,383,851 $26,264,257
Loans on bills 171,338 340,203 1,595,475
Bills discounted 30 288 280
Overdrafts 438,535 322,699 4,083,576
Total ¥3,430,421 ¥3,047,042 $31,943,588

(1) Loans and bills discounted include loans to bankrupt
obligors totaling ¥2,622 million (U.S.$24,424 thousand)
and ¥7,960 miltion as of March 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively, as well as non-accrual delinquent loans total-
ing ¥48,181 million (U.S.$448,657 thousand) and
¥69,5631 million as of March 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.

Non-accrual delinquent loans include loans classified
as “possibly bankrupt” and “virtually bankrupt” under the
Bank's self-assessment guidelines.

In addition to non-accrual delinquent loans as defined,
certain other loans classified as “substandard” under the
Bank's self-assessment guidelines include past due loans
(three months or more).

Past due loans (three months or more) consist of loans
for which the principal and/or interest is three months or
more past due but exclude loans to bankrupt obligors and
non-accrual delinquent loans. The balances of past due
loans (three months or more) as of March 31, 2005 and
2004 were ¥5,599 million (U.S.$52,143 thousand) and
¥8,202 million, respectively.

Restructured loans are loans where the Group relaxes
lending conditions, such as by reducing the original inter-
est rate, or by forbearing interest payments or principal
repayments to support the borrower’s reorganization, but
exclude loans to bankrupt obligors, non-accrual delin-
quent loans or past due loans (three months or more).
The outstanding balances of restructured loans as of



March 31, 2005 and 2004 were ¥23,614 million
(U.5.$219,894 thousand) and ¥9,232 million,
respectively.

(2} The total outstanding amounts deducted from the loan
account for loan participations as of March 31, 2005 and
2004 were ¥118,143 million (U.5.$1,100,131 thou-
sand) and ¥176,605 million, respectively. This “off-
balance sheet” treatment was in accordance with
guidelines issued by the JICPA.

(3) The amount of loans sold through senior certificates
under a collateralized loan obligation (“CLO")
securitization totaled ¥252,812 million (U.S.$2,354,154
thousand) and ¥252,601 million for the fiscal years
ended March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, with the
subordinated certificates retained by the Bank totaling
¥98,091 million (U.5.$913,413 thousand) and

Other assets as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:
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¥101,647 million as of March 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively, recorded as loans.

A reserve for credit losses was established based on the
aggregate amount of the senior and subordinated certifi-
cate portions described above, taking into consideration
all credit risks to be absorbed by the subordinated
certificates.

(4) Bills discounted, such as bank acceptances bought,
commercial bills discounted, documentary bills and foreign
exchange contracts bought, are accounted for as financing
transactions in accordance with the JICPA Industry Audit
Committee Report No. 24, although the Bank has the
right to sell or pledge them without restrictions. The face
values of such bills discounted held as of March 31,
2005 and 2004 were ¥38 million (U.5.$357 thousand)
and ¥293 million, respectively.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. doltars
2005 2004 2005

Accrued income ¥ 40,850 ¥ 31,521 $ 380,392
Prepaid expenses 5,365 847 49,962
Fair value of derivatives 23,846 23,731 222,055
Deferred losses on derivatives for hedging purposes — 12,035 —
Financial stabilization fund contribution 70,23¢ 70,239 654,055
Accounts receivable 62,524 138,694 582,221
Installment receivables 377,300 26,754 3,513,363
intangible assets 77,229 — 719,153
Other 193,084 71,267 1,797,975

Total ¥850,440 ¥375,088 $7,919,176

Conventionally, although the investment share of
investment limited fiability association was included in
“Other” in “Other assets,” from this fiscal year, it is
included in “securities” in relation with the investment
share having been defined as securities by “The Law
which Revises the Parts of the Securities Exchange Act
etc.” (June 9, 2004, Law No. 97). This amount is
¥16,426 million (U.S.$152,964 thousand) as of
March 31, 2005,

Installment receivables in other assets inciude credits
to bankrupt obligors totaling ¥1,442 million
(U.5.$13,429 thousand), non-accrual delinquent credit
totaling ¥4,256 million (U.S.$39,638 thousand), past
due credits (three months or more) of ¥1,041 million
(U.5.$9,702 thousand), and restructured credit of
¥18,270 million (U.5.$170,131 thousand).
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Premises and equipment as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Mitlions of yen U.S. dollars
2005 2004 2005

Land ¥ 43,619 ¥ 38,834 $ 406,182
Buildings 48,145 42,689 448,325
Equipment 324,269 10,946 3,026,062
Security deposits 16,634 7,724 154,859
Other 966 924 8,998
Subtotal 434,335 101,120 4,044,473
Accumulated depreciation (15,397) (11,416) (143,376)
Net book value ¥418,938 ¥ 89,703 $3,901,097

Reserve for credit losses as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2005 2004 2005

Reserve for loan losses:
General reserve ¥ 65,410 ¥ 61,032 $ 609,092
Specific reserve 51,807 55,087 482,424
Reserve for loans to restructuring countries 5 5 52
Subtotal 117,223 116,125 1,091,568
Specific reserve for other credit losses 32,576 61,790 303,347
Total ¥149,799 ¥177,916 $1,354,915

D mﬁﬁ

Deposits, including negotiable certificates of deposit, as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2005 2004 2005
Current ¥ 42,013 ¥ 35,149 $ 391,220
Ordinary 884,322 737,511 8,234,682
Notice 17,016 21,184 158,455
Time 1,785,817 1,180,634 16,628,275
Negotiable certificates of deposit 372,607 471,068 3,469,669
Other 351,036 288,940 3,268,798
Total ¥3,452,813 ¥2,734,489 $32,152,089
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Debentures as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:
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Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dotlars
2005 2004 2005
Coupon debentures ¥1,214,372 ¥1,280,977 $11,308,061
Discount debentures 28,260 67,043 263,153
Total ¥1,242,632 ¥1,358,021 $11,571,214

Annual maturities of debentures as of March 31, 2005 were as follows:

Year ending March 31

Miliions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2006 ¥ 343,732 $ 3,200,784
2007 397,304 3,699,643
2008 152,013 1,415,528
2009 178,677 1,663,821
2010 and thereafter 170,904 1,591,438

Total ¥1,242,632 $11,571,214

Trading liabilities as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2005 2004 2005
Derivatives for trading securities ¥ 2,091 ¥ 280 $ 19,475
Derivatives for securities held to hedge trading transactions 12 — 114
Trading-related financial derivatives 66,463 90,336 618,898
Other 534 1,614 4,973
Total ¥69,101 ¥92,231 $643,460
e
Borrowed money as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2005 2004 2005
Subordinated debt ¥ 175,000 ¥194,000 $ 1,629,575
Borrowings from the Bank of Japan and other financial institutions 985,265 140,416 9,174,651
Total ¥1,160,265 ¥334,416 $10,804,226

The weighted average interest rate applicable to the balance of total borrowed money as of March 31, 2005 was 1.38%.

Annual maturities of borrowed money as of March 31, 2005 were as fol

Year ending March 31

lows:

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2006 ¥ 502,550 $ 4,679,674
2007 214,071 1,993,406
2008 104,250 970,762
2009 36,478 339,686
2010 and thereafter 302,214 2,820,698

Total ¥1,160,265 $10,804,226
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The assets and liabilities related to foreign currency trade financing activities of the Bank as of March 31, 2005 and 2004

consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Miltions of yen U.S. dollars
2005 2004 2005
Foreign exchange assets:
Foreign bills bought ¥ 8 ¥ 5 $ 78
Foreign bills receivable 1,674 1,726 15,59¢
Due from foreign banks 6,868 7,759 63,956
Total ¥8,550 ¥9,490 $79,624
Foreign exchange liabilities:
Foreign bills payable ¥ 18 ¥ 2 $ 175
Due to foreign banks 1 1 18
Total ¥ 20 ¥ 4 $ 193
Corporate bonds as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2005 2004 2005
Corporate bonds ¥15,509 ¥ 5,397 $144,425
Subordinated bonds 72,834 25,277 678,222
Total ¥88,344 ¥30,675 $822,647
Annual maturities of corporate bonds as of March 31, 2005 were as follows:
Thousands of
Year ending March 31 Mitlions of yen U.S. dollars
2006 ¥ — $ —
2007 536 5,000
2008 4,541 42,291
2009 6,327 58,918
2010 and thereafter 76,938 716,438
Total ¥88,344 $822,647
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2005 2004 2005
Accrued expenses ¥ 46,326 ¥ 42,679 $ 431,387
Unearned income 1,959 2,434 18,243
Income taxes payable 2,541 1,125 23,661
Fair value of derivatives 16,977 32,464 158,094
Deferred gains on derivatives for hedging purposes 1,240 — 11,552
Matured debentures, including interest 41,223 48,993 383,854
Due to trust account 39,511 15,089 367,930
Accounts payable 17,639 209,901 164,256
Deferred gains on installment receivables 56,171 5,076 523,061
Deposits payabie 93,417 11,963 869,888
Other 95,755 55,170 821,657
Total ¥412,763 ¥424 899 $3,843,593




The following table presents the funded status of the plans as of March 31, 2005 and 2004:

Millions of yen

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2005 2004 2005
Projected benefit obligation ¥(68,122) ¥(53,189) $(634,348)
Fair value of plan assets 61,539 47,812 573,049
Funded status (projected benefit obligation in excess of plan assets) (6,582) (5,376) (61,299)
Unrecognized pension assets (160) — (1,496)
Unrecognized prior service cost (5,138) (4,310) (47,850)
Unrecognized net actuarial losses 8,667 6,911 80,710
Unrecognized obligation at transition 6,054 6,659 56,376
Net amount accrued on the balance sheets 2,839 3,884 26,441
Prepaid pension cost 6,216 4,514 57,885
Reserve for retirement benefits ¥ (3,376) ¥  (629) $ (31,444)

The following table provides the components of net periodic retirement benefit cost for the plans inctuded in general and

administrative expenses and other losses, net, for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004.

Thousands of

Millions of yen t.S. dollars
2005 2004 2005
Service cost ¥3,077 ¥2,457 $28,655
Interest cost 1,395 1,132 12,995
Expected return on plan assets (1,327) (974) (12,366)
Amortization of prior service cost (340) (319) (3,175)
Amortization of net actuarial losses 234 765 8,698
Amortization of unrecognized obligation at transition 605 605 5,638
Other (extraordinary severance benefit expensed, etc.) 3,307 604 30,796
Net periodic retirement benefit cost ¥7,650 ¥4,272 $71,241
Assumptions used in calculation of the above information were as follows:
2005 2004
Discount rate 2.00-2.20% 2.20%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 2.20-3.50% 2.20%

Method of attributing the projected benefits to periods of service
Period of amortization of prior service cost

Period of amortization of net actuarial losses

Feriod of amortization of unrecognized obligation at transition

Straight-line basis
9.49-14.74 years
9.49-14.74 years
15 years

Straight-line basis
9.73-14.74 years
9.73-14.74 years
15 years

The table includes benefit obligations of consolidated subsidiaries that calculate their obligations based on the full

amount due to eligible employees as of the fiscal year-end.
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Acceptances and guarantees as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the foliowing:

Thousands of

Miltions of yen U.S. dollars
2005 2004 2005
Guarantees ¥1,058,159 ¥38,209 $9,853,426
Letters of credit 2 129 22
Total ¥1,058,161 ¥38,339 $9,853,448

The increase in guarantees is attributable to the acquisition of APLUS in September 2004. APLUS extends credit in the
form of guarantees. The most significant component of APLUS’s guarantee business is providing guarantees on installment
shopping credit provided by other lenders to customers of APLUS’s partner merchants. APLUS also offers coliection guaran-
tees for foreign automobile dealers. Among the abovementioned amount, ¥1,032,476 million (U.$.$9,614,274 thousand)

is due to this guarantee business as of March 31, 2005.

Assets pledged as collateral and debts collateralized as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2005 2004 2005
Assets:
Cash and due from banks ¥ 103 ¥ 2,186 $ 95%
Trading assets — 445,352 —_
Securities 376,310 445,896 3,504,145
Loans and bills discounted 280 480 2,611
Other assets 82,077 — 764,295
Premises and equipment 321 — 2,998
Debts:
Deposits, including negotiable certificates of deposit ¥ 11,059 ¥ 5,860 $ 102,986
Payables under repurchase agreements — 445,634 —
Collateral refated to securities lending transactions —_ 29,275 —
Borrowed mgney 128,764 407 1,196,032
Other liabilities 921 947 8,577
Acceptances and guarantees — 2,176 —

A total of ¥38,669 million (U.S.$360,086 thousand) of
unearned lease claims are pledged as collateral for the
above-mentioned borrowed money as of March 31, 2005.

In addition, ¥128,356 million (U.S5.$1,195,235
thousand) of securities as of March 31, 2005 and
¥162,277 million of securities and ¥52 million of foreign
exchanges as of March 31, 2004, were pledged as

collateral for transactions, including exchange settle-
ments, swap transactions and replacement of margin for
future trading.

Also, ¥4,540 million (U.S.$42,278 thousand) and
¥2,673 million of margin deposits for futures transactions
outstanding were included in other assets as of March 31,
2005 and 2004, respectively.



The authorized ﬁumber of shares of capital stock (common stock and preferred stock) as of March 31, 2005 was as follows:

(i) 2,500,000 thousand common shares.

(ii) 674,528 thousand preferred shares, non-voting and ranking prior to common shares with respect to payment of
dividends and distribution on liquidation or winding-up of the Bank. The dividend rate and redemption and conversion
rights, if any, are to be determined by the Board of Directors of the Bank prior to issuance.

The number of common shares was changed in the capital stock and capital surplus accounts for the fiscal years ended

March 31, 2004 and 2005.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Millions of yen

Preferred stock Preferred stock Capital Treasury
Common stock Class A Class B surplus stock
Outstanding
number of
shares Stated Shares Stated Shares Stated Stated
(thousands) value (thousands) value (thousands) value value Cost
Fiscal year ended March 31, 2004:
Beginning of year 2,717,075  ¥180,853 74,528 ¥48,443 600,000 ¥222,000 ¥18,558 ¥(0)
1-for-2 reverse stock split (1,358,537)
tncrease in treasury stock (1 (1
End of year 1,358,536  ¥180,853 74,528 ¥48,443 600,000 ¥222,000 ¥18,558 ¥(1)
Fiscal year ended March 31, 2005:
Beginning of year 1,358,536 ¥180,853 74,528 ¥48,443 600,000 ¥222,000 ¥18,558 ¥(1)
Increase in treasury stock (12) (8)
End of year 1,358,523  ¥180,853 74,528 ¥48,443 600,000 ¥222,000 ¥18,558 ¥(9)
Thousands of U.S. dollars (107.39) $1,684,084 $451,096 $2,067,232 $172,813 $(87)

Japanese banks are subject to the Code and to the
Japanese Banking Law (the “Banking Law").

The Code prescribes that all shares be recorded with no
par value. The Code requires that at least 50% of the
issue price of new shares be designated as stated capital
as determined by resolution of the Board of Directors.
Proceeds in excess of amounts designated as stated
capital are credited to additional paid-in capital, which is
included in capital surplus.

The Banking Law provides that an amount at [east
equal to 20% of the aggregate amount of cash dividends
and certain other cash payments which are made as
appropriation of retained earnings applicable to each fis-
cal period shall be appropriated and set aside as a legal
raserve (a component of retained earnings) until such
reserve and additional paid-in capital equals 100% of
stated capital. The amount of total additional paid-in
capital and legal reserve which exceeds 100% of stated
capital may be available for dividends. The Bank’s
retained earnings of ¥250,194 million (U.S.$2,329,771
thousand), exclusive of the legal reserve, as of March 31,
2005, are available for cash dividends and other cash
payments which are made as an appropriation of retained
earnings. The Bank’s legal reserve amount totaled ¥6,249
million (U.S.$58,197 thousand) as of March 31, 2005.

Under the Code, companies may issue new common
shares to existing shareholders without consideration as a

stock split pursuant to a resolution of the Board of
Directors.

The Code allows companies to repurchase treasury
stock by a resolution of the shareholders at the general
meeting of shareholders and to dispose of such treasury
stock by resolution of the Board of Directors. The repur-
chase amount of treasury stock cannot exceed the amount
available for future dividends plus amount of stated
capital, additional paid-in capital or legal reserve to be
reduced in the case where such reduction was resolfved at
the general meeting of shareholders.

The Bank held 6,749 shares and 1,606 shares of trea-
sury stock as of March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
The Code permits companies to transfer a portion of
additional paid-in capitai and legal reserve to stated capi-
tal by resolution of the Board of Directors. The Code also
permits companies to transfer a portion of unappropriated
retained earnings, available for dividends, to stated

capital by resoluticn of the shareholders.

After the June 2004 annuzl general meeting of com-
mon shareholders, we adopted a Company with Commit-
tees board model as stipulated in the Commercial Code.
In this model, dividends are approved by the Board of
Directors at a meeting held subsequent to the fiscal year
to which the dividends are applicable and notified at the
general meeting of shareholders. Semiannual interim divi-
dends may also be paid upon resolution of the Board of
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Directors, subject to certain limitations imposed by the
Code and the Banking Law.

Holders of Class A preferred shares issued on March
31, 1998, are entitled to priority over holders of common
stock as to the payment of dividends and as to distribu-
tions on liquidation of the Bank. Holders of Class A pre-
ferred shares are to receive non-cumulative dividends of
¥13 and a distribution of ¥1,300 per preferred share
upon liquidation.

Class A preferred shares are convertible on or after
October 1, 1998, and up to and including March 31,
2008, at the option of the shareholders, into fully paid
shares of common stock of the Bank at an initial
exchange price of ¥326, which was subsequently adjusted
to ¥180 on or after October 1, 1999,

Unless previously converted at the option of Class A
preferred sharehoiders, all outstanding Class A preferred
shares will be mandatorily exchanged for fully paid shares
of common stock on April 1, 2008, at the number of com-
mon shares calculated by dividing ¥1,300 by the average
market price per share during a specified period preced-
ing April 1, 2008, with a maximum cap of four common
shares per one Class A preferred share.

Holders of Class B preferred shares issued on April 1,
2000, are entitled to priority over holders of common
stock and an equal ranking with holders of Class A pre-
ferred shares regarding any payment of dividends and dis-
tributions upon liquidation. Holders of Class B preferred
shares are to receive non-cumulative dividends of ¥4.84
and a distribution of ¥400 per preferred share upon liqui-
dation. Class B preferred shares are convertible on or after
August 1, 2005, and up to and including July 31, 2007,
at the option of shareholders, into fully paid shares of
common stock of the Bank. On August 1, 2007, Class B
preferred shares become mandatorily convertible.

The conversion shall be for the number of common shares
calculated by dividing ¥400 by the average market price
per share during a certain period preceding August 1,

At the general meeting of shareholders on June 24, 2004,
the Bank obtained approval for the issuance of stock
acquisition rights as stock options plan to directors
(except for outside directors), statutory executive officers
and employees of the Bank as well as directors (except for

2005, 2006 or 2007, as applicable, or “net asset value,”
as defined, per common share if the shares are not pub-
licly traded. At no time, however, shall the conversion
price be less than ¥300 or more than ¥400.

The Bank’s common shareholders approved a 1-for-2
reverse common stock split at the general meeting of
shareholders held on June 25, 2003. Consequently, as of
July 29, 2003, the capital stock of the Bank consisted of
1,358,537 thousand shares of common stock, 74,528
thousand shares of Class A preferred stock and 600,000
thousand shares of Class B preferred stock.

The Bank’s common shareholders approved the amend-
ment of the conversion conditions of preferred stock
simultaneously at the general meeting of shareholders
hetd on June 25, 2003. Consequently, as of June 29,
2003, the conversion conditions of preferred stock were
amended as follows:

* For Class A preferred shares, the conversion price is
changed to ¥360 from ¥180, and the maximum num-
ber of shares of common stock to one share of pre-
ferred stock is changed to two shares from four shares
at the time of simulitaneous conversion to common
stock.

e For Class B preferred shares, the minimum conversion
price is changed to ¥600 from ¥300, and the maxi-
mum conversion price is changed to ¥800 from ¥400.
The maximum number of share of common stock o
one share of preferred stock at the time of simulta-
neous conversion to common stock is changed to 2/3
shares from 4/3 shares, and the minimum is changed
to 1/2 share from one share.

In addition, due to the issuance of stock options as of
July 1, 2004, the minimum conversion price is changed
to ¥599.90 from ¥600, and the maximum conversion
price is changed to ¥799.90 from ¥800 for Class B pre-
ferred shares as per the market price methodology in the
terms and conditions.

outside directors) and employees of its wholly owned sub-
sidiaries. Stock acquisition rights were issued to eligible
individuals free of charge as shown in the following
schedule.

Total number of stock Total number of Exercise
Date of issuance acquisition rights issued directors and employees Exercisable period price
July 1, 2004 9,455 2,185 July 1, 2006-June 23, 2014 ¥684
October 1, 2004 161 3 July 1, 2006-June 23, 2014 ¥646
December 10, 2004 25 1 July 1, 2006-June 23, 2014 ¥697
June 1, 2005 250 1 July 1, 2006-Jjune 23, 2014 ¥551



At the general meeting of shareholders on June 24,
2005, the Bank obtained approval for the issuance of
stock acquisition rights as stock options plan to directors
(except for outside directors), statutory executive officers
and employees of the Bank as well as directors (except for
outside directors) and employees of its wholly owned sub-
sidiaries. Stock acquisition rights will be issued to eligible
individuals free of charge. In order to implement the stock
option plan, and in order to conduct flexible capital man-
agement in response to changes in the business environ-
ment, the Bank also obtained approval for acquisitions of
treasury stock for authorized maximum aggregate
acquisition prices. Stock acquisition rights and relevant
acquisitions of treasury stock are outlined as follows:

{a) Stock acquisition rights

Stock acquisition rights provide directors (except for out-
side directors), statutory executive officers and employees
of the Bank as well as directors (except for outside direc-
tors) and employees of its wholly owned subsidiaries (the
“holders”) to purchase common stock of the Bank without
any considerations up to a total of 24,000,000 common
shares for up to 24,000 units of stock acquisition rights
at an exchange rate of one thousand common shares to
one stock acquisition right. The amount of money to be
paid upon exercising stock acquisition rights is the
amount calculated by multiplying the payment amount
per share as stipulated below (the “exercise price™) and
the number of common shares that can be purchased
through the exercise of one stock acquisition right. The
exercise price of stock acquisition rights shall be the aver-
age value of the closing price of the Bank’s common
shares on the Tokyo Stock Exchange in the 30 trading
days commencing 45 trading days immediately preceding
the day that is immediately after the date of issuance of
stock acquisition rights, exciuding days on which no trans-
actions were concluded, and rounded up to the nearest
yen. However, if the said value is lower than the closing
price on the issuance date, the closing price of the
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issuance date itself shall be the exercise price.

The exercise period for the stock acquisition rights is
from July 1, 2005 to June 23, 2015 and, within this
period, the holders may exercise their rights between
July 1, 2007 and June 30, 2008 with respect to only
one-half of the number of stock acquisition rights granted
to them. Stock acquisition rights may not be pledged as
collateral or disposed of in any other way. Other condi-
tions shall be stipulated in the “Agreement on the Grant
of Stock Acquisition Rights” to be entered into between
the Bank and the eligible directors, statutory executive
officers and employees of the Bank and its wholly owned
subsidiaries to whom stock acguisition rights are to be
allotted based on the resolution of this general meeting of
shareholders and the meetings of the Board of Directors
which resolves the issuance of stock acquisition rights.
The number of common shares to be purchased by exer-
cise of stock acquisition rights and the exercise price
described above will be adjusted due to a stock split or
reverse stock split in the subsequent pericds in accor-
dance with a predetermined formula. |f stock acquisition
rights are succeeded as a result of a merger of the Bank
into ancther company or a merger of the Bank with
another company, if the Bank exchanges shares with
another company to become its 100% parent company, or
if the Bank spins off its business to establish a new com-
pany, the Bank may adjust the number of common shares
to be purchased by exercise of stock acquisition rights
and the exercise price as considered necessary.

(b) Acquisitions of treasury stock

At the annual general meeting of shareholders on June
24, 2005, the Bank obtained approval to acquire up to
25 million common shares of the Bank at an aggregate
acquisition price of ¥17.5 billion as treasury stock. The
acquisitions can be made during the period from the clos-
ing of the annual general meeting of shareholders on June
24, 2005, to the closing of the immediately following
annua! general meeting of sharehaclders.

Net trading income for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2005 2004 2005
Income from trading securities ¥ 1,870 ¥ 364 $ 17,422
Income from (loss on) securities held to hedge trading transaction 2,197 {203) 20,467
income from trading-related financial derivatives 19,845 2,715 184,803
Other, net 77 (161) 723
Total ¥23,992 ¥2,714 $223,415
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“Other, net” in other business income (losses) for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the

following:
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2005 2004 2005

Net gain on other monetary claims purchased for trading purposes ¥15,098 ¥10,564 $140,591
(Losses) income from derivatives for banking purposes, net (1,182) 2,494 (11,015)
Equity in net income of affiliates 1,762 506 16,413
Income (losses) from equity related derivatives 600 {651) 5,593
Amortization of deferred issuance cost for debentures (301) (193) (2,895)
Other, net 4,659 741 43,476
Total ¥20,636 ¥13,562 $192,163

Net credit recoveries for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Miliions of yen U.S. dollars
2005 2004 2005
Losses on write-off of loans ¥ 10,076 ¥ 2,071 $ 93,828
Losses on sale of loans — 7 —
Net reversal of reserve for loan losses:
Net reversa! of general reserve for loan losses (2,780) (19,740) (25,893)
Net reversal of specific reserve for loan losses (7,759) (12,200) (72,254)
Net reversal of reserve for loan losses to restructuring countries (0) (46) (0
Subtotal (10,539) (31,987) (88,147)
Net (reverszl) provision of specific reserve for other credit losses (234) 12,961 (2,180)
(Reversal) provision of reserve for losses on sale of bonds (291) 1,532 (2,715)
Total ¥ (989) ¥(15,415) $ (9,214)
Other (losses) gains, net, for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:
Thousands of
Milligns of yen U.S. dallars
2005 2004 2005
Net loss on disposal of premises and equipment ¥ (517) ¥(1,674) $ (4,815)
Pension-relatecd costs (3,253) (865) (30,299
Gain on prescription of debentures 334 198 3,118
Recoveries of written-off claims 779 1,514 7,256
Provision for loss on disposition of premises and equipment (153) — (1,425)
Refund of Tokyo regional bank tax — 2,699 —
Other, net (4,247) (1,719) (39,551)
Total ¥(7,057) ¥ 182 $(65,718)
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(1) Finance tease transactions, under which the ownership of the property is not deemed to transfer to the lessee, as of
March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:

As Lessee
Acquisition cost, accumulated depreciation and net balance of leased assets as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 were as
follows:
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Leased assets 2005 2004 2005
Acquisition cost:
Equipment ¥2,799 ¥209 $26,068
Other 248 182 2,315
Total ¥3,048 ¥392 $28,383
Accumulated depreciation:
Equipment ¥ 285 ¥117 $ 2,660
Other 126 109 1,174
Total ¥ 411 ¥226 $ 3,834
Net balance:
Equipment ¥2,513 ¥ 92 $23,407
Gther 122 73 1,141
Total ¥2.,636 ¥166 $24,548
Lease obligations as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dolfars
2005 2004 2005
Obligations:
Due within one year ¥ 759 ¥ 78 $ 7,073
Due after one year 1,957 115 18,229
Total ¥2,717 ¥193 $25,302

For the fiscal years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004, total lease payments were ¥444 miltion (U.S.$4,139 thou-
sand) and ¥86 million, depreciation expenses were ¥410 million (U.S.$3,822 thousand) and ¥98 million, and interest
expenses were ¥45 million (U.S.$422 thousand) and ¥4 million, respectively.

Depreciation expense is calculated using the straight-line method over the useful life of the respective feased assets
with zero residual value. The difference between total lease payments and the acquisition cost of leased assets is
charged to interest expense, and is allocated to each fiscal year using the interest method.
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As Lessor
Acquisition cost, accumulated depreciation and net balance of leased property as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 were as
follows:
Thousands of
Mitlions of yen U.S. dollars
Leased assets 2005 2004 2005
Acquisition cost:
Equipment ¥283,416 ¥— $2,639,135
Other 50,318 — 468,561
Total ¥333,735 ¥— $3,107,6%96
Accumulated depreciation:
Equipment ¥ 898 ¥— $ 8,369
Other 116 — 1,081
Total ¥ 1,014 ¥— $ 9,450
Net balance:
Equipment ¥282,518 ¥— $2,630,766
Other 50,202 — 467,480
Total ¥332,720 ¥— $3,098,246

Future lease payment receivables as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2005 2004 2005
Receivables:
Due within one year ¥120,555 ¥ $1,122,594
Due after one year 226,576 — 2,109,848
Total ¥347,131 ¥— $3,232,442

Total lease revenues were ¥ 1,256 million (U.S.$11,702 thousand), depreciation expenses were ¥1,017 million
(U.S.$9,471 thousand), and interest income was ¥193 million (U.5.$1,806 thousand) for the fiscal year ended

March 31, 2005.

Depreciation expense is calculated using the straight-line method over the lease term. The differences between total
lease revenues and acquisition cost of leased assets were charged to interest income, and were allocated to each period

using the interest method.

(2) Non-cancelable operating leases obligations as lessee and future lease payment receivables as lessor as of March 31,

2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:

As Lessee
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. doltars
2005 2004 2005
Obligations:
Due within one year ¥1,367 ¥1 $12,736
Due after one year 5,728 1 53,346
Total ¥7,096 ¥2 $66,082
As Lessor
Thousands of
Millicns of yen U.S. dollars
2005 2004 2005
Future lease payment receivables:
Due within one year ¥163 ¥— $1,522
Due after one year 765 — 7,127
Total ¥928 ¥— $8,649
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(a) Business Segment Information

The Group is engaged in banking and other related
activities such as securities, trust and other businesses.
Business segment information, however, has not been
presented as the percentage of the other activities is not
material to the banking business.

(b) Geographic Segment Information
Since the proportion of business that the Group conducts
in Japan exceeds 90% of operating income and total
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assets, geographic segment information is not presented.

(c) Foreign Operating Income

Foreign operating income comprises transactions at the
Bank's overseas branch and income from the consolidated
overseas subsidiaries. The composition of this volume of
transactions did not reach 10% of operating income,
therefore foreign operating income segment information is
not presented.

The Group is subject to a number of taxes based on income, such as corporation tax, inhabitants tax and enterprise tax,

which, in the aggregate, resulted in a normal effective statutory tax rate of approximately 40.7% and 43.9% for the fiscal

years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

A reconciliation of the actual effective tax rate with the normal effective statutory tax rate for the fiscal years ended

March 31, 2005 and 2004 is as follows:

2005 2004
Normal effective statutory tax rate 40.7% 43.9%
Increase (decrease) in taxes resulting from:
Permanently tax-exempt income (1.6) {0.5)
Amortization of consolidation goodwill 3.0 0.0
Other non-deductible expenses 1.0 0.8
Change in valuation allowance (46.2) (293.9)
Change in enacted tax rate — {32.1)
Expiration of tax loss carryforwards — 288.3
Other 0.0 (2.8)
Actual effective tax rate (3.1)% 3.7%

The tax effects of significant temporary differences and tax loss carryforwards, which resulted in deferred tax assets and

liabilities, as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2005 2004 2005
Deferred tax assets:

Tax loss carryforwards ¥ 250,481 ¥ 177,044 $ 2,332,444
Reserve for credit losses 104,118 76,712 969,536
Deferred income on installment receivables 14,358 — 133,702
Losses on impairment of premises and equipment 14,015 — 130,508
Reserve for retirement benefits 9,491 7,406 88,386
Securities 7,575 7,611 70,546
Accrued employees bonuses 4,018 2,791 37,422
Deferred gains on installment receivables 3,920 — 36,510
Other 15,959 12,956 148,611
Subtotal 423,939 284,523 3,947,665
Valuation allowance (382,631) (256,594) (3,563,004)
Total deferred tax assets 41,308 27,929 384,661
Offset with deferred tax liabilities (16,684) (4,987) (155,366)
Net deferred tax assets ¥ 24,623 ¥ 22,941 $ 229,295
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Deferred tax liabilities:
Temporary differences due to application of overall fair value

adjustments (mainly related to identified intangible assets) ¥ 33,344 ¥ — $ 310,497
Net unrealized gain on securities available-for-sale 2,128 4,908 19,821
Other 1,474 122 13,728

Total deferred tax liabilities 36,947 5,030 344,047
Offset with deferred tax assets (16,684) (4,987) {155,366)
Net deferred tax liabilities ¥ 20,262 ¥ 42 $ 188,681

Effective on April 1, 2004, the normal effective statu-
tory tax rate was changed from 43.9% to 40.7%, as a
result of the abolition of the additional tax related to ini-
tial filings of consolidated tax returns which was partially
offset by the introduction of a new nationwide local tax on
gross corporate profits.

As a result of these changes, the normal effective
statutory tax rate used in the calculation of deferred tax

assets and deferred tax liabilities changed from 43.9% for
the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003 to 40.7% for the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2004. As a result, deferred
tax assets decreased by ¥1,714 million (U.8.$16,221
thousand} and the debit amount of income iax (deferred)
increased by ¥2,095 million (U.S.$19,820 thousand) for
the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004.

The Bank had ¥423,435 million (U.S.$3,942,969 thousand) of tax loss carryforwards related to corporation tax as of
March 31, 2005. The schedule of tax loss carryforwards and their expiration dates was as follows:

Amount
Thousands of
Fiscal year ended March 31, Millions of yen U.S. doliars Date of expiry
2001 ¥205,209 $1,910,882 March 31, 2006
2002 63,096 587,540 March 31, 2009
2003 155,129 1,444 547 March 31, 2010
Total ¥423,435 $3,942,969

In addition, other important tax loss carryforwards of major subsidiaries are as follows:

APLUS
Showa Leasing

Fiscal year ended March 31, 2005
Fiscal year ended March 31, 2005

March 31, 2012
March 31, 2012

The Bank cannot add the tax loss carryforwards of APLUS and Showa Leasing to its own tax loss carryforwards because,
as less than wholly owned subsidiaries, they are not included in the Bank's consolidated corporate tax system.

The Bank and certain of its consolidated subsidiaries issues
commitments to extend credit and establishes credit lines
for overdrafts to meet the financing needs of its customers.
The unfunded amounts of these commitments were
¥3,277,644 million (U.S.$30,520,947 thousand) and
¥1,304,633 million as of March 31, 2005 and 2004, out
of which the amounts with original agreement terms of less
than one year or which were cancelable were ¥3,095,283
million (U.S.$28,822,831 thousand) and ¥1,156,713 mil-
lion as of March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Since a
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large majority of these commitments expire without being
drawn upon, the unfunded amounts do not necessarily rep-
resent future cash requirements. Many of such agreements
include conditions granting the Bank and consolidated
subsidiaries the right to reject the drawdown or to reduce
the amount on the basis of changes in the financial
circumstances of the borrower or other reasonabie grounds.

In addition, the Bank obtains collateral when necessary
to reduce credit risk related to these commitments.




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Related party transactions for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

Amounts of the transactions

Thousands of

Ripplewood Holdings
Management LLC ©2

JCF Management

LLP *3)

Companies in which a majority of the
voting rights are owned by directors

Companies in which a majority of the
voting rights are owned by directors

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Related party Category Description of the transac 15 2005 2004 2005
JCF Services Co., Companies in which a majority of the  Expense for advisory service ¥59 ¥ 53 $557
LLcew voting rights are owned by directors  on M&A!™

Income from sublease of

office rent, including office space,

office equipment and sharing of

administrative expenses”®

Expense for advisory service™® — 334 —_

Expense for advisory service®® — 326 —

Notes: V' A director of the Bank, J. Christopher Flowers, holds a majority of the voting interests and serves concurrently as the managing member of the

company.

"2 A director of the Bank, Timothy C. Collins, essentially holds a majority of the voting interests and serves concurrently as the senior managing

director and chief executive officer of the company.

U A director of the Bank, J. Christopher Flowers, holds a majority of the voting interests of JCF Management LLC and JCF Management LLC serves as

the general partner of the partnership.

4 The terms and conditions for the advisory service were decided based on the negotiation with the party referring to the terms and conditions

generally used in the public,
U3 The contract was terminated in July 2004,
8! The coniracts were terminated in December 2003.

Purposes

The Bank uses derivative financial instruments primarily
to hedge risk for customers, to maximize the profit of its
own trading account and to manage the potential risks in
its own portfolios of assets and liabilities as a part of
asset liability management.

Risk Exposure

Derivative transactions may be subject to complex risk
factors, including market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk,
operational risk and legal risk. The Bank controls these
risks under its risk management system. To manage mar-
ket risk, the Bank uses Value-at-Risk (“VaR™), modeling to
quantify the maximum total exposure. In its internal
model, the Bank measures the VaR based on one year's
historical data and the assumptions of a ten-days holding
period and a 99% confidence interval. According to this
model, the maximum VaR due to general market risk in
the Bank’s trading account, including derivatives, was
¥1,540 million (U.S.$14,343 thousand) in the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2005 and the average was ¥341 million
(1J.S.$8,764 thousand). In the fiscal year ended March
31, 2004, the maximum VaR was ¥2,788 million and the
average was ¥1,436 million. Also, to manage credit risk,
the Bank utilizes the current exposure and potential
exposure for derivatives, particularly for over-the-counter
transactions such as swap contracts. The consolidated
credit risk asset under the capital adequacy ratio for

domestic banking was calculated as ¥46,845 million
(U.5.$436,217 thousand) and ¥34,435 million as of
March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. In addition, we
adjust the fair value estimates for derivatives for credit
and liquidity risks by reducing ¥791 million (U.5.$7,372
thousand) and ¥2,878 million (U.$.$26,807 thousand)
as of March 31, 2005, although the amounts in the
following tables are not adjusted for both risks.

Risk Management System

The Market Risk Management Division, which is indepen-
dent of the front office, has the responsibility to manage
the risk of the whole Bank. This division controls the mea-
surement of market risk on a daily basis, monitors the
market risk status on both the banking and trading divi-
sions and reports periodically to the directors in charge.
Credit risk is also controited by the unified credit line and
major derivative products are dealt with within the estab-
lished limits. Credit exposure is monitored accordingly
and the Bank may require such things as collateral to
reduce credit risk on a case by case basis.

It should be noted that the nominal contract value or
notional principal amount is used in determining the
value of receipts or payments of interest and as an indica-
tor representative of the volume of transactions, but those
values do not necessarily reflect such things as market
risk or credit risk.
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__ Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(a) Interest Rate-Related Transactions

Interest rate-related transactions as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

Millions of yen

2005 2004
Contractual value or Caontractual value or
notional principal amount notional principal amourt
Maturity Market Unrealized Maturity Market Unrealized
Total over one year value gain (loss}) Total over one year value gain (loss)
Futures contracts (listed):
Sold ¥ 2453 ¥ 1,414 ¥ 11 ¥ 11 ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ -
Bought - — - 118,300 — 249 249
Interest rate options (listed):
Sold — - — 156,387 — (410) (225)
Bought —_ — — 44,307 — i (88)
Interest rate swaps (over-the-counter):
Receive fixed and pay floating 2,865,019 2,223,459 34,033 34,033 2,546,578 1,826,174 56,440 56,440
Receive floating and pay fixed 2,413,627 1,728,094 (27,130) (27,130 2,379,436 1,735,899 (48,443) (48,443)
Receive floating and pay floating 696,218 625,548 6,965 6,965 552,559 527,760 1,041 1,041
Receive fixed and pay fixed 5,460 5,222 1 1 54,135 53,515 (949) (949)
Interest rate swaptions (over-the-counter):
Sold 689,806 679,306 (13,698) (465) 66,690 56,690 (2,481) (1,036)
Bought 1,410,626 1,207,276 13,590 12,716 555,568 542,468 11,753 10,082
Interest rate options (over-the-counter):
Sold 460,636 298,114 (724) 4,594 462,895 398,719 (1,200) 3,847
Bought 337,349 212,381 266 {1,632) 267,034 232,534 857 (1,212)
Total 7 %13314  ¥29,093 " " % 16859 ¥ 19706
Thousands of U.S. doltars
2005
Contractual value or
notional principal amount
Maturity Market Unreatized
Total over one year value gain {loss)
Futures contracts (listed):
Sold 3 22,847 § 13175  $ 106§ 106
Bought — — —
Interest rate options (Misted):
Sold — — —
Bought - — —
Interest rate swaps {over-the-counter):
Receive fixed and pay floating 26,678,643 20,704,528 316,913 316,913
Receive floating and pay fixed 22,475,347 16,091,760 (252,637) (252,637)
Receive floating and pay floating 6,483,085 5,825,016 64,859 64,859
Receive fixed and pay fixed 50,844 48,631 13 13
Interest rate swaptions {over-the-counter):
Sold 6,423,381 6,325,607 (127,555) 4,331)
Bought 13,135,549 11,241,983 126,555 118,411
Interest rate options (over-the-counter):
Sold 4,289,380 2,775,995 (6,750) 42,786
Bought 3,141,349 1,977,668 2,481 (15,205)
Total _— " $123985 $2700915

(1) Derivatives included in the table above were marked

to market and the unrealized gains and losses were
reported in the consolidated statement of income.

Derivatives for which hedge accounting was adopted

were excluded from the table above.
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(2) Market Values:

The market values listed represent the closing price
on the Tokyo International Financial Futures Exchange
and other exchanges at the consolidated bhalance sheet
date. The market values of over-the-counter transac-
tions are calculated mainly by using discounted
present values or option pricing models.




(b) Currency-Related Transactions
Currency-related transactions as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

Millions of yen

Notes to Consolidated Financia! Statements

2005 2004
Notional principal amount National principal amount
Maturity Market Unrealized Maturity Market Unrealized
Total over one year value gain (loss) Total over one year value gain (loss)
Currency swaps (over-the-counter) ¥232,477 ¥156,265 ¥(3,038) ¥(3,038) ¥191,402 ¥180,088 ¥(1,337) ¥(1,337)
Forward foreign exchange contracts
{over-the-counter):
Sold 189,052 26,369 (839) (839) 117,729 13,124 1,220 1,220
Bought 72,297 31,331 (108) (108) 65,049 10,369 (2,237) (2,237)
Currency options (over-the-counter):
Sold 91,918 21,300 (1,909) 438 82,842 8,371 (2,683) (721)
Bought 92,382 11,412 1,597 84 74,950 5,454 2,165 1,022
Total 7 4297 ¥3462) __— " ¥2873)  ¥(2,053)

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2005
Notional principal amount
Maturity Market Unrealized
Total over one year value gain (loss)
Currency swaps {over-the-counter) $2,164,793  $1,455,125 $(28,294) $(28,294)
Forward foreign exchange coniracts
(over-the-counter):
Soid 1,760,428 245,550 (7,816) (7,816)
Bought 673,223 291,750 (1,006) (1,006)
Currency options (over-the-counter):
Soid 855,936 198,349 (17,780) 4,086
Bought 860,248 106,270 14,874 784
Total _— " $40,022)  $(32,246)

(1) Derivatives included in the table above were marked
to market and the unrealized gains and losses were
reported in the consolidated statement of income.
Fund swap transactions and currency swap transac-
tions for which hedge accounting was adopted in

accordance with Industry Audit Committee Report
No. 25 of JICPA were excluded in the table above.

(2) Market Values:

The market values were calculated mainly by using the
discounted present values or option pricing models.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(c) Equity-Related Transactions
Equity-related transactions as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

Millions of yen

2005 2004
Contractual vatue Contractual value
Maturity Market Unrealized Maturity Market Unrealized
Total over one year value gain {loss) Total over one year value gain (loss)
Equity index futures {listed):
Sold ¥14,987 ¥— ¥ (192) ¥ (192) ¥ 226 ¥— ¥ (9) ¥ (9
Bought — — — — — — — —
Equity index options (iisted):
Sold 1,279 — (653) (626) — — — —
Bought 2,593 — 463 69 — — — —
Equity options (over-the-counter):
Sold 44,165 — (2,246) 386 1,610 — (1) (1)
Bought 13,125 — 341 53 1,610 — 241 241
Equity index swaps (over-the-counter):
Receive index and pay floating - — —_ — — — — -
Receive floating and pay index — — - — 4,982 — (280) (280)
Other (over-the-counter):
Sold - — — — — — — —
Bought 91,876 90,376 1,367 1,367 — — — —
Total _— _— ¥ (919) ¥1,056 — _— ¥ (49) ¥ (49)
Thousands of U.S. doliars
2005
Contractual value
Maturity Market Unrealized
Total over ane year value gain (loss)
Equity index futures (listed):
Sold $139,560 $— $ (1,796) $(1,796)
Bought — — — —
Equity index options (listed):
Sold 11,918 — {6,081) {5,837)
Bought 24,150 — 4,319 646
Equity options (aover-the-counter):
Sold 411,263 — (20,917) 3,599
Bought 122,218 — 3,175 497
Equity index swaps {over-the-counter):
Receive index and pay floating — - — -
Receive floating and pay index — — — —
Other {over-the-counter):
Sold - — — -
Bought 855,537 841,569 12,734 12,734
Total — "  $(8566) $ 9842
(1) Derivatives included in the table above were marked (2) Market Values:
to market and the unrealized gains and losses were The market values listed represent the ciosing price on
reported in the consolidated statement of income. the Tokyo Stock Exchange and other exchanges at the
Derivatives for which hedge accounting was adopted consolidated balance sheet date. The market values of
were excluded from the table above. over-the-counter transactions are calculated mainly by
using the discounted present values or option pricing
models.
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(d) Bond-Related Transactions

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Bond-related transactions as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

Millions of yen

2005 2004
Contractual value Contractual value
Maturity Market Unrealized Maturity Market Unrealized
Total over one year value gain (loss) Total over one year value gain (loss)
Bond futures (listed):
Sold ¥ 963 ¥ ¥(12) ¥(12) ¥— ¥ ¥— ¥—
Bought 1,670 — 2 2 - — — —
Total — — ¥ (9) ¥ (9) — — ¥ ¥
Thousands of U.S. dollars
2005
Contractual value
Maturity Market Unrealized
Total over one year value gain (loss)
Bond futures {listed):
Sold $ 8,974 $—~ $(113) $(113)
Bought 15,552 — 25 25
Total _— _— $ (88) $ (88)

(1) Derivatives included in the table above were marked
to market and the unrealized gains and losses were
reported in the consolidated statement of income.
Derivatives for which hedge accounting was adopted
were excluded from the table above.

(e) Commodity Derivatives Transactions

(2) Market Values:
The market values listed represent the closing price on
the Tokyo Stock Exchange and other exchanges at the
consolidated balance sheet date.

Commodity derivatives transactions as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

Millions of yen

2005 2004
Notional principal amount Notional principal amount
Maturity Market Unrealized Maturity Market Unrealized
Total over one year value gain (loss) Total over one year value gain (loss)
Commodity swaps (over-the-counter):
Receive floating and pay fixed ¥26 ¥— ¥0 ¥0 ¥— ¥— ¥— ¥—
Receive fixed and pay floating 26 — (0) (0) — — - -
Total — — ¥0 ¥0 — — ¥— ¥—
Thousands of U.S. dollars
2005
Notional principal amount
Maturity Market Unrealized
Total over one year value gain (loss)
Commodity swaps (over-the-counter):
Receive floating and pay fixed $250 $— $9 $9
Receive fixed and pay floating 250 — (5) (5)
Total — —— $4 $4

(1) Derivatives included in the table above were marked
to market and the unrealized gains and losses were
reported in the consolidated statement of income.
Derivatives for which hedge accounting was adopted
were excluded from the table above.

(2) Market Values:
The market values are calculated by using factors such
as price of the relevant commodity and contract term.
(3) Commodity derivatives are transaction on fuel.
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~ Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(f) Credit Derivatives Transactions

Credit derivatives transactions as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

Miltions of yen

2005

2004

Notional principal amount

Netional principal amount

Maturity over Market Unrealized Maturity over Market Unrealized
Total one year value gain (loss) Total one year value gain (loss)
Credit default option
(over-the-counter):
Sold ¥439,368 ¥422203 ¥ 1,516 ¥ 1,516 ¥ 93,956 ¥ 70,956 ¥ 835 ¥ 835
Bought 399,875 373,375 (1,452) (1,452) 158,540 157,540 (730) (730)
Total _— _—" ¥ 64 ¥ b4 — —— ¥ 104 ¥ 104
Thousands of U.S. dollars
2005
Noticnal principal amount
Maturity over Market Unrealized
Total one year value gain {loss)

Credit default option
(over-the-counter):

Sold $4,091,334 $3,931,495 $ 14,124 $ 14,124
Bought 3,723,585 3,476,821 (13,524) (13,524)
Total / / 601 $ 601

(1) Derivatives included in the table above were marked
to market and the unrealized gains and losses were
reported in the consolidated statement of income.
Derivatives for which hedge accounting was adopted
were excluded from the table above.

(2) Market values:

The market values were calculated by using the

discounted present value of estimated cash flows or

other models.

(3) “Sold"” stands for accepting credit risk and “Bought”
stands for transferring credit risk.

A reconciliation of the differences between basic and diluted net income per commaon share (“EPS") for the fiscal years

ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 is as follows:

Millions of Thousands of u.s.
yen shares Yen dollars
Weighted
average
Net income shares EPS EPS
For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005:
Basic EPS
Net income available to common shareholders ¥63,562 1,358,529 ¥46.78 $0.44
Effect of dilutive securities
Preferred stock 3,872 569,128
Stock acquisition rights — 1
Diluted EPS
Net income for computation ¥67,435 1,927,658 ¥34.,98 $0.33
For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004:
Basic EPS
Net income available to common shareholders ¥62,531 1,358,537 ¥46.03
Effect of dilutive securities
Preferred stock 3,872 669,128
Diluted EPS
Net income for computation ¥66,404 2,027,666 ¥32.75
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Il

(1) The following appropriation of retained earnings of the Bank for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005 was approved at
the Board of Directors meeting held on May 24, 2005:

Millions of Thousands of

yen U.S. dollars

Transfer to legal reserve ¥ 738 $ 6,872
Dividends:

Class A preferred share (¥6.50 per share) 484 4511

Class B preferred share (¥2.42 per share) 1,452 13,521

Common share (¥1.29 per share) 1,752 16,319

Total ¥4,426 $41,223

(2) On June 27, 2005, the Bank issued 3,626 of the stock acquisition rights with an exercise price of ¥601 per share of
common stock. See Note 24 for the stock acquisition rights.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Independent Auditors’ Report

Deloitte.

To the Board of Directors and Sharehoiders of
Shinsei Bank, Limited

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Shinsei Bank, Limited (the “Bank") and consolidated
subsidiaries as of March 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity, and
cash flows for the years then ended, all expressed in Japanese yen. These consolidated financial statements are the respon-
sibility of the Bank’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan and the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of the Bank and consclidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2005 and 2004, and the consolidated results of their
operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
Japan.

Our audits also comprehended the translation of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts and, in our opinion, such
translation has been made in conformity with the basis stated in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. Such
U.S. dollar amounts are presented solely for the convenience of readers outside Japan.

DQ/Oﬂf:Q \%Jw \(/;Am u_

Tokyo, Japan
June 24, 2005
(June 27, 2005 as to Note 36)
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Nan-Consolidated Balance Sheets

Shinsei Bank, Limited
March 31, 2005 and 2004

Millions of yen

Non-Consolidated Balance Shests Il

Thousands of
U.S. doltars {Note)

2005 2004 2005
ASSETS
Cash and due from banks ¥ 162,208 ¥ 305,563 $ 1,510,466
Call loans 70,000 — 651,830
Collateral related to securities borrowing transactions 3,744 18,121 34,864
Other monetary claims purchased 108,410 91,286 1,009,502
Trading assets 166,817 633,488 1,553,381
Monetary assets held in trust 415,395 355,327 3,868,107
Securities 1,820,753 1,508,204 16,954,592
Loans and bills discounted 3,443,721 3,217,804 32,067,436
Foreign exchanges 8,550 9,490 79,624
Other assets 220,972 334,547 2,057,660
Premises and equipment 26,499 24,123 246,763
Deferred discounts on and issuance expenses for debentures 285 166 2,660
Deferred tax assets 23,543 21,790 219,235
Customers’ liabilities for acceptances and guarantees 49,896 64,358 464,633
Reserve for credit losses (124,499) (177,960) (1,159,318)
Total assets ¥6,396,302 ¥6,406,313 $59,561,435
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Liabilities:
Deposits, including negotiable certificates of deposit ¥3,528,879 ¥2,778,482 $32,860,408
Debentures 1,246,862 1,362,261 11,610,603
Call money 204,285 112,559 1,902,371
Payables under repurchase agreements — 445,634 —_
Collateral related to securities lending transactions — 29,275 —_
Trading liabilities 64,296 90,336 598,717
Borrowed money 325,394 335,311 3,030,022
Foreign exchanges 289 280 2,697
Corporate bonds 50,000 — 465,593
Other liabilities 128,663 449,169 1,198,093
Accrued employees bonuses 7,616 6,971 70,928
Reserve for retirement benefits 1,010 473 9,405
Reserve for loss on disposition of premises and equipment 153 — 1,425
Reserve for loss on sale of bonds — 1,918 —
Acceptances and guarantees 49,896 64,358 464,632
Total liabilities 5,607,357 5,677,033 52,214,894
Shareholders’ equity:
Capital stock:
Common stock 180,853 180,853 1,684,084
Preferred stock 270,443 270,443 2,518,328
Capital surplus 18,558 18,558 172,812
Retained earnings:
Legal reserve 6,249 4,823 58,197
Unappropriated retained earnings 307,022 247,485 2,858,947
Net unrealized gain on securities available-for-sale, net of taxes 5,822 7,118 54,216
Treasury stock, at cost (4) (1) (43)
Total shareholders’ equity 788,945 729,280 7,346,541
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ¥6,396,302 ¥6,406,313 $59,561,435

Note: U.S. doliar amounts, presented solely for the readers’ convenience, are translated at ¥107.39=U.5.$1.00, the rate of exchange prevailing on the Tokyo

Foreign Exchange Market on March 31, 2005.



Non-Consolidated Statements of Income/Non-Consolidated Statements of Retained Earnings
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Non-Consolidated Statements of income

Shinsei Bank, Limited
For the fiscal years enced March 31, 2005 and 2004

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars (Note)

2005 2004 2005
Interest income:
Interest on loans and bills ¥ 58,595 ¥ 63,584 $ 545,636
Interest and dividends on securities 15,551 16,467 144,816
Interest on deposits with banks 2,775 1,957 25,844
Other interest income 4,903 5,824 45,658
Total interest income 81,826 87,833 761,954
Interest expenses:
Interest on deposits, including negotiable certificates of deposit 13,713 12,230 127,687
Interest and discounts on debentures 6,201 8,397 57,748
Interest on other borrowings 8,896 10,345 82,841
Other interest expenses 316 742 2,944
Total interest expenses 29,127 31,715 271,230
Net interest income 52,698 56,118 420,724
Fees and commissions income 20,516 18,883 191,046
Fees and commissions expenses 8,859 7,138 82,495
Net fees and commissions 11,657 11,745 108,551
Net trading income 22,192 2,154 206,649
Other business income (losses):
Income on monetary assets held in trust, net 29,361 25,819 273,414
Net gain on securities and foreign exchanges 3,168 11,743 29,507
Other, net 3,992 6,474 37,177
Net other business income 36,523 44,037 340,098
Total revenue 123,071 114,055 1,146,022
General and administrative expenses:
Personnel expenses 29,805 27,407 277,547
Premises expenses 11,152 12,662 103,851
Technology and data processing expenses 8,120 6,183 75,614
Advertising expenses 3,358 2,782 31,271
Consumption and property taxes 3,393 2,563 31,604
Deposit insurance premium 2,115 1,938 19,698
Other general and administrative expenses 12,142 11,924 113,070
Total general and administrative expenses 70,088 65,462 652,655
Net business profit 52,982 48,592 493,367
Net credit recoveries (16,364) (16,722) (152,381)
Other (losses) gains, net (4,487) 878 (41,791)
Income before income taxes 64,859 66,193 603,957
income tax (benefit):
Current (2,374) (1,095) (22,110}
Deferred (864) 1,968 (8,045)
Net income ¥ 68,097 ¥ 65,320 $ 634,112
Yen U.S. dollars (Note)
Basic net income per common share ¥ 47.27 ¥ 4523 $ 0.44
Diluted net income per common share 35.32 32.21 0.33
Non-Consolidated Statements of Retained Earnings
Shinsei Bank, Limited
For the fiscal years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note)
2005 2004 2005
Legal reserve:
Balance at beginning of year ¥ 4,823 ¥ 2,756 $ 44,911
Transfer from unappropriated retained earnings 1,426 2,066 13,286
Balance at end of year ¥ 6,249 ¥ 4,823 $ 58,197
Unappropriated retained earnings:
Balance at beginning of year ¥247,485 ¥194,564 $2,304,544
Appropriation:
Transfer to legal reserve (1,426) (2,066) (13,286)
Dividends paid (7,133) (10,333) (66,424)
Net income 68,097 65,320 634,113
Balance at end of year ¥307,022 ¥247,485 $2,858,947

Note: U.S. dollar amounts, presented solely for the readers’ convenience, are translated at ¥107.39=U.5.$1.00

Foreign Exchange Market on March 31, 2005.

, the rate of exchange prevailing on the Tokyo
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—T— General Services Division
~—— Corporate Strategy Division
r— Legal and Compliance Division

(Legal Department)
~— Credit Assessment Division

Omiya SFC
= Lalaport SFC
+— Tokyo SFC
— {kebukuro SFC
— Ueno SFC
— Kichijoji SFC
+— Shinjuku SFC
— Shiodome $IO-SITE SFC
t— Roppangi Hills SFC
L~ (Keyakizakadori Annex)
Shibuya SFC
Hiroo SFC
Meguro SFC
Futakotamagawa SFC
Hachioji SFC
Yokohama SFC
Fujisawa SFC
Nagoya SFC
Kyoto SFC
Osaka SFC
Umeda SFC
L (Hankyu-Umeda Annex)
F— MNamba SFC
~— Kobe SFC
Hiroshima SFC
E Takamatsu SFC

Fukuoka SFC

FTTTTTTTTT]

*1 Sapporo, Sendai, Kanazawa, Nagoya,
Hiroshirna, Takamatsu and Fukuoka
*2 Credit Risk Division is attached to

iBG, but also reports to Head of RMG.

Abbreviations:

FIBD: Financial Institutions Business Division

SFC: Shinsei Financial Center

{Ginza Annex)
(Ginza Corridor Street Annex)

Organization
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__ Directors and Executives/Employees

Directors and Executives

As of July 1, 2005

Board of Directors

Masamoto Yashiro
Thierry Porté

Junji Sugiyama

Akira Acki*

Michael J. Boskin*
Emilio Botin*

Timothy C. Collins*

J. Christopher Flowers*
Takashi Imai*

Shigeru Kani*

Fred H. Langhammer*
Minoru Makihara*
Yasuharu Nagashima*
Lucio A. Noto*
Nobuaki Ogawa*

John S. Wadsworth, Jr.*
Teruaki Yamamoto

Chairman of the Board, Shinsei Bank, Limited

President, CEO, Shinsei Bank, Limited

Vice Chairman, Shinsei Bank, Limited

Senior Advisor, Japan Securities Finance Co., Ltd.

Professor, Stanford University

Chairman, Grupo Santander

CEOQ, Ripplewood Holdings, LLC

Chairman, J. C. Flowers & Co., LLC

Senior Advisor, Honorary Chairman, Nippon Steel Corporation
Former Director, Administration Department, The Bank of Japan
Chairman, Global Affairs, The Estée Lauder Companies, Inc.
Senior Corporate Advisor, Mitsubishi Corporation

Lawyer

Former Vice Chairman, Exxon Mobile Corporation

Lawyer

Advisory Director, Morgan Stanley

President, APLUS Co., Ltd.

Senior Advisors

John S. Reed
Paul A. Volcker

Former Chairman, Citigroup Inc.
Former Chairman, Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System

Statutory Executive Officers

Representative Statutory Executive Officer, President, Chief Executive Officer
Representative Statutory Executive Officer, Vice Chairman

Senior Managing Executive Officer, Banking Infrastructure Group

Senior Managing Executive Officer, Institutional Banking Group

Senior Managing Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Finance Group

Senior Managing Executive Officer, Risk Management Group

Senior Managing Executive Officer, Retail Banking Group

Managing Executive Officer, Deputy Head, Retail Banking Group

Managing Executive Officer, Financial institutions and Capital Markets Sub-Group
Managing Executive Officer, Corporate Banking Business Sub-Group

Thierry Porté

Junji Sugiyama
Dhananjaya Dvivedi
Clark Graninger
John E. Mack
Janak Raj

K. Sajeeve Thomas
Satoru Katayama
Masazumi Kato
Junzo Tomii

Statutory Executive Officer, Corporate Affairs Group Kazumi Kojima

Notes: 1. * Outside directors as stipulated in Article 188, Paragraph 2, 7-2 of the Commercial Code of Japan
2. Committee memberships:
Nomination Committee; Minoru Makihara (Chairman); Michael J. Boskin, Timothy C. Collins, J. Christopher Flowers, Lucio A. Noto, Thierry Porté, Masamoto Yashiro
Audit Committee: Akira Aoki (Chairman); Shigeru Kani, Yasuharu Nagashima, Nobuaki Ogawa
Compensation Committee: J. Christopher Flowers (Chairman); Emilio Botin, Timothy C. Collins, Fred H. Langhammer, Minoru Makihara, John S. Wadsworth, Jr.
3. Shinsei Bank adopted a Company with Committees board mode! after its annual general meeting of shareholders on June 24, 2004.

Employees

As of March 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

2005 2004 2003

Number of Employees ............. 2,041 2,122 2,055
Male oo 1,165 1,235 1,177
Female ..o 876 887 878

AVErage age ......ooveiviverinniniinnns 37 years 4 months 36 years 9 months 36 years 2 months

10 years 6 months 10 years 8 months 10 years 5 months

Average years of service...........
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Major Subsidiaries and Affiliates

As of March 31, 2005

Major Domestic Subsidiaries

Maijor Subsidiaries and Affiliates

Equity stake held by Shinsei Bank and
consolidated subsidiaries (%)

Equity stake held

Capital Equity stake by consofidated
{Millions held by subsidiaries of
Name Location Main business of yen) Shinsei Bank Shinsei Bank
Shinsei Trust & Banking Co., Ltd. Tokyo, Japan Trust banking ¥5,000 100.00% 100.00% —%
Shinsei Information Technology Tokyo, Japan Information 100 100.00 100.00 —
Co., Ltd. technology
Shinsei Business Services Co., Ltd.  Tokyo, Japan Administrative 54 100.00 100.00 —_
support
Shinsei Real Estate Valuation Tokyo, Japan Real estate 50 100.00 100.00 —
Services Co., Ltd. valuation
The Shinsei Card Co., Ltd. Tokyo, Japan Credit card 725 100.00 100.00 —
Shinsei Securities Co., Ltd. Tokyo, Japan Securities 5,500 100.00 100.00 —
Shinsei Investment Management Tokyo, Japan tnvestment trust 495 100.00 100.00 —
Co., Ltd. and discretionary
investment advising
Chowa Tatemono Co., Ltd. Tokyo, Japan Real estate leasing 10 100.00 100.00 —
Life Housing Loan Co., Ltd. Tokyo, Japan Housing toan 1,000 100.00 — 100.00
Shinsei Sales Finance Co., Ltd. Tokyo, Japan Instaliment credit 350 100.00 100.00 —
Shinsei Property Finance Co., Ltd. Tokyo, Japan Real estate 250 100.00 100.00 —
collateral finance
Shinsei Business Finance Co., Ltd. Tokyo, Japan Small business 734 75.00 75.00 —
lending
BM Finance Co., Ltd. Tokyo, Japan Finance i0 100.00 100.00 —
BM Enterprise Co., Ltd. Tokyo, Japan Finance 10 — — —
Shinsei Servicing Company Tokyo, Japan Servicing business 500 100.00 — 100.00
APLUS Co., Ltd. Osaka, Japan Consumer sales finance 15,000 67.70 0.60 67.10

Showa Leasing Co., Ltd. Tokyo, Japan Leasing 42,149 96.50 96.50 —
Major Overseas Subsidiaries
Equity stake held by Shinsei Bank and
consolidated subsidiaries (%)
Equity stake held
Equity stake by consolidated
held by subsidiaries of
Name Location Main business Capital Shinsei Bank Shinsei Bank
Shinsei Bank Finance N.V. Curagao, Finance $2.1 million 100.00% 100.00% —%
Netherlands
Antilles
Shinsei Capital (USA), Ltd. Wilmington, Finance 0 100.00 100.00 —
Delaware, USA
Shinsei International Limited London, UK Securities £1 million 100.00 100.00 —
Affiliates Accounted for Using the Equity Method
Equity stake held by Shinsei Bank and
consolidated subsidiaries (%)
Equity stake held
Equity stake by consolidated
held by subsidiaries of
Name Location Main business Capital Shinsei Bank Shinsei Bank
SHINKI Co., Ltd. Tokyo, Japan Finance ¥12,665 million 39.10% 39.10% —%
Raffia Capital Co., Ltd. Tokyo, Japan Private equity ¥10 miilion 50.00 50.00 —
fund management
Hillcot Holdings Limited Hamilton, Holding company $12,000 17.50 17.50 —
Bermuda
BlueBay Asset Management London, UK Asset £12,000 25.00 25.00 —
Limited management
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Corporate Information
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Corporate Information

Established
1952

Fiscal Year
From April 1 to March 31

Paid-in Capital
¥451,296 million

Number of Shares Authorized
Common Shares"V:
2,500,000,000

Preferred Shares:
674,528,000

Number of Shares Issued
Common Shares®2 3);
1,358,537,606

Preferred Shares:

Class A 74,528,000
Class B 600,000,000

Ten Largest Shareholderst"*

Mellon Bank Treaty Clients Omnibus
(17.37% of common shares)

J. Christopher Flowers
(6.49% of common shares)

State Street Bank and Trust Company
(3.93% of common shares)

The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd.
(2.95% of common shares)

Morgan Stanley and Company Inc.
(2.73% of common shares)

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd.

{Trust Account)

(2.64% of common shares)

Mellon Bank N.A.A. AFIC ST1 New LTCB

Partners C.V. Shinsei Bank
(2.53% of common shares)

The Chase Manhattan Bank N.A. London

(1.93% of common shares)
Timothy C. Collins
(1.86% of common shares)
Japan Securities Finance Co., Ltd.
(Trust Account)
(1.49% of ccmmon shares)

(As of March 31, 2005)

Network

Americas:
New York Representative Office
Shinsei Capital (USA), Ltd.
Grand Cayman Branch
Shinsei Bank Finance N.V.

Domestic Branches:

Head Office (Tokyo)
Marunouchi Anpex
(Housing Loan Center Tokyo)
Ginza Annex
Ginza Corridor Street Annex
Kyobashi Annex

Sapporo Branch

Sendai Branch

Kanazawa Branch

Omiya Branch

Lalaport Branch

Tokyo Branch

Ikebukuro Branch

Ueno Branch

Kichijoji Branch

Shinjuku Branch

Shiodome SI0-SITE Branch

Roppongi Hills Branch
Keyakizakadori Annex

Shibuya Branch

Hiroo Branch

Meguro Branch

Futakotamagawa Branch

Hachioji Branch

Yokohama Branch

Fujisawa Branch

Nagoya Branch

Kyoto Branch

Osaka Branch

Umeda Branch
Hankyu-Umeda Annex

Namba Branch

Kobe Branch

Hiroshima Branch

Takamatsu Branch

Fukuoka Branch

(As of July 1, 2005)

Domestic Sub-Branches (ATM only):

Shinsei Bank
27 locations
Keikyu Station Bank
37 locations
Tokyo Metro stations
4 Jocations
Shinsei Daily Bank
34 locations

(As of July 1, 2005)

Co-managed under a tie-up
with 1Y Bank Co., Ltd.
9,845 locations

(As of March 31, 2005)

Number of Shinsel Bank's own ATMs

252

(As of July 1, 2005)

(*1) Reduced from 5,000,000,000 to
2,500,000,000 on July 29, 2003.

(*2) There was a 1-for-2 reverse stock split on July
28, 2003,

(*3) Since February 19, 2004, the Bank's common
stock has been listed on the First Section of
the Tokyo Stock Exchange.

(*4) 1. Actual shareholdings have been reported to

the full extent to which the Bank is aware.

2. Mr. J. Christopher Flowers and Mr. Timothy
C. Collins are directors of the Bank.

3. New LTCB Partners C.V., which was the
main shareholder of the Bank as of the end
of fiscal 2003, was not the main share-
holder as of the end of fiscal 2004,

Shinsei Bank is a Japanese banking institution founded on global standards of governance and management. With over $59 billion in
assets and 29 branches throughout Japan (non-consolidated, as of March 2005), Shinsei provides a broad range of value-added
financial solutions to institutional and individual customers under the banner of “Better Banking.” Qur PowerFlex account, free ATM
network and internet banking service, along with our customer friendly financial centers, have redefined the Japanese retail banking
experience. Shinsei is committed to long-term growth and profitability by expanding its customer-focused business model.

News and other information about Shinsei Bank are available at http://www.shinseibank.com/english/index.htm|



Web Site

S TETIIN
Trustad ang Depondutic Lending

FeapoER ity 18 1% nads af eexporetr st <
it oy . e o AL L o Bire

Web Site 1R

Our bilingua! web site provides a wide range of information covering our retail and
institutional businesses, corporate data and investor relations.

Retail

hittp://www.shinseibank.com/english/

The Retail web site provides information on-our comprehensive retail account, PowerfFlex. Cus-
tomers can log on to our internet banking service, Shinsei PowerDirect, submit requests for infor-
mation on PowerFlex and apply to open an

account. Product offerings, campaigns, branch and ATM information, and detailed explan

ations on foreign currency deposits and investment trusts are covered in the Retall site.

Institutional

http:/iwww.shinseibank.com/institutional/en/

Our Institutional web site provides information for our institutional customers on our solutions and
products and services. It also contains details of our branches and affiliates.

Small Business

http.//www.shinseibank.com/nonbank/en/

The Small Business web site provides information on unsecured loans and secured loans for
small business owners. It also contains introductions to our consumer and commercial
finance subsidiaries.

About Shinsei Bank

http://www.shinseibank.com/investors/en/about/

This web site provides information on our strategy and corporate profile, and lists our board mem-
bers and management. it also contains news releases and ratings information.

Investor Relations

http:/Awww.shinseibank.com/investors/en/ir/

The Investor Relations web site covers performance highlights and selected financial information, share
price information, disclosure materials {(annual reports, interim reports) and share

administration information. It also provides webcasts of investors’ meetings on financial

results.

For further information, please contact:
Corporate Communications Division

Shinsei Bank, Limited

1-8, Uchisaiwaicho 2-chome,

Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-8501, Japan

Tel: 81-3-5511-5111 Fax: 81-3-5511-5505
URL: http://www.shinseibank.com

E-mail: webmaster@shinseibank.com
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